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Directors’ Report

1. Key events in the period
The Group’s key operating events in H1 2018 were as follows:

SETTLEMENT OF THE “€80 MILLION 5.75 PER CENT. UNSECURED EQUITY-LINKED BONDS
DUE 2019”
On January 25, 2018 - the Board of Directors of Maire Tecnimont approved the exercise of the
advance repayment option in cash, at nominal value, of the equity-linked bond called “€80
million 5.75 per cent. Unsecured Equity- Linked Bonds due 2019” (the “Loan”) issued by Maire
Tecnimont (“Maire Tecnimont”) and convertible into Maire Tecnimont ordinary shares. On
March 6, 2018 - Maire Tecnimont announced that - against the nominal value of the Loan at
January 25, 2018 of Euro 79,900,000, for 799 bonds (the “Bonds”) still in circulation and
listed on the Dritter Markt (Third Market) Multilateral Trading Facility organised and managed
by the Vienna Stock Exchange - it had received, by the deadline of February 28, 2018,
conversion requests from bondholders for a nominal value of Euro 79,800,000, corresponding
to a total of 798 Bonds, at the conversion price of Euro 2,0964. The conversion requests were
satisfied through delivery to entitled parties of a total 38,065,232 ordinary Maire Tecnimont
shares, with full rights, of which 14,952,300 treasury shares of the company from the buyback program to service the conversion of the Loan which commenced on September 25,
2017, and 23,112,932 newly-issued shares from a paid-in share capital increase to service the
Loan, approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the company of April 30, 2014.
The 1 Bond of a nominal value of Euro 100,000.00, for which a conversion request was not
presented by the final deadline of February 28, 2018, was repaid in cash at the above nominal
value, in addition to interest matured, according to that set out in the Bond Regulation, with
value date of March 7, 2018.
CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL ANNOUNCEMENT
On March 15, 2018 – Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. communicated the new composition of the
subscribed and paid-in share capital, in addition to the total number of voting rights (as per
Article 85-bis, paragraphs 1, 2 and 4-bis, Consob Regulation 11971/1999), following the issue
of 23,112,932 new ordinary shares on the basis of the paid-in share capital increase approved
by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the company of April 30, 2014 in service of the
conversion of the “€80,000,000 5.75 per cent equity-linked bonds due 2019”. The declaration
confirming the subscription of the newly issued ordinary shares indicated above was filed at
the Rome Companies Registration Office as per Article 2444 of the Civil Code on the same
date.
Previous situation

Total of which:
Ordinary shares without
additional votes
(ISIN IT0004931058, full rights)
Present coupon: No. 4
Ordinary shares with
additional votes
(ISIN IICMTV0000104, full
rights)
Present coupon: No. 4
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No. Shares
comprising share
capital
305,527,500

Voting rights
473,192,634

137,862,366

137,862,366

167,665,134

335,330,268

Current situation
No. Shares
comprising share
capital
328,640,432

Voting rights
496,305,566

-

160,975,298

160,975,298

-

-

167,665,134

335,330,268

-

Euro
19,689,550.00

Euro
19,920,679.32

ISSUE OF A NON-CONVERTIBLE BOND LOAN FOR A MAXIMUM EURO 250 MILLION
On March 15, 2018 – Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. communicated that the Board of Directors of the
company approved the issue of a non-convertible bond loan for a maximum Euro 250 million
(the “Bond Loan”) for the partial repayment of the medium/long-term bank debt of the
subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A., currently amounting to Euro 350 million.
The Bond Loan is part of a project to diversify funding and optimise the medium/long-term
debt in order to align its structure with the altered financial needs of the Maire Tecnimont
Group.
On April 11, 2018 - the “Commission de Secteur Financier” of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
(the “CSSF”) approved the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) concerning the public offer of Maire
Tecnimont S.p.A. Senior Unsecured Notes due 30 April 2024 (the “Bonds”), authorising listing
on the regulated Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
Borsa Italiana S.p.A., with provision of April 9, 2018, admitted the Bonds to the “Mercato
Telematico delle Obbligazioni” (“MOT”) regulated market.
Following approval of the Prospectus, Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. - for the purposes of also
offering to the public in Italy the Bonds and their listing on the MOT - requested the CSSF to
send and notify to CONSOB, as part of the “passporting” process as per Directive 2003/71/CE
of the European Parliament and Council of November 4, 2003 (the “Directive”), the
Prospectus, together with the additional documents required by the applicable regulation.
The public offer of the Bonds in Luxembourg and in Italy began on April 18, 2018 at 09:00 AM
(CET) and concluded on April 24, 2018 at 5:30 PM (CET).
The total nominal value of the subscribed Bonds is Euro 165 million. The interest rate of the
Bonds, as announced on April 16, 2018, is 2.625% annually, with a return on the Bonds of
2.625%.
Consequently, on May 3, 2018, 165,000 Bonds were issued at a price equal to 100% of the
nominal value, and with a unitary minimum value of Euro 1,000 (thousand).
The interest on the Bond shall be paid on a deferred basis on April 30 and October 31 of each
year, from October 31, 2018.
The interest to be paid on the Bonds shall amount to Euro 13.125 per Calculation Amount (as
defined in the Prospectus), with the exception of the first interest payment, to be made on
October 31, 2018 and calculated pro-rata on the basis of the period between the issue date of
the Bonds (May 3, 2018) and October 31, 2018 excluded (the “First Interest Period”) and shall
amount to Euro 12.911 per Calculation Amount.
The amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount for each period, except for that stated
in relation to the First Interest Period, shall be the product of 2.625%, the Calculation Amount
and the agreed daily calculation (calculated as “Actual/Actual (ICMA)”, as per the Bond
Conditions) for the relevant period, rounding the resulting figure to the nearest cent (half cent
amounts rounded upwards).

SHAREHOLDERS’ AGM APPROVES 2017 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND THE DISTRIBUTION OF A
DIVIDEND
On April 26, 2018, the Shareholders’ AGM of Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. (the “Company”) met in
first call and approved all matters on the agenda.
Specifically, the AGM approved i) the 2017 Annual Accounts of the company reporting Net
Income of Euro 60,143,682.32 and ii) the distribution of a dividend for a total of Euro
42,063,895.55, equal to one third of 2017 consolidated net income of Euro 126.6 million.
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The Shareholders’ Meeting finally voted in favor of the First Section of the 2018 Remuneration
Report drawn up in accordance with Article 123-ter of the CFA.
The company also announced, as per Article IA.2.1.2., paragraph 1 of the Instructions to the
Regulation of the Markets organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., that: dividend
coupon No. 4 was fixed for April 30, 2018 (“ex-date”), with payment taking place from May 3,
2018 (“payment date”); the dividend equals Euro 0.128 per share, gross of any statutory
withholdings, for all shares in circulation at coupon date No. 4, for a total amount of Euro
42,063,895.55 and is allocated from the 2017 net income of Euro 60,143,682.32; the
remaining net income of Euro 18,079,786.77 is allocated to retained earnings; in accordance
with Article 83-terdecies of the CFA, the right to the payment of a dividend is based on the
accounts of the intermediary as per Article 83-quater, paragraph 3 of the CFA, at the
conclusion of the trading day of May 2, 2018 (“record date”).
MAIRE TECNIMONT AND BIO-ON COME TOGETHER TO DEVELOP, PRODUCE AND DISTRIBUTE
BIODEGRADABLE FERTILIZERS
On May 30, 2018 – Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. - through a Maire Group company specialized in
the green chemicals sector – and Bio-on S.p.A., a high-quality bio-plastics enterprise, signed
an agreement involving the undertaking by the Maire Group of a 50% equal holding in U-Coat
(Urea Coating) S.p.A..
U-Coat is a company newly incorporated by Bio-on engaged in the production and distribution
of an innovative technology for the coating of urea for fertilizer use. U-Coat operates on a key
and quickly expanding global market, leveraging on a PHAs bio-plastics based technology
developed by Bio-on. In fact, the PHAs bio-plastics are from renewable vegetable sources
without any food chain competition. Appropriately measured, the PHAs coat the urea pellet
for the time-controlled release of the fertilizer, protecting it from atmospheric agents and
maximising efficacy without leaving any residue on land.
Under the investment agreement, Maire Tecnimont will be the exclusive global contractor for
the turnkey building of plant using this innovative technology.
The global urea market continues to grow (+4% annually) and provides a wide range of
applications for this new technology. The partnership between Maire Tecnimont and Bio-on
further illustrates our Italian green economy industrial leadership.
TREASURY SHARE BUY-BACK PLAN IN SERVICE OF THE SECOND CYCLE OF THE “MAIRE
TECNIMONT GROUP EMPLOYEE 2016-2018 SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN”
On June 12, 2018, in accordance with Article 144-bis of Consob Regulation No. 11971/1999
(the “Issuers’ Regulation”), in addition to Article 2, paragraph 1 of the Delegated Regulation
(EC) 2016/1052 of the Commission of March 8, 2016 (“Regulation EC 1052”), Maire
Tecnimont S.p.A. announced that on June 14, 2018 the treasury share buy-back programme,
as per Article 5 of Regulation (EC) No. 596/2014 (the “MAR”), in service of the second cycle of
the “Maire Tecnimont Group Employee 2016-2018 Share Ownership Plan”, will launch, as
approved by the Shareholders’ AGM of April 27, 2016 (the “Programme”).
The Programme, launched in execution of the Shareholders’ AGM motion of April 26, 2017
authorising the acquisition and utilisation of treasury shares for a duration of 18 months, shall
be executed utilising the safe harbours set out as per the MAR, in accordance with the
following terms and conditions:
– the purchases shall be carried out on the Mercato Telematico Azionario (MTA) organised and
managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., through Banca IMI S.p.A. as the intermediary appointed for
execution of the programme, according to the means and the operating limits set out by the
Shareholders’ AGM motion authorising the acquisition and utilisation of treasury shares stated
above, under Article 5 of the MAR, Article 3 of Regulation EC 1052 and any other applicable
Italian or European regulation;
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– the number of shares to be acquired is 1,200,000 ordinary shares, corresponding to 0.365%
of the total number of ordinary shares, exclusively to be allocated in service of the “Maire
Tecnimont Group Employee 2016-2018 Share Ownership Plan”;
– taking account of the current Maire Tecnimont share price (June 12, 2018), the maximum
payment per transaction is estimated at approx. Euro 6,000,000;
– the acquisitions shall be made for an amount not exceeding the higher between the price of
the last independent transaction and the highest current bid price on the Mercato Telematico
Azionario (MTA) organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., and subject to the fact that
this amount should not be 10% lower or higher than the Maire Tecnimont share price in the
preceding trading session for each transaction;
– the volume of treasury share purchases each day should not exceed 25% of the average
daily volume of Maire Tecnimont shares traded on the Mercato Telematico Azionario (MTA)
organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., calculated on the basis of the average
trading volumes over the 20 trading days preceding the acquisition date;
As per Article 5, paragraphs 1 (b) and 3 of the MAR and Article 2, paragraphs 2 and 3 of
Regulation (EC) 1052, Maire Tecnimont shall disclose transactions made under the Programme
to Consob and the Market in both an aggregated and detailed manner, also through its
website, according to the deadline established by the applicable regulation.
On June 20, 2018, as part of the treasury share buy-back plan, Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.
communicated - in accordance with Article 2, paragraph 3 of Delegated Regulation (EC)
2016/1052 of the Commission of March 8, 2016 (the “EC 1052 Regulation”) - the acquisition
on the Mercato Telematico Azionario (MTA) organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.,
in the period between June 14, 2018 and June 19, 2018 inclusive, of a total of 500,000
treasury shares (corresponding to 0.15% of the total number of ordinary shares), at an
average weighted price of Euro 4.174, for a total amount of Euro 2,087,182.15.
On June 30, 2018, 472,180 shares from the Program had been assigned to foreign Plan
Beneficiaries.
Between July 4, 2018 and July 10, 2018 inclusive, 663,721 treasury shares were acquired
(corresponding to 0.20% of the total number of ordinary shares), at an average weighted
price of Euro 4.254, for a total amount of Euro 2,823,345.16.
Taking into account also the shares already acquired in the June 12, 2018 - June 30, 2018
inclusive period, all shares concerning the Second Cycle (year 2017) of the Plan had been
acquired and therefore the relative Program was completed. All the Second Cycle (year 2017)
shares were assigned to the Plan Beneficiaries by July 25, 2018.
MAIRE TECNIMONT: AWARDING OF EURO 1.3 BILLION SUB-CONTRACT ON AMURSKY
PROJECT IN RUSSIA
On May 25 – Maire Tecnimont, at the St. Petersburg International Economic Forum (SPIEF),
one of the key annual international conferences, signed a construction sub-contract
agreement involving Tecnimont - the main Group contractor (through its subsidiary Tecnimont
Russia) - and the sub-contractor Renaissance Heavy Industries. The agreement is in
implementation of the Euro 3.9 billion mega agreement signed last year with Amursky Gas
Processing Plant, under execution by the Maire Tecnimont Group in Svobodny (in the Eastern
region of Amur, Russian Federation) for Jsc Nipigaspererabotka (NipiGas), a Gazprom Group
general contractor.
Rhi is a construction services and EPC contracts specialist contractor and with extensive
experience in Russia. It is part of Rönesans Holding, a construction, real estate, investments,
power generation, health and education sector Group. Once completed, the entire complex
will be one of the largest gas treatment plants in the world and constituting a fundamental
element of Gazprom’s strategic plan for the supply of Russian natural gas to China.
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2. Group operating performance
The Maire Tecnimont Group H1 2018 key financial highlights (compared to H1 2017) are
reported below:
(in Euro thousands)

H1 2018

%

H1 2017

%

Change

Performance indicators:

Revenues

1,830,574

1,653,138

177,436

10.7%
4.8%

Business Profit (*)

138,072

7.5%

131,696

8.0%

6,376

EBITDA (**)

100,289

5.5%

96,242

5.8%

4,047

4.2%

EBIT

95,984

5.2%

92,654

5.6%

3,330

3.6%

Net financial expense

(7,612)

(0.4%)

8,203

0.5%

(15,815)

(192.8%)

Income before tax

88,372

4.8%

100,858

6.1%

(12,485)

(12.4%)

Income taxes

(28,496)

(1.6%)

(35,460)

(2.1%)

6,964

(19.6%)

Tax rate

(32.2%)

(35.2%)

N/A

Net income

59,876

3.3%

65,398

4.0%

(5,522)

(8.4%)

Group net income

55,341

3.0%

61,749

3.7%

(6,408)

(10.4%)

(1) “Business Profit” is the industrial margin before the allocation of general and administrative costs and research
and development expenses; its percentage of revenues is the Business Margin.
(**) EBITDA is net income for the period before taxes (current and deferred), net financial expenses, currency
exchange differences, gains and losses on the valuation of holdings, amortization and depreciation and provisions.
EBITDA is a measure utilized by management to monitor and assess the operating performance. Management
consider EBITDA a key parameter in measuring the Group’s performance as not impacted by the effects of differing
criteria applied to taxable income, the amount and characteristics of the capital utilized and by amortization and
depreciation. As EBITDA is not governed by the Group’s accounting standards, the Group calculation criteria may not
be uniform with those adopted by other groups and, therefore, may not be comparable.

The H1 2018 key financial highlights (compared to H1 2017) are reported below:
(in Euro millions)

H1 2018

H1 2017*

Change %

1,830.6

1,653.1

10.7%

138.1

131.7

4.8%

Business Margin

7.5%

8.0%

EBITDA

100.3

90.1(2)

EBITDA Margin

5.5%

5.5%

Income before tax

88.4

72.6 (3)

32.2%

35.2%

59.9

47.1 (3)

Revenues
Business Profit

(1)

Tax Rate
Consolidated Net Income

*
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For comparison with H1 2018, the H1 2017 figures were amended as
described in notes (1) and (2):

11.3%

21.6%

27.1%

Adjusted figure, recalculated as per IFRS 15 retrospectively to 2017, with a negative impact of Euro 6.1
million on EBITDA.
(2) Adjusted figure, recalculated applying respectively to 2017 IFRS 15 (with a negative impact of Euro 6.1
million on EBITDA) and excluding the positive one-off impact of Euro 22.1 million from derivatives related to
the convertible bond.
(1)

The Maire Tecnimont Group in H1 2018 reported production volumes of Euro 1,830.6 million,
up 10.7% on H1 2017 (Euro 1,653.1 million).
The increase in volumes reflects progress on backlog projects and refers to the main EPC
contracts which are now in the full construction phase.
The Group reports a Business Profit of Euro 138.1 million for H1 2018, increasing 4.8% on
Euro 131.7 million for H1 2017. The H1 2018 Consolidated Business Margin was 7.5%,
reducing on 8% for H1 2017.
The reduced margin concerns the Technology, Engineering & Construction BU and a differing
mix of contracts in progress in the period compared to the same period of the previous year,
however in line with recent quarters.
G&A costs were Euro 35.5 million, increasing approx. Euro 2.8 million. They however reduced
on consolidated revenues, from 2% in H1 2017 to 1.9% in H1 2018 - in line with recent
quarters.
The Group, taking account also of R&D costs of approx. Euro 2.3 million in H1 2018, reports
EBITDA of Euro 100.3 million (+4.2% on Euro 96.2 million for H1 2017 and up 11.3% on the
H1 2017 adjusted figure). The margin was 5.5%, in line with recent quarters and also the H1
2017 adjusted figure.
Amortization, depreciation, write-downs and provisions amounted to Euro 4.3 million,
increasing on H1 2017 (Euro 3.6 million) following the initiation of amortization and
depreciation of new Group operating assets.
Net financial expenses amounted to Euro 7.6 million, against income in the comparative
period of Euro 8.2 million, with the latter mainly owing to the non-recurring positive
contribution from the net valuation of derivative instruments - although improving Euro 6.3
million on the adjusted 2017 figure of Euro 13.9 million. The H1 2018 figure also includes a
net negative component of Euro 1.8 million related to the “time value” of currency derivatives.
Income before tax was Euro 88.4 million, reducing 12.4%, with estimated taxes of Euro 28.5
million. The decrease exclusively relates to the financial management result - although an
increase of 21.6% is reported in the 2017 adjusted figure.
The effective tax rate was approx. 32.2%, improving on the adjusted average tax rate
reported for the preceding quarters and on the same period of the previous year (35.2%),
based on the various countries in which operations are carried out.
Net Income for the first half of 2018 was Euro 59.9 million, compared to Euro 65.4 million for
H1 2017, although increasing 27.1% on the 2017 adjusted figure.
Group net income amounted to Euro 55.3 million, compared to Euro 61.7 million for the same
period in 2017, although up 27.1% on the 2017 adjusted figure.
In the first half of 2018, Group commercial operations generated new orders worth Euro
1,536.7 million.
The Backlog at June 30, 2018 was Euro 6,904.2 million, slightly decreasing on Euro 325.2
million at December 31, 2017. The H1 2018 figure does not include order intake in the days
subsequent to period end, as outlined in detail in the “Subsequent events” paragraph.
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3. Performance by Business Unit
INTRODUCTION
Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. heads an integrated industrial group providing engineering services
and works in the following sectors of the domestic and international markets - (I) Technology,
Engineering & Construction; - (II) Infrastructure & Civil Engineering.
The BU figures are in line with the internal reporting structure utilized by company Top
Management. The features of these sectors are outlined below:
I.

“Technology, Engineering & Construction” Business Unit - designs and
constructs plant, principally for the “natural gas chain” (involving separation,
treatment, liquefaction, transport, storage, regasification and compression and
pumping stations); designs and constructs chemical and petrochemical industry plant
for the production, in particular, of polyethylene and polypropylene (polyolefin),
ethylene oxide, ethylene glycol, purified terephthalic acid ("PTA"), ammonia, urea and
fertilizers; issues, in addition, within the fertilizer sector, licenses on patented
technology and proprietary know-how to current and potential urea producers. Other
major activities related to the sulphur recovery process, hydrogen production and high
temperature furnaces. It is also engaged in the design and construction of hydrocarbon electric power plant and waste-to-energy and district heating plant.

II.

“Infrastructure & Civil Engineering” Business Unit - engaged in the design and
construction of major infrastructural projects (such as roads and motorways, rail lines,
underground and surface metro lines, tunnels, bridges and viaducts) and industrial and
commercial and tertiary sector facilities and buildings; it provides environmental
services for infrastructure, civil and industrial construction and energy sector projects
and plant in general. The Group provides maintenance and facility management
services, in addition to general services for temporary construction facilities and
Operation & Maintenance services. It also works on large-scale renewables sector plant
(mainly solar and wind).

The Maire Tecnimont Group H1 2018 key financial highlights by Business Unit (compared to
H1 2017) are reported below:
(in Euro
thousands)

Technology, Engineering &
Construction

Infrastructure & Civil
Engineering

Total

Total

%

Total

%

Total

%

1,743,170
134,590

7.7%

87,404
3,482

4.0%

1,830,574
138,072

7.5%

99,743

5.7%

546

0.6%

100,289

5.5%

1,592,016
129,290

8.1%

61,122
2,407

3.9%

1,653,138
131,696

8.0%

96,068

6.0%

172

0.3%

96,242

5.8%

Change H1 2018 vs H1 2017
Revenues
151,154
Business Margin
5,300

9.5%

26,282
1,076

43.0%
44.7%

177,436
6,376

10.7%

4.1%

EBITDA

3.8%

374

217.3%

4,047

4.2%

H1 2018
Revenues
Business Margin
EBITDA
H1 2017
Revenues
Business Margin
EBITDA
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3,675

4.8%

TECHNOLOGY, ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION BUSINESS UNIT
H1 2018 revenues amounted to Euro 1,743.2 million (Euro 1,592 million in H1 2017), up
9.5% on the previous year.
The increase in volumes reflects progress on backlog projects and refers to the main EPC
contracts which are now in the full construction phase, in continuity with the final quarters of
2017.
The H1 2018 Business Profit increased to Euro 134.6 million (Euro 129.3 million for H1 2017).
H1 2018 EBITDA was Euro 99.7 million (Euro 96.1 million in H1 2017), with a margin of 5.7%
(6% in H1 2017); this performance is reflective of the business margin, as previously
outlined.

INFRASTRUCTURE & CIVIL ENGINEERING BUSINESS UNIT
H1 2018 revenues of Euro 87.4 million rose 43% on the previous year (H1 2017 revenues of
Euro 61.1 million), as a result of the advancement of orders in portfolio acquired in the large
renewables plant sector and the recommencement of a construction project in the hospital
sector.
The H1 2018 Business Profit was Euro 3.5 million (Euro 2.4 million in H1 2017). In addition,
the Business margin for H1 2018 was 4.0%, slightly increasing on 3.9% in H1 2017.
EBITDA in H1 2018 was Euro 0.5 million after the absorption of G&A costs, while in H1 2017
reporting a slight profit of Euro 172 thousand.

The following tables outline the Revenues, Business Profit and EBITDA by Business Unit
commented upon above.
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VALUE OF PRODUCTION BY REGION:
The regional breakdown of Revenues in H1 2018 compared to the previous year are illustrated
below:
(in Euro thousands)

Italy

H1 2018

H1 2017

Change

Total

%

Total

%

Total

%

213,898

11.7%

156,659

9.5%

57,239

36.5%

Overseas
•

Europe EU

94,570

5.2%

149,526

9.0%

(54,956)

(36.8%)

•

Europe non-EU

332,636

18.2%

345,004

20.9%

(12,368)

(3.6%)

•

Middle East

771,614

42.2%

549,945

33.3%

221,669

40.3%

•

The Americas

67,093

3.7%

59,475

3.6%

7,618

12.8%

•

Africa

76,581

4.2%

136,492

8.3%

(59,911)

(43.9%)

•

Asia

274,182

15.0%

256,037

15.5%

18,145

7.1%

177,436

10.7%

Total Consolidated Revenues
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1,830,574

1,653,138

The main regional revenue sources were the Middle East (42.2%) and Europe – non-EU
(18.2%). As evident from the Revenues by Business Unit table, this figure highlights the
significant contribution of the “Technology, Engineering & Construction” Business Unit in the
Middle East, in which the Group has a long-standing presence and in relation to the Non-EU
Europe area reflects the development of the current activities in Russia.

4. Backlog by Business Unit and Region
The following tables outline the Group’s Backlog, broken down by Business Unit at June 30,
2018, net of third party shares and compared with December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2017:

BACKLOG BY BUSINESS UNIT
(in Euro thousands)

Technology,
Engineering &
Construction

Infrastructure & Civil
Engineering

Total

Initial Order Backlog at 01/01/2018

6,864,257

365,109

7,229,366

Adjustments/Eliminations (**)
2018 Order Intake
Revenues net of third parties (*)

(44,236)
1,491,908
1,742,435

12,211
44,748
87,404

(32,025)
1,536,656
1,829,839

Backlog at 30/06/2018

6,569,494

334,664

6,904,158

(*)

Backlog revenues are net of third party shares of Euro 0.7 million.

(**) H1 2018 Adjustment/Eliminations principally reflect portfolio currency adjustments.
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(Euro thousands)
Backlog at
31.12.2017

6,864,257
365,109

Backlog at
30.06.2018

Technology, Engineering & Construction

Change June 2018 vs
December 2017

6,569,494

8,178,702

(1,609,208)

(19.7%)

(294,763)

(4.3%)

334,664

422,715

(88,051)

(20.8%)

(30,445)

(8.3%)

6,904,158

8,601,418

(1,697,259) (19.7%)

(325,208)

(4.5%)

Infrastructure & Civil Engineering

7,229,366 Total

Change June 2018 vs
June 2017

Backlog at
30.06.2017

The Backlog at June 30, 2018 was Euro 6,904.2 million, slightly decreasing on Euro 325.2
million at December 31, 2017. The H1 2018 figure does not include order intake in the days
subsequent to period end, as outlined in detail in the “Subsequent events” paragraph.

BACKLOG BY REGION
The following table outlines the Group’s Backlog, broken down by Region at June 30, 2018,
net of third party shares and compared with December 31, 2017 and June 30, 2017:
(in Euro thousands)

Italy

Overseas

Europe (EU)

Europe
EU)

(non-

Initial Order Backlog at
01/01/2018

335,037

89,311

4,127,516

Adjustments/Eliminations (**)

(14,777)

52,354

2018 Order Intake

101,982

89,709

Revenues net of third parties

200,297

221,946

Backlog at 30/06/2018

Middle East The Americas

Africa

Asia

517,558

1,459,969

111,531

588,443

(103,562)

7,442

(35,401)

30,659

31,260

(32,025)

185,853

59,901

81,321

84,967

932,923

1,536,656

107,239

332,636

771,563

67,714

76,208

274,182

1,829,839

124,135

3,877,171

755,748

89,737

627,862

1,207,559

6,904,158

(*) Backlog revenues are net of third party shares of Euro 0.7 million.
(**) H1 2018 Adjustment/Eliminations principally reflect portfolio currency adjustments.
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Total

7,229,366

( in E uro thousands)

Backlog at
31.12.2017

335,037
89,311
4,127,516
1,459,969

Italy
Europe (EU)
Europe (non-EU)
Middle East

111,531

The Americas

588,443

Africa

517,558

Asia

Backlog at
30.06.2018

Backlog at
30.06.2017

221,946

447,960

Change June 2018 vs June
2017

(226,014)

(50.5%)

124,135

181,043

(56,908)

(31.4%)

3,877,171

4,341,105

(463,934)

(10.7%)

755,748

1,961,041

(1,205,293)

(61.5%)

89,737

159,846

(70,109)

(43.9%)

627,862

756,848

(128,986)

(17.0%)

1,207,559

753,574

453,984

60.2%

(1,697,258)

(19.7%)

0
7,229,366

Total

6,904,158

8,601,418

ORDER INTAKE BY BUSINESS UNIT AND REGION
The table below outlines H1 2018 Group Order Intake broken down by Business Unit and
Region and compared with the previous year:
(in Euro thousands)

H1 2018

H1 2017

% of
total

Change 2018 vs 2017

% of
total

Order Intake by Business Unit

Technology, Engineering &
Construction
Infrastructure & Civil Engineering
Total

1,491,908

97.1%

3,965,977

99.7%

44,748

2.9%

11,285

0.3%

1,536,656

100.0%

3,977,261

100.0%

(2,474,069)

(62.4%)

33,464

296.5%

(2,440,605) (61.4%)

Order Intake by Region:

17

Directors’ Report

(in Euro thousands)

H1 2018

Italy
Europe (EU)
Europe (non-EU)

H1 2017

Change 2018 vs 2017

101,982

6.6%

59,378

1.5%

42,604

71.7%

89,709

5.8%

5,349

0.1%

84,360

1577.1%

185,853

12.1%

3,842,390

96.6%

(3,656,538)

(95.2%)

Middle East

59,901

3.9%

20,100

0.5%

39,802

198.0%

The Americas

81,321

5.3%

12,107

0.3%

69,215

571.7%

Africa
Asia
Total

84,967

5.5%

18,141

0.5%

66,826

368.4%

932,923

60.7%

19,796

0.5%

913,127

4612.7%

1,536,656

100.0%

3,977,261

100.0%

(2,440,605) (61.4%)

In the first half of 2018, Group commercial operations generated new orders worth Euro
1,536.7 million. The principal projects awarded were:
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•

SOCAR (State Oil Company of Azerbaijan Republic) Heydar Aliyev Baku Oil Refinery, an
EPC (Engineering, Procurement, Construction) contract concerning a significant portion
of the works for the modernisation and reconstruction of the Heydar Aliyev refinery in
Baku (Azerbaijan). The contract value is approx. USD 800 million.

•

JSC Gazprom Neft – Omsk Refinery, an EPCm (Engineering, Procurement, and
Construction management) contract for the execution of the “Delayed Coking Unit”
(DCU) project at the Omsk Refinery in the Russian Federation. The total contract value
is USD 215 million, on a multi-currency basis.

•

JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation (JGSPC) for the construction of a new highdensity polyethylene unit (HDPE) and the extension of a polypropylene (PP) unit 120
km from Manila, at Batangas City, Philippines. JGSPC, part of the JS Summit Holdings
Group, is the largest polyethylene producer in the Philippines. The contract was
awarded as a joint venture with JGC Philippines (Tecnimont Philippines 65% - JGC
Philippines 35%); whose total EPC Lump Sum contract value is in the USD 180 million
range.

•

Belayim Petroleum Company (PETROBEL) confirmed KT as supplier in Phase 2 of the
ZOHR project for the construction of nine sulfur units (Claus units, Tail gas treatment,
SO2 Scrubber). The total value of the contract is USD 93 million.

•

HPCL MUMBAY REFINERY EXPANSION PROJECT (NEW HPU UNIT) contract worth
approx. Euro 87.7 million for the LEPCC (License-Engineering-ProcurementConstruction-Commissioning) of a new hydrogen production unit which is part of the
refinery expansion project at Mumbai (MREP), Maharashtra, India. This contract was
awarded by Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL), one of the most
important Indian public sector companies.

•

INA RIJEKA REFINERY Propane/Propylene Splitter (PPS), storage & Interconnecting
EPCC contract (Engineering-Procurement-Construction-Commissioning) for a value of
approx. Euro 57 million for a new Propane Proylene Splitter (PPS) plant including
storage and inter-connecting, at the INA Rijeka refinery, in Croatia. The contract was
awarded by INA Industrija Nafte, one of the main Croatian groups in the industrial
sector.

ANALYSIS
BACKLOG

OF THE

“TECHNOLOGY, ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION” BUSINESS UNIT

The Backlog at June 30, 2018 compared with the previous year is as follows:
(in Euro thousands)

Technology,
Construction

Engineering

&

Backlog at
30.06.2018

Backlog at
30.06.2017

Change June 2018
vs June 2017
%

6,569,494

8,178,702

(1,609,208) (19.7%)

The “Technology, Engineering & Construction” Business Unit Backlog at June 30, 2018 was
Euro 6,569.5 million, decreasing on the previous year Euro 1,609.2 million (-19.7%). The H1
2018 figure does not include order intake in the days subsequent to period end, as outlined in
detail in the “Subsequent events” paragraph.

PROJECTS IN PROGRESS:
AMUR (Russia) Tecnimont S.p.A., as majority leader of the consortium including Tecnimont
Russia, the Chinese company Sinopec Engineering Group (SEG) and its subsidiary Sinopec
Ningbo Engineering Corp., signed in June 2017 a contract with JSC NIPIgaspererabotka
(NIPIGas), a general contractor of Gazprompererabotka Blagoveshchensk LLC, part of the
Gazprom Group. The contract concerns the execution of package No.3 for the Amursky (AGPP)
gas treatment plant, comprising the utilities, off sites and plant infrastructure, to be carried
out close to the city of Svobodny, in the Amur district. The project scope includes all of the
engineering, procurement, construction, commissioning and performance test activities for the
Amur GPP project. Engineering is 43.7% complete, with material procurement at 19.4%, while
construction is 0.2% complete. The total advancement of the project is 8.6%.Project
completion is scheduled for the end of 2023.
ADCO (United Arab Emirates) Tecnimont S.p.A. on December 11, 2014 signed an EPC
contract with Abu Dhabi Company for Onshore Oil Operations (ADCO) for construction of
phase III of the Al Dabb’iya Surface Facilities project in Abu Dhabi, UAE. The project involves
EPC operations until the Performance Tests for the expansion of the existing plant - including
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in particular: the collection of crude oil through a pipeline network; a Central Process Plant
(CPP); the relative oil and associated gas export pipeline. The engineering has been
completed, with the delivery of materials substantially completed (progress >99.99%), while
construction is at 83% advancement (excluding precommissioning). The plant completion
date, agreed with the client, is December 2018 and is followed by a warranty period of 12
months.
OMAN OIL REFINERIES and PETROLEUM INDUSTRIES COMPANY - SAOC (ORPIC),
(Oman), for the construction of 2 polyethylene plant and a polypropylene plant, in addition to
the associate utilities. The contract relates to one of the four packages comprising the Liwa
Plastic Complex (LPIC) Project. The units will be located in the Sohar Industrial Port Area. The
project, announced in December 2015, received Notice-to-Proceed on May 4, 2016 and has a
duration of 44 months. The project includes engineering services, the provision of equipment
and materials and construction until testing, start-up and the performance tests. The overall
advancement of the project is 74% (Engineering 96.5%; Procurement 88.1%; Construction
50.5%), in line with the work program agreed with the Client. Currently, all construction
companies (civil, mechanic, HVAC and electro-instrumental) are on-site and with mechanical
works constituting the majority of activity. Plant delivery is scheduled by January 4, 2020,
the contractual Initial Acceptance Certificate date, followed by a warranty period of 12
months.
SOCAR POLYMER HDPE, (Azerbaijan) In December 2015 Tecnimont S.p.A. and KT – Kinetics
Technology S.p.A. agreed with SOCAR POLYMER a lump sum EPC 120 kTpY polyethylene plant
construction contract in Sumgayit (30 KM north of Baku). This contract follows the order
awarded in April 2015 by the same client Socar Polymer. The project includes engineering
services, the provision of equipment and materials and construction until the start-up of the
plant and the performance tests. The home office services have reached 99.9% completion,
with procurement/manufacturing 99.7% compete, while construction has reached 86.9%
progress. The total advancement of the project is 94.8%. Completion is scheduled for
November 2018.
SOCAR POLYMER PP (Azerbaijan) In April 2015 Tecnimont S.p.A. and KT – Kinetics
Technology S.p.A. agreed with SOCAR POLYMER a lump sum EPC 180 kTpY polypropylene
plant construction contract in Sumgayit (30 KM north of Baku). The project includes
engineering services, the provision of equipment and materials and construction until the
start-up of the plant and the performance tests. The home office services have reached 100%
completion, with procurement/manufacturing 100% compete, while construction has reached
99% progress. The total advancement of the project is 99.6%. Completion is scheduled for Q3
2018.
ADGAS (United Arab Emirates). On February 3, 2015, Tecnimont S.p.A., in consortium with
the company Archirodon, received from the Client ABU DHABI GAS LIQUEFACTION COMPANY
LTD (ADGAS) the “Letter of Award”, followed on March 12, 2015 by the signing of the
Signature Agreement, for construction of the Package 1 IGD Expansion Project in Abu DhabiDasIsland, United Arab Emirates. The project involves EPC (Engineering, Procurement &
Construction) operations until the Performance Tests for the expansion of the existing plant on
the island. Tecnimont’s role principally centers on expansion of the gas drying plant with the
installation of an additional unit and related structures, while Archirodon will be involved in the
preparation of the site with backfill and civil works and sea works along the western coast of
Das Island for the above-stated expansion, including further preparation works upon the site
with backfill for the IGD-E2 package (upcoming plant expansion project). The total
advancement of the project is 99.4% (TCM portion). Specifically: engineering has reached
100% completion, with procurement of materials 100%, construction 100% and
commissioning 97.7% (the remainder concerns the unavailability for TCM purposes of the new
pipeline). The consortium Partner Archirodon has substantially completed its works. The
Provisional Acceptance Certificate (PAC) was sent on June 16, 2018, as per the contract and
the unavailability of the new pipeline (non-TCM scope) is currently being handled. A
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mechanical warranty period of 12 months will follow before issue of the Final Acceptance
Certificate (FAC).
KINGISEPP (Russia) - acquired in June 2015, the project is executed under two Lump-SumTurn-Key Contracts between JSC “Eurochem NorthWest”, a EuroChem Group AG
(“EuroChem”) subsidiary and a global agro-chemical sector leader, Tecnimont S.p.A and
Tecnimont Russia. The Client is availing of SACE financing. The project involves
the
construction of a new industrial grass root plant for the production and storage of ammonia,
based on KBR technology and of 2,700 Tons per day capacity. The site is within an existing
industrial complex close to the city of Kingisepp. The overall physical state of project
advancement is 91%. Engineering activities have concluded, with material Procurement
substantially completed. Construction has reached 75% completion and the auxiliary systems
are in the start-up phase. Production is expected to start in 2018, with completion in the first
quarter of 2019.
CORU – MOSCOW REFINERY (Russia), in June, a letter of intent was signed with JSC
Gazprom Neft for construction of the Combined Oil Refinery Unit (CORU) Project at the
existing Moscow Refinery in the Russian Federation. The contract was signed on October 5,
2015. It covers Detail Engineering, Procurement and Construction Management services.
Engineering is 100% complete, with material procurement at 99.9%, while construction is
67.8% complete. The total advancement of the project is 96.8%. The Mechanical Completion
and project completion (RFSU – Ready for Start-Up), as a consequence of the agreement
between the client and the general construction contractor, are respectively scheduled for 39
months and 42 months from the Work Commencement Date (WCD) of June 2015.
HDPE MALAYSIA – PETRONAS (Malaysia), in November 2016 Tecnimont was awarded as
part of a joint venture with China Huan Qiu Contracting & Engineering Corporation L.td. (HQC)
an EPCC Lump Sum Turn Key project for the construction of a high density polypropylene unit
for the RAPID (Refinery and Petrochemical Integrated Development) complex by PRPC
Polymers Sdn Bhd (PRPC Polymers) - (“PETRONAS”) Group. The HDPE unit, based on the
Hostalen Advance Cascade Process (HACP) technology of Lyondel Basell, will have a capacity
of 400 tons/year and will be constructed at the RAPID complex, located in Pengerang, SouthEastern Johor, Malaysia. The project includes engineering services, the provision of equipment
and materials and construction until the start-up of the plant and the performance tests.
Engineering is 99.1% complete, with material procurement at 94.6%, while construction is
45.6% complete. The total advancement of the project is 73.1%. Mechanical completion,
scheduled for March 9, 2019, permits the achievement of Ready for Start Up on May 9, 2019.
On issue of the PAC, expected on July 9, 2019, a period of twelve months for achievement of
Final Acceptance will follow.
PP MALAYSIA – PETRONAS (Malaysia), in November 2015 Tecnimont was awarded as part
of a joint venture with China Huan Qiu Contracting & Engineering Corporation L.td. (HQC) an
EPCC Lump Sum Turn Key project for the construction of two polypropylene units for the
RAPID (Refinery and Petrochemical Integrated Development) complex. The two units will be
constructed at the RAPID complex, located in Pen Gerang in South-East Johor, Malaysia. The
project includes engineering services, the provision of equipment and materials and
construction until the start-up of the plant and the performance tests. Engineering is 100%
complete, with material procurement at 100%, while construction is 90% complete. The total
advancement of the project is 93.6%. Mechanical completion, scheduled for the end of August
2018, permits the achievement of Ready for Start Up at the end of November 2018. On issue
of the PAC, expected on April 15, 2019, a period of twelve months for achievement of Final
Acceptance will follow.
Punta Catalina (Santo Domingo) Tecnimont S.p.A., in consortium with Construtora Norberto
Odebrecht S.A. and Ingenieria Estrella S.R.L., was awarded in November 2013 the
construction of a strategically important industrial complex for the country’s development (a
coal fired thermal power plant, an offshore terminal and other related structures). The client is
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CDEEE, the Dominican Republic national electricity company. The project involves the
construction of two coal fired 360 MW plant in Punta Catalina, Dominican Republic. The EPC
contract was signed in April 2014, with effective date set retroactively as February 7, 2014.
Tecnimont will undertake all engineering works (except for the offshore marine and
transmission line works), the procurement of the power island equipment and commissioning
and delivery of the plant with the relative acceptance tests. Engineering has been completed,
with the procurement of materials at 99.99% completion, while construction by CNO is
79.51% complete. Start-up of the first of the two units, with energy generation on the
national Dominican Republic network, is scheduled for January 2019, with start-up of the
second unit in April 2019. The PAC of both the units is scheduled in 2019, followed by a
mechanical warranty period of 12 months.
TEMPA ROSSA (Italy) On April 5, 2012, a temporary consortium (ATI) comprising Tecnimont
S.p.A. and KT S.p.A. was awarded a contract for the Engineering, Procurement, Supply,
Construction and Commissioning of the "Tempa Rossa" Oil & Gas Treatment Centre located
close to Corleto Perticara (Potenza). The client is Total E&P Italia S.p.A., an Italian subsidiary
of the Total Group. The project has reached a 94.4% overall state of advancement. The
engineering activities have been completed, as has procurement, manufacturing and the
delivery of materials on-site (progress of 95.4% - the final supplier documentation is yet to be
delivered). Construction of wells GG1 and GG2 has been completed, while the remaining 4 of
the 6 total wells are under completion (TR2, TR1, TE1 and PT1). Construction of the Corleto
tie-in and of the LPG site currently in the commissioning phase has been completed. Overall,
construction works on the Tempa Rossa project have reached a 92.98% state of
advancement.
KIMA (Egypt) The Lump Sum Turn Key contract was acquired on October 30, 2011 from
Egyptian Chemical & Fertilizers Industries – KIMA, an Egyptian chemical sector group. The
contract involves the construction of a new fertiliser complex for the production of ammonium
with a capacity of 1,200 tonnes per day, and of Urea with a production capacity of 1,575
tonnes per day and relative services. The plant will be constructed at the existing industrial
district in the Assuan region (Northern Egypt). Due to the current political/social situation in
Egypt, client operations have slowed significantly for the sourcing of funding for the initiative.
The situation was successfully resolved at the end of 2015 with the finalization of credit lines
by the client and an increase in Tecnimont’s contractual value. In January 2016,
recommencement of the project was declared. The engineering and home office activities
have substantially concluded, while the site commissioning, begun in February 2016, is 80%
complete.
The total advancement of the project is 86%. The Provisional Acceptance Certificate (PAC) is
expected in April 2019, followed by a 12 month warranty period, on conclusion of which all
obligations will be fully discharged and the Final Acceptance Certificate (FAC) issued.
SLUISKIL – YARA (Netherlands) acquired in July 2015 from the client Yara Sluiskil B.V..
The project involves the lump sum turn key construction of a new urea granulation plant with
a production capacity of 2,000 tons per day, in addition to a number of related units. The
complex will use Yara proprietary technology, enabling production of a special variety of urea,
enriched with sulphur. Engineering is 100% complete, with material procurement at 100%,
while construction is 94% complete. The project is at a 97% state of advancement, with
completion expected at the end of July 2018, followed by a mechanical warranty period of 24
months.
IOWA FERTILIZERS (United States) On September 5, 2012, Tecnimont S.p.A. was awarded
a contract for the complete provision of engineering and material procurement services for the
construction of a new ammonia plant of 2,200 tons per day (MTPD) capacity in Wever (USA).
The scope of works includes Construction Supervision services and commissioning and startup operations. The client is Iowa Fertilizer Company (IFCo). Engineering is 100% complete,
with the physical advancement of the procurement services 100% complete. The total
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advancement of the project is 100%. The PAC was obtained in September 2017. Completion
of the Punch List to obtain the Final Acceptance Certificate (FAC) is currently in progress.
HP-LDPE SADARA (Saudi Arabia) On July 23, 2012, Tecnimont S.p.A. and its subsidiary
Tecnimont Arabia Limited were awarded a contract for the construction of a 350 KTY HP-LDPE
plant (DOW technology) at Al-Jubail, Saudi Arabia. The Client is Sadara Chemical Company, a
Joint Venture between Saudi Aramco and Dow Chemical Company. A 28-month lump sum EPC
contract until Mechanical Completion (including pre-commissioning) was agreed. Any
assistance to commissioning, start-up and the test run will be provided on a reimbursable
basis. On March 27, 2017, Sadara issued the Mechanical Completion Certificate, backdated to
February 14, 2017. The 18-month Warranty Period runs from this date.
LDPE BRATISLAVA – SLOVNAFT (Slovakia) on April 3, 2012, Tecnimont S.p.A. and its
subsidiary Tecnimont Planung und Industrieanlagenbau gmbh were awarded an EPCC
(Engineering - Procurement – Construction - Commissioning) lump sum contract for the
construction of a 220 KTY LDPE plant in Bratislava. The Client is Slovnaft Petrochemicals
s.r.o., a Slovakian petrochemicals company, part of the Hungarian MOL group. The
engineering, procurement, manufacturing, construction and pre-commissioning are 100%
complete. As per the last contractual amendment, on November 26, 2015 Mechanical
Completion of the plant was achieved. The plant entered into production in May 2016. The
extended production, environmental impact and performance tests were completed by
September 2016. The final testing of plant following maintenance was completed successfully.
In April 2018, a final Settlement Agreement was signed with the client, following which in May
2018 the Provisional Acceptance Certificate (PAC) was awarded.
LDPE MESSICO (Mexico) acquired in December 2012 from Etileno XXI Services B.V.. This
concerns an Engineering and Procurement contract for the construction of a low-density
polyethylene unit (LDPE), with a capacity of 300 thousand tons per year, at the Etileno XXI
petrochemical complex in Coatzacoalcos (MX). The project is 100% complete. The as-builts
have been completed and sent to the client, concluding all of Tecnimont’s scope of works. On
conclusion of the warranties (30-6-2019) on certain equipment for required modifications
(make good), the Final Acceptance Certificate will be issued.
LDPE NOVY URENGOY (Russia) - acquired in May 2010 from the Operator C.S. Construction
Solution (UK) Limited with End Client Novy Urengoy GCC (Gas and Chemical Complex). The
contract concerns the provision of materials and assistance by TCM personnel. 27 orders were
issued, with 26 finalized and one to be finalized. In addition, instructions from the client for
the issue of the new orders are awaited. Conclusion of service and supply activities (including
the site reconditioning of materials) is scheduled for 2019.
BOROUGE 3 (United Arab Emirates) - Two turnkey projects through a Joint Venture with
Samsung Engineering Co. Ltd, with Tecnimont as leader with a 55% holding. The Client
Borouge is a Joint Venture between Abu Dhabi National Oil Company (ADNOC) and Borealis.
The two EPC contracts respectively concern: 2 polypropylene (PP) plant and 2 polyethylene
(PE) plant. 1 low density polyethylene plant (LDPE). All plants have started up successfully
and production under the End Client has begun. The Provisional Acceptance Certificate (PAC)
of the PE/PP Plant was issued by the Client on July 26, 2015. For the LDPE Plant, the PAC was
issued on June 17, 2015. The 12-month Mechanical Warranty periods began on these dates
and both have been completed. Currently, the coating period is under warranty, on conclusion
of which the plant Final Acceptance Certificate (FAC) will be issued.
GASCO (United Arab Emirates) under a joint venture with Japan Gas Corporation (JGC), one
of the largest gas development projects globally. The project was officially awarded to
Tecnimont by the company Abu Dhabi Gas Industries Ltd. (GASCO). Operations were
completed as per the project schedule. The home office is engaged only in occasional
assistance to Site operations for the works under guarantee. All of the key milestones have
been reached (Mechanical Completion and Provisional Acceptance (PAC) both for Phase 1 and
Phase 2). The Final Acceptance Certificate (FAC) is expected by 2018.
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LUKOIL – Nizhegorodnefteorgsintez (Russia) October 2017 KT received from OOO LUKOIL
NIZHEGORODNEFTEORGSINTEZ two orders. The first for the Detailed Engineering of the HDT
and HPU units including Hazop, Sil, 3D Model, supply of Long Lead Items (DAP Kstovo
refinery) and transport and customs clearance. The second for the engineering and supply of
Long Lead Items (LLI), on a lump sum basis, for two Sulphur Recovery and HC Gas
Fractionation units located at the Kstovo refinery in Russia. The scope of work as indicated
below involves the Detailed Engineering of the SRU and GFU units including Hazop, Sil, 3D
Model, supply of Long Lead Items (DAP Kstovo Refinery) and transport and customs
clearance. Engineering on the two projects is in progress, with KT coordinators located at the
Russian Design Institute, while for the first project the LLI procurement has been completed,
while under completion for the second.
Progress on the two projects is at 13.9% and 20%
and therefore on schedule. For both projects, formalisation of the contractual amendments in
supplementation of all materials and for construction is in progress.
GRUPA LOTOS - COKING UNIT AND HYDROGEN GENERATION UNIT (Poland), in July
2015 KT was awarded an EPC (Engineering, Procurement and Construction) contract by Lotos
Asfalt Sp. z o. o., a subsidiary of Grupa LOTOS SA, for the extension of a refinery unit at their
Gdansk, Poland plant as part of the EFRA (Effective Refining) project. Grupa Lotos is one of
the largest refinery companies in Poland, engaged in the extraction and processing of oil and
the wholesale of refined petroleum products. Mechanical completion is scheduled for 2018.
The contract covers the installation of a delayed coking unit, a coker naphtha hydrotreating
unit and a hydrogen production unit (developed using KT proprietary technology), in addition
to accessory structures at the Gdansk refinery. In addition, it concerns the use of the best
technology available for the unloading and dewatering of coke. This technology is the most
innovative available as reducing the environmental impact of the delayed coking process. All
materials have been ordered and are available on-site. The piping assembly, electroinstruments and isolation activities are in progress on site.
GRUPA LOTOS – HYDROWAX VACUUM DISTILLATION UNIT (Poland), also at the end of
October 2015, KT received from Grupa Lotos an order (EPC Lump Sum) for the construction of
a “HYDROWAX VACUUM DISTILLATION” plant, to be integrated into the Gdansk refinery in
Poland. The project involves the construction of the HVDU - Hydrowax Vacuum Distillation Unit
(licensed by ThyssenKrupp Uhde Engineering Services) and is part of the extension of the
refinery involving the construction of other units and facilities. The award is part of the abovestated EFRA (Effective Refining) investment program to optimize refinery production
efficiency. Provisional Acceptance was received in May. Punch list activities agreed with the
client are in progress.
PETRO RABIGH (Saudi Arabia), On July 6, 2016, KT and Tecnimont Arabia Limited were
awarded the SRU and Clean Fuel project by Rabigh Refining and Petrochemicals Company (a
joint venture between Saudi Aramco and Sumitomo Chemical), to be constructed within the
Rabigh Petrochemical Complex in Saudi Arabia. It regards the EPC development of a new
Naphta Hydrotreater unit, with a capacity of 17,000 barrels per day, a new sulphur recovery
unit with a capacity of 290 tons per day, in addition to interconnecting works. Mechanical
completion, scheduled for the first quarter of 2019, with the new amendment which reset the
contractual deadlines, was postponed to September 17, 2020. Engineering is 91% complete.
Procurement has concluded for the basic order scope, while in progress for the change order.
All local subcontracting construction work has been allocated. Civil and mechanical works are
in progress.
BELAYIM PETROLEUM COMPANY (PETROBEL) ZOHR DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (Egypt)
- On May 12, 2016, KT received from Belayim Petroleum Company (PETROBEL) the Letter of
Award for a project involving the construction of a Sulphur Recovery Unit and a Tail Gas
Treatment Unit. Consideration is on a Lump Sum basis, to which change orders may be
added. The project is based on modulated supply. Construction on-site is outside of KT’s
contract scope. The initial delivery date of 12 months from the Effective Date was brought
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forward on the client’s request, with an acceleration plan on the basis of lots. Engineering
activities have concluded. The client is finalizing the assembly on-site of the plant for the basic
order units; the first sulfur unit was completed by the client in February 2018 and has startedup, while for the second unit (System B) start-up is in progress. The materials for the fourth
Claus have been completed on schedule; the SO2 Scrubber materials were completed
according to the contractual deadlines.
Other projects: all actions necessary on projects under completion and other minor
engineering and services contracts are being taken.

ANALYSIS
BACKLOG

OF THE

“INFRASTRUCTURE

AND

CIVIL ENGINEERING” BUSINESS UNIT

The Backlog at June 30, 2018 compared with the previous year is as follows:
(in Euro thousands)

Infrastructure & Civil Engineering

Backlog at
30.06.2018

Backlog at
30.06.2017

334,664

422,715

Change June 2018 vs
June 2017
%

(88,051)

(20.8%)

'Infrastructure & Civil Engineering' Backlog (Euro millions)
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The Infrastructure and Civil Engineering Backlog at June 30, 2018 amounts to Euro 334.7
million, decreasing on the previous year Euro 88.1 million (20.8%).
In H1 2018, new contracts were acquired and change orders and project variants agreed
worth Euro 44.7 million.
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PROJECTS IN PROGRESS:
RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS:

Amistad, Wind Plant (Mexico), acquired in 2016 and under completion on behalf of a leading
international utility company. The project, concerning the construction of a new wind park,
which will be among the largest in the country with an installed capacity of 200 MW,
comprises two contracts: one relating to the civil works and one relating to the electromechanical works. The scope of the contract for the civil works includes the execution of road
works and foundations for the installation of 57 turbines. The electro-mechanical works
contract includes the detailed planning, supply, installation, testing and launching of 5 high
tension power lines, 2 high power stations and 2 collateral power stations. The overall physical
state of advancement is approx. 95%. Plant engineering is in progress, while all activities are
expected to conclude in Q3 2018.
RAIL PROJECTS:

Fiumetorto Railway line doubling – (Cefalù, Italy) - acquired in September 2005, the
contract concerns the doubling of the rail line between Fiumetorto and Ogliastrillo and is under
execution on behalf of Rete Ferroviaria Italiana S.p.A.. In the first quarter of 2017, in
accordance with the dates agreed with the client, works on the tunnel platforms also began
and therefore the rail works were substantially completed. On 17/12/2017, the entire line
entered into use. In the first half of 2018, the accessory works will be completed. The overall
physical advancement is more than 95% complete. Taking account also of the additional
changes requested by the client, a further contractual deadline extension application was
presented for completion of the channels and the external works. Part of the reserves
presented to date and considered of highly probable recognition and reliably valued also on
the basis of the opinion of our legal representatives, in addition to technical opinions where
considered appropriate, have already been recognized to the financial statements.
Etihad Railway Project – (Ruwais, UAE), the contract was acquired in October 2011 in
consortium with Saipem SpA and Dodsal Engineering and Construction Pte. The client is Etihad
Rail Company, the developer and operator of the United Arab Emirate national rail system.
The project for the construction of a rail line connecting Ruwais/Habshan (section 1) and
Habshan/Shhah (section 2) for the transport of sulphur has been completed. The trains are
operative and the transfer of sulphur has begun. The warranty period is 24 months. The
negotiations with the client for the recognition of the claims presented are being finalized.
METRO PROJECTS:

Turin Metro – System Works (Turin, Italy). In February 2013, through TRANSFIMA GEIE
(Neosia S.p.A. – Siemens S.a.s.), the framework contract for systemic technological works for
extension of the Lingotto – Benghazi line and the relative Addendums were agreed. The
existing delays in the execution of the civil works, outside of the scope of the contract agreed
with Transfima GEIE, are resulting in a slowdown of the executive works awarded to
Transfima GEIE. On-site works are now scheduled for December 2018. A new five-year
contract running from April 2018 was signed for the maintenance of Line 1. As part however
of the development of the Fermi-Cascine Vica section extension, the contract for the executive
design of the civil works for the Fermi-Collegno section was completed.
Turin Metro – Line 2 Engineering (Turin, Italy). Acquired in December 2017 in consortium
with leading engineering enterprises, the contract involves the preliminary engineering of Line
2 on the Turin Metro and the drafting of a feasibility study for its extension. The client is the
Municipality of Turin. The contractual deadline is the end of December 2018.
Istanbul Metro - Design (Istanbul, Turkey). Acquired in May 2016, the definitive
engineering and preparation of the tender documentation for the Istinye- Itu- Kağithane
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Metropolitan Line was suspended ahead of agreeing with the client, the municipal company
İSTANBUL BÜYÜKŞEHİR BELEDİYESİ, the terms and conditions for continuation.
Gaziantep Metropolitan – Design (Gaziantep, Turkey). Acquired in August 2017, the
contract concerns the preliminary and executive engineering of the Gar-Gaun Metropolitan
Line over a distance of 15 km and 11 stations. The client is the municipal “company”
GAZIANTEP BÜYÜKŞEHİR BELEDİYESİ. The contractual deadline is the end of November 2018.
Rome Metro - B1 Line Extension – (Rome, Italy) - acquired in 2005. The contract is
currently under execution on behalf of Roma Metropolitane (Municipality of Rome) by a
consortium comprising Salini-Impregilo S.p.A., Neosia S.p.A. and ICOP S.p.A.. Both sections
are in commercial operation. The procedure initiated before the Ordinary Court continued for
recognition of the reserves requested under Article 240.
CIVIL AND INDUSTRIAL PROJECTS:

Alba-Brà Hospital (Verduno, Italy) - acquired in November 2015 under a “construction and
management” contract signed with ASL CN2. The initiative is headed by the project company
MGR Verduno S.p.A. (Neosia 96% and Gesto 4%). The structural works were completed and
the plant works and internal fitting out continues. The works have reached slightly over 75%
completion. In February 2017, addendum No. 3 was agreed, setting the amount of the public
grant and reviewing the Economic and Financial Plan, while also establishing the deadline for
completion of works as September 30, 2018 and the initiation of the management phase as
October 1, 2018.
Avio Plant - (Colleferro, Italy) - contract signed in August 2015 with the client Avio S.p.A..
The project involves the design and construction of the Vega and Ariane 6 carbon fiber
modules production plant extension. Works have substantially being completed in accordance
with the contractual deadlines. A number of residual activities are under completion and the
testing phase will begin. Additional contracts related to works at the Colleferro site are being
finalised.
“Birillo” University Complex - (Florence, Italy); a project financing scheme by the
University of Florence undertaken by the subsidiary Birillo 2007 Scarl, it was necessary, in
accordance with the agreement, to initiate in August 2011 an arbitration procedure to
rebalance the financial terms of the initiative. In 2016, the parties sought to reach an
amicable settlement of the disputed matters and set out solutions to complete the initiative.
During the period, the structure elevation works were completed. Works are at approx. 25%
advancement.
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5. Group balance sheet and financial position
The Maire Tecnimont Group key balance sheet highlights at June 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017 were as follows:

Maire Tecnimont Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheet

June 30, 2018

December 31, 2017

Change

Non-current assets

519,767

500,401

19,366

Inventories/Advances to Suppliers

316,446

258,967

57,479

(in Euro thousands)

Construction contracts

1,370,949

1,264,178

106,771

Trade receivables

420,883

481,342

(60,459)

Cash and cash equivalents

582,662

630,868

(48,206)

Other current assets

210,415

263,820

(53,405)

2,901,355

2,899,175

2,181

0

0

0

3,421,122

3,399,576

21,546

Group shareholders’ equity

265,028

261,953

3,075

Minorities Shareholders' Equity

26,838

21,817

5,021

Financial debt - non-current portion

164,888

324,602

(159,714)

Other non-current financial liabilities

202,517

39,719

162,798

Other non-current liabilities

191,526

184,332

7,194

Non-current liabilities

558,930

548,652

10,278

Short-term debt

156,916

103,943

52,973

330

79,911

(79,581)

Client advance payments

513,845

573,783

(59,938)

Construction contracts

402,440

408,561

(6,121)

1,331,110

1,282,306

48,804

Current assets
Assets held for sale, net of eliminations
Total assets

Other financial liabilities

Trade payables
Other current liabilities

165,685

118,649

47,036

2,570,326

2,567,154

3,172

Liabilities held for sale, net of eliminations

0

0

0

Total Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities

3,421,122

3,399,576

21,546

Current liabilities

“Non-current assets” increased on the previous year, principally due to the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from the application of the new standards IFRS 15 & IFRS 9.
“Current assets” also increased on the previous year, by Euro 2,181 thousand, with the main
changes concerning the working capital movements on the main orders, as per the contractual
terms and a general and continuous growth of production volumes again in the first half of
2018.
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 582,662 thousand, a decrease of
Euro 48,206 thousand compared to December 31, 2017.
The main cash flow movements are reported below:
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Cash Flow Statement

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

Change

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (A)

630,868

497,138

133,730

Cash flow generated/absorbed by operating activities (B)

(32,621)

1,539

(34,161)

Cash flow generated/absorbed by investing activities (C)

(5,253)

(7,533)

2,281

Cash flow generated/absorbed by financing activities (D)

(10,333)

16,178

(26,511)

(48,207)

10,184

(58,391)

582,662

507,322

75,340

0

0

0

582,662

507,322

75,340

(in Euro thousands)

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (B+C+D)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (A+B+C+D)
of which: Cash and cash equivalents of Discontinued Operations

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period reported in financial statements

Cash of Euro 32,621 thousand was absorbed by operating activities, as reflecting the expected
working capital changes relating to the normal execution of projects which, during the full
execution phase, absorb cash, while partially offset by new recently acquired contracts.
Investing activities absorbed cash for Euro 5,253 thousand, mainly due to the costs incurred
for the installation of software and other applications, license development and new
technology, in addition to capex as a result of the overall growth of the Group.
Financing activities also absorbed cash of Euro 10,333 thousand, principally due to the
payment of the dividend approved by the Shareholders’ AGM of Euro 42,064 thousand and the
residual purchase of treasury shares for approx. Euro 25 million, in addition to interest paid in
the period.
These effects were partially offset by the utilisation of factoring operations for the working
capital management of certain projects and current account overdrafts, and financial income
related to the settlement of the residual portions of the cash-settled Total Return Equity Swap
(TRES) derivative instruments. In addition, during the period Euro 10 million was repaid as
per the repayment plan for the original Euro 350 million loan undertaken by the subsidiary
Tecnimont S.p.A.; an additional Euro 165 million was thereafter repaid following the issue on
May 3 of a non-convertible bond for a similar amount by Maire Tecnimont S.p.A..
The Net Financial Position is outlined in the following table:
NET FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018

December 31,
2017

156,916

103,943

52,973

330

79,911

(79,581)

Change

(in Euro thousands)

Short-term debt
Other current financial liabilities
Financial instruments - Current derivatives

18,917

9,876

9,042

Financial debt - non-current portion

164,888

324,602

(159,714)

Financial instruments - Non-current derivatives
Other non-current financial liabilities

5,030

249

4,781

202,517

39,719

162,798

548,598

558,299

(9,702)

(582,662)

(630,868)

48,206

Other current financial assets

(5,703)

(5,356)

(347)

Financial instruments - Current derivatives

(7,578)

(19,976)

12,398

Total debt
Cash and cash equivalents
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NET FINANCIAL POSITION
Financial instruments - Non-current derivatives
Other non-current financial assets
Total cash and cash equivalents
Other financial liabilities of discontinued operations

(2,490)

December 31,
2017
(1,222)

(9,493)

(8,920)

(573)

(607,926)

(666,341)

58,415

June 30, 2018

Adjusted Net Financial Position

(1,269)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(59,329)

(108,042)

48,713

(21,647)

0

(21,647)

(80,975)

(108,042)

27,067

Other financial assets of discontinued operations
Net financial position
"Project Financing - Non Recourse” financial payables - ‘Alba-Bra Hospital
Initiative’

Change

As the Net Financial Position is not governed by the Group’s accounting standards, the Group calculation criteria may not be uniform
with those adopted by other groups and, therefore, may not be comparable.

The adjusted net financial position at June 30, 2018 was a Net Cash position of Euro 81
million, slightly reducing on December 31, 2017, although altering in composition. Excluding
dividend payments from the June 30, 2018 position, Net Cash substantially in line with March
2018 and December 2017 would be available.
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 582,662 thousand, a decrease of
Euro 48,206 thousand compared to December 31, 2017. Cash of Euro 32,621 thousand was
absorbed by operating activities, as reflecting the expected working capital changes relating to
the normal execution of projects which, during the full execution phase, absorb cash, while
partially offset by contracts acquired in H1 2018.
Against the decrease in cash and cash equivalents as already reported, the gross debt reduced
following the settlement of the equity-linked convertible bond, net of an increase in short-term
debt due to factoring operations for the working capital management of a number of projects
and increases in current account overdrafts with the utilisation of short-term cash flow
management credit lines.
The decrease in the mark to market of derivative instruments also impacted the financial
position for Euro 24,952 thousand, principally concerning derivative instruments hedging
order revenue and cost fluctuations, including raw materials, mainly as a result of the
weakening of the Dollar against the Euro compared to December 31, 2017.
The “Project Financing – Non Recourse” financial payables account concerns the loan obtained
in the first half of 2018 by the project company MGR Verduno S.p.A., engaged in the “AlbaBra Hospital concession” construction and management contract agreed with ASL CN2. This is
a no-recourse financial payable for the financing of Concession sector initiatives not
guaranteed by the parent company, but rather by cash flows from such initiatives to be
received by the Vehicle company involved in the initiative during the infrastructure
construction and management period.
At June 30, 2018, no overdue debt positions are highlighted.
Group Shareholders' equity at June 30, 2018 amounts to Euro 265,028 thousand, a net
increase of Euro 3,075 thousand compared to December 31, 2017 (Euro 261,953).
Total consolidated Shareholders’ Equity, considering minority interests, at June 30, 2018
amounts to Euro 291,866 thousand, an increase of Euro 8,097 thousand compared to
December 31, 2017. This increase is also due to the change in minority interest equity
including the result for the period.
The increase in Group Shareholders’ Equity is principally due to net income for the period,
together with the increases related to the share capital increase and the reduction in the
treasury shares reserve in service of the equity-linked bond loan conversion requests, which
were satisfied through the assignment to entitled parties of 14,952,300 treasury shares of the
company from the buy-back program to service the conversion of the Loan which commenced
on September 25, 2017, and 23,112,932 newly-issued shares from a paid-in share capital
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increase to service the Loan, approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the
Company of April 30, 2014.
The main decreases in Group Shareholders’ Equity related to the payment of the dividend
approved by the Shareholders’ AGM of Euro 42,064 thousand, of the Cash Flow Hedge reserve
of derivative hedging instruments, essentially against decreases in the mark to market of
order revenue and cost fluctuations, net of the relative tax effect, the translation reserve for
financial statements in foreign currencies and for approx. Euro 27.8 million the application of
the new accounting standards IFRS 15 & IFRS 9.
“Current liabilities” also increased on the previous year, by Euro 3,172 thousand, with the
main changes concerning the working capital movements on the main orders, as per the
contractual terms and a general and continuous growth of production volumes.
During H1 2018 payment requests were received in relation to the normal operating activities
and at June 30, 2018 there were no trade payable positions overdue on normal operations.
At June 30, 2018, no overdue debt positions are highlighted.
The Net Financial Position of the Parent Company Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. is presented below:
NET FINANCIAL POSITION (MET s.p.a.)

June 30, 2018

December 31,
2017

(in Euro thousands)

Short-term debt
Financial instruments - Current derivatives
Other current financial liabilities - Bond Equity Linked

Change

965

1,964

(999)

1,140

0

1,140

0

79,581

(79,581)

Other non-current financial liabilities - Non-convertible bonds

202,517

39,719

162,798

Other non-current financial liabilities

170,263

332,805

(162,542)

Total debt
Cash and cash equivalents

374,885

454,069

(79,184)

(6,797)

(2,124)

(4,673)

0

(5,404)

5,404

(65,395)

(3,200)

(62,195)
62,195

Financial instruments - Current derivatives
Other current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets

0

(62,195)

Total cash and cash equivalents

(72,192)

(72,923)
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Net financial position

302,693

381,146

(78,453)

As the Net Financial Position is not governed by the Group’s accounting standards, the Group calculation criteria may not be uniform
with those adopted by other groups and, therefore, may not be comparable.

The Net Financial Position at June 30, 2018 was a Net Debt of Euro 302.7 million, improving
Euro 78.5 million on December 31, 2017 (debt of Euro 381.1 million).
The improvement in the net financial position is mainly due to the reduction in “Other current
financial liabilities” after the settlement of the “€80 million 5.75 per cent. Unsecured EquityLinked Bonds due 2019” (the “Bond”) following the decision of the Board of Directors of Maire
Tecnimont to exercise the early repayment in cash option, at nominal value, of the loan.
“Other non-current financial liabilities - Non-convertible bonds” increased in the first half of
2018 following the issue of the non-convertible bond loan for a nominal Euro 165 million.
Other non-current financial liabilities total Euro 170,263 thousand and concern payables to
subsidiaries for inter-company loans, principally Tecnimont S.p.A and Stamicarbon B.V., with
the decrease due to the partial repayment of a loan received from Tecnimont S.p.A. following
the issue on May 3, 2018 of the non-convertible bond for a total nominal Euro 165 million by
Maire Tecnimont S.p.A..
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All related party transactions have been conducted at market conditions. The company’s
receivables/payables (including financial) and cost/revenue transactions with related parties
for the period are presented in the tables below.
30/06/2018
(in Euro thousands)

Trade
Receivables

Trade
Payables

Costs

Revenues

G.L.V. Capital S.p.A

0

(34)

(282)

0

Maire Investments Group
Total

4

(103)

(188)

3

4

(137)

(470)

3

In particular, payable contracts refer to the lease of office buildings from Group companies,
the use of the “Maire” trademark and other minor recharges from the parent G.L.V. Capital
S.p.A. and from transactions with the Maire Investments Group, a company owned by the
majority shareholder of Maire Tecnimont S.p.A., for the lease of office buildings and the lease
of premises within the research center concerning the collaboration with La Sapienza
University. The residual payable and receivable contracts relate respectively to administrative
services, facility management and the purchase of flight time used by the Group.
Transactions with other non-consolidated and/or associated Group companies are purely
commercial and relate to specific activities linked to contracts; in addition, certain
consortiums, having substantially concluded operations, are in liquidation:
30/06/2018
(in Euro thousands)

Trade
Receivables

Trade
Payables

Financial
Receivables

Financial
Payables

Costs

Revenues

MCM servizi Roma S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

0

(95)

0

0

0

0

Studio Geotecnico Italiano
Villaggio Olimpico MOI S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

0

(342)

0

0

(456)

0

0

(4)

69

0

0

0

1,724

0

0

(371)

0

0

Biolevano S.r.l

612

0

0

0

0

1,573

Processi Innovativi S.r.l

48

Desimont Contracting

106

(409)

0

0

(136)

BIO P S.r.l

7

(23)

18

0

(74)

7

TCM KTR LLP
Exportadora de Ingenieria y Servicios Tcm
Spa
Volgafert Llc

9

0

209

0

0

4

0

0

0

(67)

0

0

2,591

0

0

0

0

866

Total

5,049

(873)

296

(438)

(666)

2,497

6. Human Resources
The headcount at June 30, 2018 of the Maire Tecnimont Group was 5,808, compared to 5,443
at December 31, 2017, with a net increase of 365 following 682 new hires and 317 departures
in the period.
In terms of Group regional presence, the average movement on H1 2017 of 511 mainly
concerns Italy & Rest of Europe (203) where, in addition to hires at the Italian subsidiaries,
personnel were taken on at the UK subsidiary MET T&S. This company - which further
consolidated its Group “Global employment company” role, supplying international personnel
for the execution of projects and ensuring support in view of the respective construction peaks
- is also the Indian personnel hire and engagement vehicle operating at the sites in the
various countries in which the Group operates. In terms of average personnel increases, the
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Russia and Caspian Region follows (154) - mainly due to the number of personnel engaged on
the Amursky Gas Processing Plant project (Amur Region - Russian Federation) and the entry
of the Kingisepp project into its key phase – and the Middle East Region - with an average
increase of 141, mainly due to the hiring for the Orpic project of significant numbers of local
and supervision personnel.
Assessment of average personnel movements for the main professional categories indicates,
also for the period under review, an increase in the technical personnel category average, with
the hiring of additional staff and personnel with technical-specialist expertise (423) to ensure
the availability of the Human Resources required to delivery upon the Group’s strategic and
operating development goals.
Degree holders were confirmed as constituting 66% of the workforce at June 30, 2018 (3,844
personnel), with the average age confirmed at 41. The female percentage increased to
18.5%.
The workforce at 30/06/2018 of the Maire Tecnimont Group, with movements on 31/12/2017
(and the average workforce for the year), is outlined in the following tables:

Changes in workforce by category (31/12/2017-31/06/2018):

Category

Workforce
31/12/2017

New
hires

Departures

Reclassification
Workforce
employee
30/06/2018
category (*)

Cge.
Workforce
30/06/2018
vs.
31/12/2017

Executives

587

22

(14)

1

596

9

Managers

1,879

167

(90)

16

1,972

93

White-collar

2,857

412

(195)

(13)

3,061

204

120

81

(18)

(4)

179

59

5,443

682

(317)

0

5,808

365

Blue-collar
Total
Average headcount

5,252

5,640

(*) includes promotions, changes in category following inter-company transfers / Job Title reclassifications
The category “Executives” and “Managers” does not reflect the Italian contractual term, but refers to national and international
Management and Middle Management identification parameters utilized for Italian and overseas managerial staff.

Changes in workforce by region (31/12/2017-30/06/2018):
Reclassification
employee
category (*)

Cge.
Workforce
Workforce
30/06/2018
30/06/2018
vs.
31/12/2017

Workforce
31/12/2017

New hires

Departures

Italy and Rest of Europe

2,646

272

(127)

9

2,800

154

India and Rest of Asia

1,980

93

(59)

(11)

2,003

23

261

133

(37)

0

357

96

Region

Russia and Caspian Regions
The Americas

18

9

(2)

0

25

7

Middle East
North Africa and Sub-Saharan
Regions
Total

470

158

(87)

2

543

73

68

17

(5)

0

80

12

5,443

682

(317)

0

5,808

365
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Average headcount:

Maire Tecnimont Group

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.
Met Gas Processing Technologies S.p.A
Met Development S.p.A.
Vinxia Engineering a.s.
MET T&S Limited (*)
Stamicarbon (*)
Stamicarbon USA Inc.
KT (*)
KT Arabia LLC
KT Star
Processi Innovativi
KT Cameroun
Tecnimont S.p.A.(*)
Tecnimont HQC BHD
Tecnimont Russia
MST S.r.l
Tecnimont Arabia
Tecnimont Private Limited

(*)

Tecnimont Chile
TPI
Tecnimont Usa Inc.
Tecnimont Mexico SA de CV
TWS
Tecnimont do Brasil-Contruçao de projetos LTDA
NEOSIA (formerly Tecnimont Civil Construction S.p.A & MET Newn
S.p.A) (*)
Cefalù 20
Total

Age. headcount
H1 2018

Age. headcount
H1 2017

Change

131

119

12

2

2

0

4

0

4

8

3

5

184

96

88

150

155

(5)

1

0

1

509

451

58

2

4

(2)

2

0

2

11

12

(1)

1

1

0

2,107

1,851

256

95

33

62

259

122

137

90

89

1

27

21

6

1,858

1,959

(101)

3

3

0

42

42

0

1

1

0

2

0

2

1

3

(2)

7

8

(1)

118

120

(2)

24

33

(9)

5,640

5,128

512

Age. headcount
H1 2018

Age. headcount
H1 2017

Change

2,624

2,543

81

1,382

1,129

253

(*) Figure also includes Branches and representative offices.

Maire Tecnimont Group

Engineering
Operations

34

Maire Tecnimont Group

Age. headcount
H1 2018

Age. headcount
H1 2017

Change

670

581

89

149

148

1

815

727

88

5,640

5,128

512

2,742

2,538

203

1,986

2,008

(22)

312

158

154

24

19

5

500

359

141

77

46

31

5,640

5,128

512

2,283

2,133

150

122

114

8

2,405

2,247

158

Remainder Technical Area
Commercial Area
Staff Area
Total by professional category
Italy and Rest of Europe
India and Rest of Asia
Russia and Caspian Regions
The Americas
Middle East
North Africa and Sub-Saharan Regions
Total by region
Of which:
Italian open-ended
Italian fixed term
Total

7. Personnel Training and Incentives
PERSONNEL TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
During the period, company training initiatives remained focused on cultivating and reinforcing
distinctive expertise within the Group's competitive environment, particularly in the fields of
project management (2,604 hours) and specialist technical matters, which accounted for
15,056 hours, remaining among the Group's foremost training investments. In addition,
training courses were provided for soft skills, in order to develop effective behaviours and
communication styles, with an increasing focus on cultural issues specific to the various
countries in which business is done. The commitment to promote a culture of health and
safety among home office staff translated into 4,876 hours of training provided to a total of
1,164 participants.
The Group also remained committed to investing in the younger generation of employees and
helping them understand its working environment and business model, in addition to
promoting their engagement and integration into the company, continuing the customary
internal induction process in the first half of 2018, extended to encompass young apprentices
as well.
Mention should also be made of the many important induction initiatives, an integral part of
the MET Academy project, aimed at ensuring effective integration into the Group. In early
2018, this project, launched in the second half of 2017, had already resulted in the creation of
the first digital learning content transversal to the various professional areas in question,
intended to impart distinctive skills.
In agreement with the respective Supervisory Committees, training continued on the subjects
of Legislative Decree No. 231/2001, the Code of Ethics of the Maire Tecnimont Group and the
Organisation, Management and Control Model of the Parent Company and of the Subsidiaries
Tecnimont S.p.A., Neosia S.p.A. and KT Kinetics Technology S.p.A., for a total of 579 hours of
training provided.
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In the first half of 2018, the Company, where possible, presented training plans for the
various types of initiatives described above, financed by the main relevant interprofessional
funds, by agreement with union representatives.
For the program “BE ADAPTIVE! Working Smart in Maire Tecnimont Group” the Second Pilot
was completed and the Deployment phase launched, with the aim of involving all eligible
employees by year-end. The roll out of this programme was accompanied by a significant
investment in training and information, with a focus on soft skills, for a total of 2,049 hours,
and on IT, for a total of 40 sessions and 1,856 hours of training.
As part of efforts to achieve integration and uniformity of processes at the various Group
companies, the Employee Performance Commitment (EPC) was also conducted at the Indian
company Tecnimont Private Limited, involving all employees meeting the necessary
requirements.
In initiatives relating to corporate social responsibility and the development of local
sustainability content, in implementation of the Memorandum of Understanding signed on
February 5 with the social partners and local institutions, an initial professional qualification
course was organised by the Subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. for employees based in Basilicata
formerly operating at the site of the Tempa Rossa Project, with support from qualified
partners. The company's goal in this initiative is to transfer value to local communities and
contribute to the job market and economy of the Basilicata region by training oil and gas
industry professionals. Additional courses are set to be launched in the second half of the
year.
We finally highlight special opportunities for contact and interaction with Milan Polytechnic,
which in addition to fostering relations with this important university, involved the Group's
participation in the annual Career Day, an important opportunity to promote the visibility of
the company's employer brand with a large number of potential employees.

COMPENSATION AND INCENTIVES
In the first half of 2018, compensation activities focused primarily on the drafting of the
Remuneration Policy during the reporting year, approved by the Board of Directors on March
15, 2018, by proposal of the Remuneration Committee, and set out in the 2018 Remuneration
Report prepared in accordance with Article 123-ter of Legislative Decree No. 58/1998 and the
Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies, featuring an improved communication style
aimed at increasing ease of reading and identification of key elements.
The incentive and engagement systems implemented in previous years were also monitored to
verify their performance and take a final tally of the targets set by each. Specifically, in terms
of the short-term incentive system - MBO, the 2015-2017 Phantom Stock Plan, the 2016-2018
Performance Share Plan, the 2016-2018 General Share Plan and the 2017-2019 Restricted
Stock Plan, the relative bonuses were recognized, where in place, or the maturation of related
Rights confirmed, while the shares from the Second Cycle of the General Share Plan (2017)
were assigned to the over 4,000 beneficiaries.
In the case of the 2016-2018 Engagement and Incentive Policy, payment of the participation
or performance bonus for 2017 has been confirmed, along with the 2017 share of the flexible
benefits provided for in the plan MAIRE4YOU.
Easy Welfare named this latter plan "Best On Top Plan" in the Big Company category of its
Welfare Awards 2018, attesting to its high level of innovation and flexibility, resulting in
maximum employee participation in the company's results, in addition to access to a very
wide range of products and services.
In the first half of the year, the establishment of objectives process for the current year was
launched, in line with the MBO incentive plan for Senior Executives and the Group Incentive
Standard for other Executives and strategic personnel.
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In the first few months of the year the proposal to introduce a long-term incentive plan for
2018-2022 was also examined and submitted to the competent company bodies for analysis.
The plan would benefit the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager, in addition to
selected senior executives, with the aim of ensuring continuity of efforts to engage profiles
viewed as most critical to achievement of long-term business objectives and ongoing
alignment of the interests of the Group's managers, shareholders and stakeholders. The plan
and related implementing rules are expected to be approved in July 2018.

8. Organization, ICT & System Quality
ORGANISATION
During the period, the appropriate support and supervision continued to be provided to the
competent offices and organisational processes. The following is an account of the main
initiatives at Parent Company level during the period:
- Sustainability Project: the set-up of a Sustainability Reporting Department was completed.
The Department, which reports directly to the Group's Chief Financial Officer, is responsible
for preparing the sustainability report in accordance with applicable laws and applications,
including the non-financial report pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 254/16 (“NFR”), as well
as for certifying the process of collecting and consolidating the data and information included
therein and planning and monitoring the established steps of the sustainability process, in
coordination with the company departments involved. The Internal Sustainability Committee
was also set up as a strategic consultation body serving the Chief Executive Officer, with the
duty to provide support in drawing up the policies in pursuit of the sustainable management of
the business, the development programmes, the guidelines and objectives, also in terms of
Corporate Giving - monitoring their achievement - in addition to analysis of stakeholder
interaction;
- 2018 Privacy Project: the process of achieving compliance with the new legal requirements
of the GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) was completed. This process also involved
expanding the responsibilities of the Group Corporate Affairs, Governance & Compliance
Department, which now include obligations relating to the protection of personal data for the
listed Parent Company and subsidiaries subject to EU law. An internal committee was also
formed for the Internal Control and Risk Management System (the “ICRMS” Committee). The
new committee's duties also include promoting the Group's privacy guidelines and
governance. This consultative body reports to the Chief Executive Officer, supporting the
company departments involved in the internal control and risk management system by
optimising the various processes within their purview and coordinating with the Group's
organisational structure in accordance with company strategic objectives;
- the new regions India and South East Asia and Australia were established as part of the
regional organisation process.
Measures involving operating companies included:
- a revision of the organisational structure of the Project Control Department of the Subsidiary
Tecnimont, with regard to its main areas of responsibility, i.e. Planning Services (including
technical support for projects), Cost Control Services, Project Control Management and Project
Control Tools;
- the Procurement Intelligence & Performance Management office of that same Subsidiary was
formally established, divided into Procurement Tools and Procurement Intelligence & Vendor
Management;
- the Technology, Process & HSE Department of KT Kinetics Technology – previously the
Process Department – was reorganised to achieve uniformity with similar offices of other
Group companies, in accordance with the Department's duties;
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- the Administration, Finance & Control Department of the Dutch Subsidiary Stamicarbon was
enhanced, involving the introduction of the new Project Cost Control Department.
At the level of project activities, attention should be drawn to the go-live of the GHR Project at
companies in the Far East and the Americas Region, as well as to change management
activities relating to the processes implemented. Finally, it should be noted that, following the
implementation of the timesheet module at the Group company Tecnimont Russia, the set-up
and training process leading up to the launch of the model began at Tecnimont Abu Dhabi and
the Oman Branch, among the Group's international legal entities.

IT SYSTEMS AND GENERAL SERVICES
During the period, attention continued to be devoted to developing and maintaining the
company IT system, with regard to applications and infrastructure, as well as groundwork and
the ongoing digital transformation of the company, aimed at developing a data-driven
approach to the business, facilitating the gradual full digitalisation of company processes and
ensuring adequate support for the implementation of the program BE ADAPTIVE! Working
Smart in Maire Tecnimont Group. It was in pursuit of this latter goal that the new company
intranet was launched to manage departmental document areas in addition to integrating
custom and standard apps into SharePoint, thereby facilitating daily activities from remote
workstations. In other efforts relating to the Group's Smart Working Project, the renovation
plan has almost been completed. In addition to the renovation work already done, the plan
aims to turn the hall of the Garibaldi Complex into the Maire Tecnimont Garibaldi Hub, a
working space open to visitors and employees.
As in previous years, efforts were made to contain and optimise operating costs, including by
releasing business analytics dashboards on the BI MET Reporting platform for monitoring costs
and the related consumption, as well as by developing reports to monitor other kinds of
expenses (printing, use of premises and telephone service). The new Help Desk system based
on the Service Now platform was also released. Additional modules dedicated to the
management of general and ICT services according to a service-driven approach are set to be
released shortly.
In addition, the corporate SAP platform Global HR was gradually rolled out at the Group's
international legal entities (including the modules Core HR, for managing the main employee
processes, including record-keeping, organisational data and management data, Time, Travel,
Learning Management System and Performance Management). The roll-out began in 2017 at
the Italian companies and is aimed at ensuring integrated, uniform management of the
Group's key HR processes. The Variable Pay component was released for the Italian
companies in June.
Turning to the technical results of efforts in support of the business and other company
departments: - the project focusing on consolidated reporting and the SAP S/4 Hana
technology was released, along with the new SAP graphical interface Fiori, with extended
features integrated into the company intranet; in AFC, implementation of the CBC (Corporate
Banking Communication) system was completed. This platform provides an integrated
payment stream and derivative management solution, simplifying processes and further
increasing security in the area of money streams; - in sales, the business intelligence and
reporting system on the Salesforce platform was released, in support of the sales and
marketing process life cycle; - in initiatives in support of Construction, the Macos Q3 system
for managing completion and hand-overing was released and a project was launched to
implement the AWP (Advanced Work Packaging) method, later to be extended to project
control, engineering and procurement, with the aim of increasing productivity and project
efficiency; - in Procurement, the assessment of the SAP Ariba system was completed, with the
aim of introducing a sourcing platform integrated with the ERP system, thereby promoting the
planning of the offering process and optimising supplier management processes; - in Post
Order, the Planning of Expediting/Inspection and Inspection Tracking application was released
on SCP (the SAP Cloud Platform), in further support of the assessment of suppliers'
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performances and risk management, as well as of purchasing and cost rationalisation
decisions.
During the period, data security and safekeeping of company information assets in terms of
assuring availability, integrity and confidentiality remained a company priority. This was the
context for the decision to take an SaaS/PaaS approach to managing the main company
systems, permitting the adoption of the security standards guaranteed by major cloud service
providers, operating according to a security by design and by default approach. With regard to
on-premise systems, the Department, in close coordination with the competent Group
Corporate Affairs, Governance & Compliance Department, ensured the proper fulfilment of the
legal obligations imposed by EU Regulation No 679/2016 (“GDPR”), collaborating on the
adoption of security measures adequate to current legislation and implementing the
appropriate monitoring processes.

SYSTEM QUALITY
The document library continued to be revised and updated in the first half of 2018 with the
aim of circulating and implementing the Group's common operating directives and guidelines.
During the period, certification was also obtained for the quality management systems of the
Subsidiaries Tecnimont Private Limited, Stamicarbon BV, Neosia S.p.A. and KT Kinetics
Technology S.p.A., in accordance with the significant revision of the standard of reference,
ISO 9001, 2015 edition.

SECURITY
In accordance and continuity with the implementation of the Group's general security policies,
the customary support and guidance measures continued to be taken at the Italian and
international level for the benefit of various company departments and, where necessary,
projects, within the framework of the general corporate governance system and with regard to
the analysis and management of actually and/or potentially “critical” situations, including with
the aim of qualifying and quantifying the most appropriate mitigating actions. The social,
political and economic conditions of the countries of interest to the Maire Tecnimont Group
also continued to be constantly monitored and adequate commercial and/or operational
security measures implemented by management during travel to countries at risk. Finally,
supporting information was provided to all employees regarding country-specific situations, in
the form of specific organisational directives circulated through the company's Global HR
system. In addition, those working on projects abroad also received special security induction
including helpful facts and information and behavioural guidelines.

9. Industrial Relations
Again in the first half of 2018, regular meetings were held between Company Management
and workers’ representatives of the parent company and of the main Operating companies,
again on the basis of harmonious industrial relations management and continued fruitful
relations with trade union representatives.
These meetings also served as opportunities for dialogue regarding the progress of the
program BE ADAPTIVE! Working Smart in Maire Tecnimont Group. At the end of the period,
there were approximately 350 workers involved at the Group's Milan offices, and the findings
of numerous surveys had been determined, indicating that smart-working can contribute to
the increased efficacy and efficiency of company processes. In view of the excellent results
achieved in terms of engagement and participation, a specific union agreement was signed,
extending the program BE ADAPTIVE! Working Smart in Maire Tecnimont Group to the Parent
Company's workers based at the Rome office.
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In February, as mentioned above, a memorandum of understanding was signed by the
Subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. with union representatives and the region of Basilicata, defining
the implementation of training courses consistent with the characteristics of the local job
market in the oil and gas sector. Access to these training courses will be limited to workers
who were formerly assigned to the Tempa Rossa Project within the scope of Tecnimont's work
but are now open following the completion of these activities, and who must also meet certain
requirements (residents of Basilicata for at least 12 consecutive months and seniority of
service in the project of no less than six months, including non-consecutively).
Finally, mention should be made of the agreement with company union representatives of
April 18, 2018 governing attendance-taking and holiday leave for executives of KT – Kinetics
Technology S.p.A.

10.

Health, safety and environment

The Maire Tecnimont Group regards the health and wellbeing of individuals, the safety of the
industrial facilities it designs and builds and environmental protection as core company values.
The Group – which strives to prevent accidents and mitigate its impacts on the ecosystem – is
committed to providing working environments, services and industrial facilities that satisfy
applicable legal requirements and the highest health, safety and environment (HSE)
standards, by promoting a “safe workplace” and environmental protection, throughout all
areas of its operations and all stages of execution of a project, at both its offices and
construction sites.
Planning, implementing, monitoring and constantly improving an effective HSE Management
System is key to setting appropriate HSE priorities, goals and targets. Another fundamental
aspect is monitoring and checking compliance with applicable legal and other requirements,
including Italian and international laws, local requirements, agreements with authorities or
clients, voluntary ethical principles and codes of ethics, in addition to the satisfaction of our
clients' contractual requirements and in general the expectations of all interested parties. The
HSE Management System applies to the main operating companies, which have been certified
ISO 14001 compliant with regard to environmental management and OHSAS 18001 compliant
in respect of worker health and safety.
In order to ensure excellent company performance, each employee receives a copy of the HSE
Policy, which serves as a fundamental guide for company departments, in addition to being of
strategic importance to the entire Group.
The HSE Policy lays down the principles, goals, targets, roles, responsibilities and
management criteria essential to managing HSE issues. These goals and targets are circulated
to Group companies by the top management and pursued with the involvement of all
personnel in each activity during the engineering, procurement, construction and
commissioning stages of our projects, according to the following principles:
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•

Compliance with all laws, rules or international standards regarding health, safety and
the environment;

•

Identification of environmental dangers and problems, with an assessment of the
impacts, risks and related opportunities – for offices or for project execution – and
determination of the appropriate preventive measures;

•

Prevention of accidents, injuries and environmental damages;

•

Specific training on safety and environmental protection for all employees;

•

Involvement of all workers, including through their safety representatives, in addition
to local communities and all other interested parties;

•

Measurement and monitoring of results relating to health, safety and the environment,
setting appropriate objectives;

•

Selection and promotion of suppliers and sub-suppliers on the basis of the principles
underlying the HSE policy.

Constant, intensive monitoring and periodic audits within the organisation are conducted by
internal HSE auditors and accredited external entities in order to ensure effective compliance
with HSE obligations.
The Group's HSE function plans, coordinates, monitors and gathers relevant data and sets
goals and targets with the aim of ensuring legal compliance and an effective HSE
management system.
The company and Group are strongly committed to applying engineering standards that
minimise energy consumption and emissions and thus their impact on the environment. Over
the course of execution of a project, HSE studies are conducted to ensure the construction of
safe, reliable installations, a high standard of workplace safety and minimisation of
environmental impacts, energy waste and GHG emissions.
Training is essential to creating value for our stakeholders and ensuring that our business
continues to enjoy robust good health. It is a strategic process that is central to what our
Group does, as it constantly refines the professional skills and abilities of our employees.
All of our employees take part in an intensive training programme that includes specific
courses to improve their knowledge of health, safety and environment issues, personalised to
suit each employee's role and responsibilities. Training courses focus on fundamental issues
such as the structure of the HSE Management System and HSE Policy, the main dangers and
risks for offices and construction sites and the preventative and protective measures to be
adopted and emergency procedures. The overall programme includes both classroom and elearning sessions held in partnership with qualified external companies.
Training is also key to preventing accidents at construction sites: entering a work area means
exposure to risks associated with site activities and the presence of chemical substances,
since work sites are generally located within industrial facilities. At construction sites there are
various levels of training for supervisors, HSE professionals and other workers, including
introductory HSE courses, fire prevention courses, first aid courses, and courses on exposure
to construction risks (such as safe lifting of heavy objects, entry into confined spaces, use of
scaffolds and safe handling of chemical substances and hazardous materials). Particular
emphasis is placed on training in the use of the individual protective equipment supplied to
employees according to their individual risk exposure.
A total of 1,899,699 hours were dedicated to HSE courses in the first half of 2018. The hours
of HSE training provided were equivalent to 3.05% of hours worked on-site, up from 2.74% in
2017, a reflection of the strong dedication to and investment in prevention and training.
The company and Group are steadfast supporters of a preventive approach to reducing the
risk of accidents and their effects, safeguarding the health and safety of their employees and
other personnel under their responsibility and minimising the negative impacts on the head
office and construction sites. Monitoring HSE results at the head office and construction sites
is helpful to obtaining an overview of the efforts and actions taken by company management.
The OHSAS 18001-certified health and safety management system ensures oversight,
monitoring and maintenance of working spaces, services and equipment, in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and standards.
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Within the Technology, Engineering and Construction business unit – which includes the
companies operating in the oil and gas business – the company and Group adopt the main
workplace safety and health indicators of the U.S. authority (Occupational Safety and Health
Administration - OSHA) and the International Association of Oil & Gas Producers (IOGP) to
monitor and identify areas of improvement and constantly promote a strong approach to HSE
in the workplace.
In H1 2018, a total of over 60.556 million man-hours have been worked at the construction
sites of the Technology, Engineering and Construction business unit.
The following table presents the Group’s main safety indicators, calculated on an OSHA
(Occupational Safety and Health Administration) and IOGP (International Association of Oil &
Gas Producers) basis - the main international benchmarks - and compared with the
international Oil & Gas sector average.

*

Maire Tecnimont Group

International comparison

Safety – 2018 (cut-off 30/06/2018)

IOGP

(base 60.556 million man-hours)

(base 1,000,000 hours)

KPI

Total Projects

Total Projects

Oil & Gas Producers - 2017

(**)

OSHA

IOGP

Contractor figures

(base 200,000 hours)

(base 1,000,000
hours)

0.007

0.033

0.16

0.013

0.066

0.67

(***)

LTIF

(Accident indicator
reflecting interruption to
work performed by the
persons involved)
TRIR

(“Recordable” accident
frequency index)
(*)

(**)
(***)

Safety Performance Indicators referring only to Construction Sites of Technology, Engineering & Construction
Business Unit
KPI - Key Performance Indicator
Source: International Association of Oil & Gas Producers - international benchmarks, as those provided annually
by IOGP for EPC Engineering Procurement & Construction contractors

11.

Innovation and Research & Development

As innovation is one of the Group’s core competitive advantages, we are continuously focused
on R&D and on our portfolio of proprietary innovative technologies that strengthen our
position as a supplier of technologies for the refinery, energy, O&G and petrochemical sectors.
Maximum priority has been focused on open innovation: the Marie Tecnimont Innovation
Center (MTIC) was therefore set up for the establishment of a shared platform for the creation
of a portfolio of common Group company patents, leveraging and building upon the
experience and current expertise of the Group.
The Maire Tecnimont Group owns and manages high value proprietary technologies and
intellectual property for the refinery, energy, petrol & gas, fertilisers, chemicals and
petrochemical sectors.
The investments in technological innovation and engineering
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improvements increased in the 2015-2017 period and will likely see a further increase over
the coming years. Maximum priority has been given to green, sustainable and ecological
technologies. We particularly focus our efforts on: Development of innovative end products
(e.g. controlled release fertilisers or micro nutrient rich fertilisers); production of existing
products from new/differing raw materials (e.g. production of Ethylene and Propylene from
Natural Gas and Acid Gas filtration technology to produce pure methane from Natural Gas,
rich in acid components); cutting of plant investment and operating costs (e.g. “Low energy
consumption urea plant” require 40% less steam for the production of urea, or the H2S
cracking technology which reduces the initial outlay by up to 30% and operating costs by up
to 30%); significant reduction in the environmental impact of oil, chemical and petrochemical
refining plant (e.g. reduction of 1/10 of S02 emissions (compared to the Best Available
Technique – BAT), thanks to the new generation Sulphur recovery unit, the zero ammonia
emission technology for urea plant and the “envirocare” scrubbing technology which
significantly reduces (by indeed 5-fold) the impact of urea dust emissions.
All of these objectives were delivered in partnership with various Group sister companies:
Stamicarbon, MET Gas, Tecnimont and KT.
Technological advantage is a core strategic asset for the Group. The Maire Tecnimont
Innovation Center manages and develops the Group Intellectual Property (IP) strategy,
protecting the portfolio of patents and technologies developed. In addition, the Maire
Tecnimont Group leverages on its IP portfolio and on its technological expertise in developing
new commercial projects, technology alliances and for licenses.
The Maire Tecnimont Group maintains an Innovation Pipe Line (IPL) of projects for the
development of proprietary expertise in support of future operations.
The R&D and
Innovation projects are promoted and further developed where satisfying an industrial
interest, have realistic development possibilities and are based on an industrial plan. The
Maire Tecnimont Group carries out various innovation projects each year and actively
cooperates with leading research centers and industrial partners to continuously improve the
overall performance of its technologies.
The Maire Tecnimont Group owns over 1,000 patents, the majority of which in the urea and
fertilizer areas, amid other areas.
The Maire Tecnimont Group has a long history of collaboration with leading universities,
technology suppliers, research centers and commercial partners. Over recent years, the Maire
Tecnimont Group has extended its collaboration with leading Italian and overseas universities
by developing research projects and exchanging opinions and ideas, building in this way a
solid bridge between the academic and industrial worlds. The long-standing collaboration
between Maire Tecnimont and the Milan Polytechnic was further consolidated through
partnerships for research projects, teaching activities and the organisation of seminars.
The collaboration with the Bio-Medico Campus of Rome, initiated in 2011 with the creation of
the “University and Private Enterprise Committee”, naturally focuses on developing/updating
technological training and research/development plans. As part of its support for the Chemical
Engineering for Sustainable Development Masters course, the Group in addition provides the
option to complete the specialisation course and the thesis at the company.
“La Sapienza” University of Rome, the University of Salerno, the University of L’Aquila, the
University of Bologna and the Turin Polytechnic are also long-standing academic partners.
Overseas, the company Maire Tecnimont cooperates with the University of Leuven, the
Technical University di Eindhoven and l’Ecole des Mines of Paris. Collaborations have been
initiated and agreements signed with international research institutes, such as Tecnalia, the
Spanish research center, for the development of membrane reactors for the production of
hydrogen, and also with Intertek Laboratories.
Some of these collaborations have become business partnerships, such as those with
Protomation, Holland Novochem and Envirocare.
A particular focus was placed on cost reduction and improving engineering methodologies.
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This generated a large number of ideas, many of which were developed upon and applied to
EPC (Design to Cost) projects. Various training initiatives evolved, in addition to a new
Company Standard, and working instructions were issued. In particular, a project for the
customisation and use of BIM (“Building Information Modelling”, recently amended to
“Business Information Management”), an innovative system for the design of constructions,
launched to extend the BIM application to industrial engineering and in particular industrial
plant engineering.
The application of innovative methodologies for the design of plant is advantageous both for
the contractor and for the Client, as their application shortens the project execution time and
minimises errors and consequently reworks - to the benefit of all interested parties.
In 2018, the Maire Tecnimont Group and Bio-on S.p.A., a high-quality bio-plastics enterprise,
signed an agreement involving the undertaking of a 50% equal holding in U-Coat (Urea
Coating) S.p.A..
U-Coat is a company newly incorporated by Bio-on engaged in the production and distribution
of an innovative technology for the coating of urea for fertilizer use. U-Coat operates on a key
and quickly expanding global market, leveraging on a PHAs bio-plastics based technology
developed by Bio-on. In fact, the PHAs bio-plastics are from renewable vegetable sources
without any food chain competition. Appropriately measured, the PHAs coat the urea pellet
for the time-controlled release of the fertilizer, protecting it from atmospheric agents and
maximising efficacy without leaving any residue on land.

12.

Risks and uncertainties

In this section the main risks and uncertainties concerning the Maire Tecnimont Group and its
sectors are outlined. The factors considered by the company risk system regarding the
foreseeable future are for this purpose analyzed.
The Maire Tecnimont Group’s core operations concern the design and construction of
Engineering & Technology sector plant and the design and construction of major public works.
In addition, the Group licenses patented technology and know-how for use by urea producers.

BACKLOG RISKS
The consolidated Backlog at June 30, 2018 was Euro 6,904.2 million. The timing of revenue
and expected cash flows is subject to uncertainty as unforeseeable events may occur which
impact Backlog Orders (such as for example the slowdown of works, the delayed start-up of
works or indeed the interruption of works or other events). The Group mitigates this risk
through termination/cancellation clauses which ensure adequate reimbursement on the
occurrence of such events.

BACKLOG

CONCENTRATION RISKS AND DEPENDENCE ON A CURTAILED NUMBER OF

MAJOR CONTRACT OR CLIENTS

At June 30, 2018, approx. 83% of Group consolidated revenues related to 13 major contracts,
corresponding at the same date to approx. 76% of the Backlog value. Any interruptions or
cancellations to even one of the major contracts, subject to applicable legal and contractual
remedies, may impact on the Group’s results and balance sheet. In addition, the Group works
with a contained number of clients. At June 30, 2018, consolidated revenues from the 10
leading clients constituted 83% of total consolidated revenues. One of the key operational
guidelines concerns the greater distribution of initiatives among more clients and thereafter
the opening up to new markets and clients.
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RISKS RELATED TO GROUP SECTOR INVESTMENT
Group markets are cyclical, principally dependent on available investment, which in turn is
impacted by: (i) economic growth and (ii) a significant number of economic-financial (e.g.
interest rates and the price of oil) and political-social (economic, public spending and
infrastructure policies) variables. Therefore, general recessions may impact the Group’s
results and balance sheet. Regional and business line diversification assists the mitigation of
this risk.

RISKS RELATED TO JOINT LIABILITY TO CLIENTS
Group companies execute orders independently or together with other operators through the
incorporation (for example) of consortiums in Italy or joint control arrangements overseas. In
this latter case, each party under applicable public regulations or general contractual practice
are usually jointly liable to the client for the design and construction of the entire works. In
the case of damage suffered by a client caused by an associated operator, the Group company
involved may be called to replace the damage-causing party and fully compensate the
damage caused to the client, subject to the right of regress against the non-compliant
associated operator. The right to regress among associated operators is normally governed
among the partners through contracts (usually called cross indemnity agreements). Group
policy is to conclude agreements/associations with operators of proven sector experience and
appropriately verified available capital. This policy has ensured that the assumption of partner
obligations by a Group company has not yet been requested as a result of non-fulfilment.

RISKS

CONCERNING LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT FOR NON-FULFILMENT OR DAMAGE

CAUSED BY SUB-CONTRACTORS OR SUPPLIERS

In executing operations the Group relies on third parties (including sub-contractors) to
produce, supply and assemble part of the plant constructed, in addition to suppliers of raw
materials, semi-finished products, sub-systems, components and services. The Group’s
capacity to discharge its obligations to clients is however reliant also on the fulfilment of
contractual obligations by sub-contractors and suppliers. In the case of Group sub-contractor
or supplier non-fulfilment (even partially), the provision of products and/or services not in line
with that agreed or falling short of the required quality or with defects, the Group may incur
additional costs due to delays or the need to deliver replacement services or procure
equipment or materials at a higher price. In addition, the Group may in turn not fulfil that
agreed with the client and be subject to compensation claims, subject to the Group’s right to
regress from non-compliant sub-contractors and suppliers. However, where the Group is
unable to reclaim the entire compensation paid from such parties through its right to regress,
the Group results and balance sheet may be impacted. The Group system for the assessment
and selection of suppliers, identified on the basis of price, in addition to their technical abilities
and capital structure, requires the request and provision of bank performance guarantees
from such parties. Group companies are also covered by appropriate insurance policies to
meet any particular difficulties.

RISKS RELATED TO INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS
The Group is engaged in approx. 40 countries and is therefore exposed to a range of risks,
including any restrictions on international trade, market instability, foreign investment
restrictions, infrastructural deficiencies, currency movements, currency limitations and
controls, regulatory changes, natural catastrophes (e.g. earthquakes and extreme weather
events) or other extraordinary events (e.g. wars and acts of terrorism, major raw material or
semi-finished product or energy supply interruptions, fires, sabotage, attacks or kidnappings).
The Group in addition is subject to the risk of greater operational difficulties in regions
featuring high levels of corruption, distance from the markets and the traditional workforce
and material procurement sources, and which often are politically and socially difficult and
unstable (e.g. the Middle East, Iran, Russian Federation, Latin America and Nigeria). In order
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to mitigate this risk, appropriate insurance and/or coverage for the type of risks at issue to
mitigate financial impacts from such instability may be undertaken.

RISKS RELATING TO ERRONEOUS ORDER EXECUTION COST ESTIMATES
Almost all of Group consolidated revenues concern long-term contracts, whose settlement (in
favor of the Group) is established at the date of the tender or the awarding of contract,
particularly for lump sum - turn key contracts. For such contracts, the margins originally
estimated by the Group may reduce due to higher costs incurred by the Group during order
execution. Where the Group’s policies and procedures to identify, monitor and manage costs
for order execution do not reflect the duration and complexity of such orders, or are no longer
accurate following the occurrence of unforeseeable events, the Group’s results and balance
sheet may be impacted. However, during offer preparation the Group closely analyses the
risks pertaining to each order, particularly focusing on the provisioning of contingencies in
coverage of such risks.

13.

Financial risk management

The Group’s principal financial risks stemming from core operations are outlined below:

MARKET RISK
The Group operates within an international environment and is subject to interest rate,
exchange rate and price risk. A risk of fluctuating cash flows from core operations therefore
follows, which may only partly be mitigated through appropriate policies.

PRICE AND CASH FLOW RISK
Group results may be impacted by raw material, finished product and insurance cost price
changes. This risk is mitigated through a precise and timely procurement policy. The Maire
Tecnimont Group also seeks to minimize transaction currency risk through derivative
contracts.

CURRENCY RISK
The currency used for the consolidated financial statements is the Euro. As stated, the Group
operates in an international environment, with part of its receipts and payments made in
currencies other than the Euro. A significant amount of projects are quoted in or linked to the
US Dollar or Russian Ruble; this factor, together with timing differences between the accrual
of revenues and costs in currencies other than the presentation currency and their financial
realization, exposes the Group to currency risk (transaction currency risk).
The Maire Tecnimont Group seeks to minimize transaction currency risk through derivative
contracts. Group level planning, coordination and management of such operations is carried
out by the Finance Department, which monitors the correct correlation between derivative
instruments and underlying cash flows and their appropriate representation as per
international accounting standards.
The Group furthermore has investments in subsidiaries in countries not belonging to the
Eurozone and shareholders’ equity changes from local currency movements against the Euro
are temporarily recognized to the “translation reserve” shareholders’ equity reserve.

INTEREST RATE RISK
Maire Tecnimont Group interest rate risk essentially concerns its variable medium/long-term
loans. Variable rate debt interest rate risk not hedged through derivative instruments is
however partly mitigated by liquidity remunerated at rates indexed to the same debt

46

parameter (euribor). Any consequent interest rate fluctuations may create similar effects upon
cash flows generated from inventories, although in an opposing manner than those produced
on cash flows related to debt positions.

CREDIT RISK
The Group credit risk represents the exposure to potential losses deriving from the noncompliance with obligations by counterparties. This stems from normal operations and is
monitored by the operating and financial departments on the basis of set procedures and
periodic reporting. The individual positions are written down, if individually significant, with a
provision which reflects the partial or total non-recovery of the receivable. Against the
receivables which are not individually written down, a general provision is made, taking into
account historical experience and statistical data.

LIQUIDITY RISK
This risk concerns the difficulty in sourcing new funding or access to liquid assets, resulting in
the enterprise’s failure to satisfy payment commitments, being forced to incur additional
funding costs or, in extreme instances, being faced with potential insolvency which may put
its going concern at risk.
At the present moment, Maire Tecnimont considers that the good levels of liquidity held and
prudent and functional management of the credit lines available are important elements for
stability and sufficient to guarantee the resources necessary for operating continuity.
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 582,662 thousand, a decrease of
Euro 48,206 thousand compared to December 31, 2017.
On July 16, 2018 - Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. completed its funding diversification and the
restructuring of the Group medium/long-term debt previously announced to the market on
March 15, 2018 on approval of the issue of the Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. “Senior Unsecured due
30 April 2024” bond loan, placed on the capital markets in April 2018 for a nominal amount of
Euro 165 million; the New Loan Contract, among other matters, stipulates the issue of a new
medium/long-term “Term Loan” cash credit line for a maximum Euro 185 million, with Euro
175 million allocated for the full repayment of the residual part of the original Euro 350 million
“Term Loan” undertaken by Tecnimont and Euro 10 million to top up the original loan, in
addition to the increase of the “Revolving Facility” credit line issued in favour of Tecnimont
from Euro 50 million to Euro 100 million.

FINANCIAL COVENANT RISK
This concerns the possibility that loan contracts include clauses permitting the lending Banks
and other lenders to request immediate repayment on the occurrence of certain events,
resulting therefore in a liquidity risk.
The original Euro 350 million loan (residual Euro 175 million at June 30, 2018) of the existing
bank debt of the subsidiary Maire Tecnimont S.p.A., renegotiated in 2017, includes covenants
in line with normal business practice for such operations; specifically, the loan’s financial
covenants concern the ratio between the net financial position and net equity, as well as
between the net financial position and EBITDA, with next measurement on the H1 2018
figures.
Also in 2017, Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. concluded agreements for the subscription through
private placement by the Pan-European Fund and the Export Development Fund (created by
SACE), both managed by Amundi Group companies, of non-convertible bonds amounting to
Euro 40,000,000. The bonds, divided into two equal tranches, are of six-year duration with
bullet repayment on maturity.
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Again in this case, the bonds are supported by covenants in line with market practice;
specifically, the bond covenants regard the maintenance of a ratio between the net financial
position and net equity, as well as between the net financial position and EBITDA, next
measured on the June 30, 2018 figures.
On May 3, 2018, Maire Tecnimont issued 165,000 Non-Convertible Bonds at a price equal to
100% of the nominal value, and with a unitary minimum value of Euro 1,000 (thousand), for a
total of Euro 165 million. The Bond interest rate is 2.625% annually, with interest paid on a
deferred basis on April 30 and October 31 of each year, from October 31, 2018. The Bonds
shall be settled at the nominal value on April 30, 2024 where not previously settled or
cancelled.
The Bond Loan is part of a project to diversify funding and optimise the medium/long-term
debt in order to align its structure with the altered financial needs of the Maire Tecnimont
Group.
The Bond issue terms and conditions stipulate incurrence-type covenants regarding the debt
level; specifically, the bond financial covenants require the maintenance of a stated net
financial position/EBITDA ratio, measured annually and initially on the December 31, 2018
figures.
The Maire Tecnimont Group is currently not aware of any default situations regarding the
above-mentioned covenants.

RISKS

CONCERNING THE

GROUP

CAPACITY TO OBTAIN AND RETAIN GUARANTEED

CREDIT LINES AND BANK GUARANTEES

In the course of operations and, in particular, for participation in tenders, the signing of
contracts with operators or receiving advances and payments from such during order
execution, the Group is required to issue bank and/or insurance guarantees in favor of
operators.
The Group’s capacity to obtain such guarantees from banks and/or insurance companies
depends on an assessment of the Group’s financial statements and, in particular, of the Group
company involved, from analysis of the order risk, experience and the Group companies
competitive positioning within its sector.
At the present moment, Maire Tecnimont is satisfied with the level of credit lines available,
which are considered sufficient to guarantee the resources necessary for operating continuity.
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14.

Disputes

Maire Tecnimont Group disputes concern outstanding proceedings relating to ordinary
operations of Group companies. A summary of the main positions at June 30, 2018 according
to currently available information is presented below.

CIVIL, ADMINISTRATIVE AND ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS
J&P Avax S.A.: arbitration procedure initiated by Tecnimont in August 2002 against J&P Avax
S.A. (“J&P”) for compensation for damages suffered following delayed execution of a subcontract awarded to J&P as part of Tecnimont’s construction of a polypropylene production
plant in Salonicco, Greece, commissioned by the Greek enterprise Helpe. Tecnimont’s
arbitration claim amounts to Euro 17.4 million, while J&P advanced a counter claim for Euro
28.5 million. The Arbitration Board in December 2007 issued a partial award, attributing 75%
liability for the 4-month work execution delay to J&P and 25% to Tecnimont. J&P challenged
on December 28, 2008 the partial award before the Paris Appeal Court, which with judgment
of February 12, 2009 cancelled the award due to the alleged lack of independence and
impartiality of the Arbitrary Board’s Chair. Tecnimont subsequently challenged this decision
before the Court of Cassation, which on November 4, 2010 announced in favor of Tecnimont,
overturning the Appeal Court judgment. The Arbitration Board therefore decided to reexamine the arbitration, although J&P challenged the partial award before the Reims Court of
Appeal, which on November 2, 2011 again cancelled the partial award for alleged improper
constitution of the Arbitrary Board. Tecnimont therefore presented a fresh appeal to the
French Court of Cassation, which again overturned the appeal court judgment and postponed
its decision. The Court of Appeal judged in favor of Tecnimont and J&P has appealed to the
Court of Cassation. The Arbitration Tribunal however decided to re-initiate the arbitration
process. In the meantime, the Chair of the Arbitration Board resigned due to health issues and
a new Chairperson was appointed, who fixed the next hearings for conclusion of the matter for
May 2017. Following these hearings, the Court issued a partial award rejecting all of the
residual claims of J&P regarding the issue. J&P presented an appeal also in terms of the final
partial award, which however will not impact completion of the arbitration process. The final
hearing on the amount was held in February 2018 and the award is not expected to be issued
before the second half of 2018.
Mainka: in December 2010 Tecnimont received notification from the International Court of
Arbitration of the opening of a procedure against the company by Mainka, a German
construction company engaged in the Münchsmünster project. The subcontract signed in
August 2007 concerned the execution of civil works at the polyethylene production plant
located in Münchsmünster, Germany. The Mainka claim concerns the recognition of alleged
higher costs incurred for the execution of works for a total of approx. Euro 16.7 million.
Tecnimont presented a formal response to the arbitration appeal, rejecting all Mainka claims
and presenting a counterclaim for Euro 7.9 million. According to the Terms of Reference filed
in September 2011, the Arbitration Board was called to decide in first instance the preliminary
issue concerning the applicability of German law which considers clauses contained in forms
and questionnaires as void. On this basis, Mainka argued the nullity of the liquidated damages
and performance bond clauses. In parallel, Tecnimont initiated at the German Court an
enforcement action upon the performance bond through two proceedings: i) against Mainka at
the Ingolstadt court with subsequent appeal to the Munich Court of Appeal and with a
successful outcome for Tecnimont (due to lack of jurisdiction) ii) against the insurance
company at the Wiesbaden Court. On December 5, 2011, the ICC hearing on the partial award
was held and it was decided to postpone any payment of the bond until conclusion of the
arbitration process. It was also decided to continue the process on the Termination point. The
petitions of the parties were filed between February and April 2012 and at the beginning of
May 2012 the ICC hearing on the Termination was held. The Arbitration Board, without
formally pronouncing upon the question of the Termination, therefore initiated a review of
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Mainka’s claim and Tecnimont’s counterclaim. The parties presented new petitions upon the
claim and the counterclaim between August and December 2012. In January 2013, the
hearing upon the “final invoice” was held, where it was decided to re-submit to the arbitrators
a shared list of outstanding questions with indication of whether strictly legal or technical
matters to be submitted by the Arbitration Board to its appointed expert. In May 2014, the
Arbitration Board fixed new dates for presentation of additional petitions and for a further
hearing which was held in July 2014. At this hearing, the Chairman of the Arbitration Board
suggested a potential conflict impacting his independence and impartiality. The parties
therefore expressly requested the replacement of the Chairman, with the ICC accepting this
request. In autumn 2014, the new Chairman was appointed, who in turn formalized the
appointment of the technical consultant. In the first half of 2015, the parties met with the
Tribunal and with the expert in the form of the facilitator. Following these meetings, an
agreement was not reached and the Tribunal decided that the arbitration should continue,
maintaining the expert who would have acted to all intents and purposes as the technical
consultant appointed by the Tribunal. In February 2016, the hearing at which the testimonies
were cross-examined was held. The Tribunal appointed expert issued a technical opinion at
the beginning of September 2016, which was commented upon by the parties at the end of
October. In November 2016, the final hearing was held, at which the Tribunal nominated
expert was questioned. The final award was issued in August 2017, substantially limiting
Mainka’s claims. The award was immediately challenged at the Swiss Federal Court for
significant procedural defects. The Federal Court shall announce its decision before the
second half of 2018.
Juruena: in May 2009, Maire Sapezal Ltda (now Tecnimont Sapezal, a subsidiary of Maire
Engineering do Brazil, now Tecnimont do Brazil Ltda) was forced to resolve the contract with
Juruena concerning the construction of 5 hydroelectric power plant in the Mato Grosso region.
This followed serious financial difficulties emerging during the project caused by events
outside of Tecnimont Sapezal’s scope of responsibility which decisively impacted timelines and
costs, including: in addition to a year of suspension due to non-renewal of the client’s
environmental licenses, a suspension order upon works issued by the local magistrate, basic
design errors by the client, destruction and fire on site caused by indigenous peoples, site
flooding due to exceptional rainfalls and the failure to pay invoices issued and approved by the
client. Following the resolution of contract, Maire Sapezal blocked the legal actions taken by
the counterparty at the Cuiabá (Mato Grosso) Court, in clear contradiction of the arbitration
clause and the attempt to enforce the performance insurance guarantee and completed the
site transfer operations as planned. Maire Sapezal therefore filed an international arbitration
claim (ICC) to obtain payment of approx. Reals 115 million for: i) non-adjustment of the
contractual price following delays caused by the failure to renew local environmental licenses
by Juruena; ii) non-adjustment of the contractual price following additional costs due to basic
design errors by Juruena; and iii) non-compliance with the obligations agreed between the
parties under an operational agreement for price resetting on an open book basis; iv)
Juruena’s liability for the incursion of indigenous peoples which devastated the sites and nonrecognition of the damage caused to Tecnimont; v) non-payment of invoices approved for
services provided by Tecnimont; vi) improper recourse to the Mato Grosso Court in violation of
the contractual arbitration clause; vii) violation of the principle of good faith. The client in turn
filed an arbitration claim for approx. Reals 346 million. The Arbitration Court was constituted
and during the ICC procedure petitions and technical, economic and market reports were filed
and written testimonies gathered. On June 9, 2013, the Group received from its Brazilian legal
representatives a copy of the (partial) arbitration award, subsequently amended on October
17, 2013 and not immediately executive, which contained the following: i) both parties were
deemed responsible for resolution of contract; ii) the award concludes all Tecnimont do Brazil
Ltda claims, with recognition of approx. Reals 21.15 million; iii) the award concludes Juruena’s
claims with recognition of approx. Reals 16.4 million. The proceedings expenses will be
decided as part of the final award. The ICC procedure concluded with a final award which
recognized certain costs for the re-execution of works requested by Juruena. Tecnimont
presented a request for the annulment of the Award on the basis of procedural technicalities.
The efficacy of the award was suspended by the Mato Grosso Courts ahead of a review.
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Kesh: Maire Engineering S.p.A. (now Tecnimont S.p.A.) in February 2007 signed an EPC
contract for the construction of an EPC plant located in Vlore (Valona), Albania with the
operator Kesh Dh. Albanian Power Corporation, an Albanian state-owned company. The initial
“lump sum” contract value was Euro 92 million, thereafter increased by an additional Euro 4.1
million. Since the beginning of the project, Tecnimont has encountered significant difficulties
which have impacted the timely execution of works and led to additional costs and damages.
The initial difficulties stemmed from the fact that the contract tender was carried out in a
period of greatly different market conditions than those which Tecnimont encountered two
years subsequent to the awarding of the contract. Apart from the increase in the contract
value of Euro 4.1 million, Kesh without basis has neither recognized an additional adjustment
to the contract value or an extension to the completion deadline. Furthermore, in addition to
deteriorated market conditions, other events have increased Tecnimont’s costs and delayed
works completion, including: ongoing storms and requests to carry out temporary rather than
permanent repairs. In 2009, Tecnimont presented an Interim Report requesting review of the
Operational Acceptance date and, in the case of non-acceptance, the payment of the
additional costs incurred in accelerating works to reduce the delay, meaning that Kesh would
not have had other grounds to request payment of the delayed penalties. In July 2009, the
change proposals were submitted to Kesh. Despite all this, Kesh in September 2011
demanded the payment of penalties of Euro 9.2 million from Tecnimont. In November 2011,
Tecnimont sent a Supplementary Report concerning the events between February 2009 and
October 2011, which would have entitled Tecnimont to request a longer extension to the
completion date than that already requested through the Interim Report and additional
damage and cost claims. In particular, recognition of approx. Euro 56 million and approx. USD
22.5 million was requested. The Operational Acceptance Certificate was thereafter issued in
November 2011, although with retroactive effect to October 2011. Apart from the unjustified
delay in issuing the certificate, Kesh has not released the remaining 5% of the contractual
price for an amount of Euro 4.7 million and has not reduced the Performance Bond from 10%
to 5% of the contract value. In addition, Kesh has not extended beyond December 31, 2011
the duration of the letter of credit in guarantee of its payment obligations, therefore not
complying with its contractual and legal obligations. As a direct consequence, Tecnimont sent
to Kesh a first Notice of Termination in April 2012, followed by a second Notice in May and a
third in September 2012. Despite this, Kesh subsequently threatened to enforce the entire
amount of the Performance Bond of Euro 9.6 million. In January 2012 and therefore
subsequently to obtaining Operational Acceptance and following the transfer of the plant from
the custodianship of Kesh a storm hit the plant, damaging the sea outlet piping. Tecnimont
considers that the damage to the tubing related to events entirely outside of its scope of
responsibility and due to the improper management of the plant by Kesh personnel. In order
to avoid enforcement of the entire Performance Bond amount of Euro 9.6 million claimed by
Kesh in September 2012, Tecnimont claimed and obtained from the Milan Court an injunction
recognizing enforcement of half the Performance Bond as illegal; the guarantee issue bank
therefore paid Kesh only half of the Performance Bond. In October 2012, Tecnimont therefore
filed an arbitration claim at the ICC against Kesh for payment of the remaining 5% of the
contract value, the reimbursement of the half of the Performance Bond enforced, in addition
to Euro 51 million, plus USD 22 million of additional costs for damages, further to a
declaration of non-responsibility for the delayed penalties. In addition, Tecnimont requested
resolution of the EPC contract on the basis of Kesh’s non-fulfilment, reserving the right to
present additional damage claims during the same arbitration procedure. On January 4, 2013,
Kesh presented a brief rejoinder, requesting that the matter is preliminarily submitted for an
adjudicator’s assessment. This assumes that the EPC contract established this preliminary
step before the matter is dealt with by the Arbitration Board. The ICC proposed that the
parties reach an agreement to suspend arbitration and resubmitted the matter to the
adjudicator’s assessment. The contract establishes however that the party unsatisfied with the
adjudicator’s assessment may initiate an arbitration proceeding. In February 2014, Tecnimont
therefore filed an initial adjudicator application concerning Kesh’s non-compliance with its
obligations in relation to the Performance Bond reduction. On April 2, 2014, the adjudicator’s
decision was in favor of Tecnimont and on April 28, 2014 Kesh announced its intension to
challenge this decision through arbitration in accordance with the contract. However, Kesh has
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thus far not initiated any arbitration in this regard at the ICC. Simultaneously, on February 18,
2014 Tecnimont was summoned to appear in Albania with regards to the case initiated in
October 2012 by Kesh against Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Albania for payment of the residual
performance bond (Euro 4,830,000), which was blocked by the Milan Court. The first level
judgement rejected Kesh’s demands, which within the thirty following days challenged this
decision. With judgement of March 27, 2015, the Court of Appeal confirmed the first level
decision, rejecting therefore Kesh’s claim. Against this provision, on April 17, 2015 Kesh filed
an appeal before the Albanian Court of Cassation, which was only notified to Tecnimont on
May 25. The Court of Cassation decision is expected to be concluded by 2018.
NGSC/Iranian Bank of Mines and Industry: On January 16, 2014 Sofregaz (now TCM FR)
presented a request for arbitration to the International Arbitration Court of the ICC against the
client NGSC (Natural Gas Storage Company) to obtain rejection of a number of compensation
claims previously advanced by NGSC, the payment of an overdue amount of Euro
1,286,339.06 and relative interest and withdrawal of the payment request of the Performance
Bond and the Advance Payment (or, where payment has already taken place, reimbursement
of the relative amount). Initially, the arbitration was suspended due to the embargo
restrictions as concerning an Iranian company, although thereafter resuming on May 29,
2015. The Tribunal was established on June 7, 2016. On December 1, 2016, TCM FR
presented the statement of claim concerning a further request for damages of over Euro 9
million. Arbitration is still in progress, with conclusion expected in the second half of 2018.
Immobiliare Novoli: as part of the construction of the Novoli (Florence) property complex,
on July 7, 2007 Tecnimont advanced against the client Immobiliare Novoli a payment request
for services, in addition to compensation for damage and higher costs incurred during the
works, for a total amount of over Euro 30 million. Immobiliare Novoli submitted in turn a
damage claim of approx. Euro 52.7 million. On February 27, 2012, the arbitration award was
issued, recognizing Tecnimont the right to payment of approx. Euro 10.4 million, in addition to
interest, for a total of approx. Euro 16.1 million. With deed notified on June 18, 2012,
Immobiliare Novoli challenged this arbitration award before the Florence Court of Appeal. On
July 15, 2014, this latter Court issued a Judgement which substantially declared the partial
nullity of the award with regard to the section judging payment of Euro 6,441,248.24 against
Immobiliare Novoli. Immobiliare Novoli has overall paid Tecnimont a total of Euro
5,274,064.61. Tecnimont S.p.A. presented an appeal to the Court of Cassation and a
revocation application of the Court of Appeal judgment. The appeal is currently ongoing, with
the proceeding allocated General Role No. 11267/2015. In addition, on March 17, 2016,
following the dispute arising with regards to the payment of an additional amount of Euro
1,774,365.93 by Immobiliare Novoli Tecnimont in favor of Tecnimont on February 27, 2015
(on the basis of the Award and Judgement No. 1775/2014), the parties reached a settlement
agreement under which, subject to the effects deriving from the revocation judgements
(before the Florence Court of Appeal, subsequently rejected) and challenging judgements
(before the Supreme Court of Cassation) of the first point only of the grounds of the Florence
Court of Appeal judgement No. 1775/2014, Immobiliare Novoli paid the further amount of
Euro 400,000.00, while in addition committing to indemnify and release Tecnimont from all
and every claim previously advanced or which may be advanced relating to contracts signed
between the parties.

Municipality of Venice – Manifattura Tabacchi: with subpoena notified on June 5, 2010,
the Municipality of Venice summoned the Temporary Consortium comprising Tecnimont (59%
mandatee), Progin and other mandatees (the “ATI”), as designer of the new Venice legal
headquarters (ex Manifattura Tabacchi), requesting from the ATI repayment of damages
alleged by the Municipality of Venice for the failings and omissions of the executive projects
(concerning in particular, the failure to carry out chemical analysis of the soil, structure and
plant errors/omissions and the failure undertake archaeological surveys). The damage claim
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amounted to Euro 16.9 million. In its opening, the ATI strongly contested that alleged by the
Municipality of Venice. The Judge has currently withheld the decision.
Tecnimont/TCM FR – STMFC (Society du Terminal Methane de Foes Cavour): the
contract concerns the construction of a regasification terminal and was signed in September
2004 between the client STMFC - Society du Terminal Methane de Foes Cavour (70% Gas De
France, 30% Total) - subsequently assigned to Fosamax LNG - and STS (society end
participation), comprising: 1% Sofregaz, 49% Tecnimont, 50% Saipem France (hereafter
“STS“). The award was issued on February 13, 2015, under which STS is required to pay
Fosamax delay penalties, costs related to accidents, disorder and harmful events at the site
and for residual works carried out by Fosamax; Fosamax however shall pay STS for the
increase in contractual value, the reimbursement of bank guarantees and additional costs, in
addition to interest as provided for in the Judgement. The recognition of the respective
positions took place in April 2015. Fosamax LNG subsequently challenged the award before
the French Council of State, requesting nullification of the allegation put forward that the
Arbitration Board erroneously applied private law in the place of public law. STS filed its
defense petition before the Council of State. The parties exchanged petitions at the hearing
before the French Council of State (Conseil d’Etat). Subsequently, at the hearing of the
Rapporteur Public (Reporting Judge), the debate phase was closed. The Rapporteur referred
the case to the Tribunal des Conflits, which is required to reach its decision within three
months from the day of referral. At the hearing of December 3, 2015 for discussion of the
suspension of the counterparty’s procedure taken at the Court of Appeal, the case was
adjourned to the hearing of January 7, 2016. At this hearing, the Court of Appeal suspended
the proceedings ahead of the Tribunal des Conflits decision. With decision No. 4043 the
Tribunal declared the administrative jurisdiction as competent for the arbitration award
appeal. On November 9, 2016, the Conseil d’Etat only partially annulled the Award, in terms
of the section in which the request of the company Fosamax LNG for payment by the STS
Group of costs for the at risk works and expenses of the STS Group (mise end régie (under
authority of a third party)) was rejected, confirming however all other decisions of the
Arbitration Board. Fosamax in addition initiated further legal proceedings before the Court of
Appeal: one concerning the cancellation of the award and the other cancellation of the decree
of the TGI Chairman (hereafter the “exequatur”). (1) Award cancellation appeal: With regards
to this appeal, STS requested the Court to consider itself as lacking jurisdiction in view of the
decision of April 11, 2016 of the Tribunal des conflits which declared the jurisdiction of the
Conseil d’Etat for the award cancellation appeal. The Paris Court of Appeal accepted STS’s
arguments and therefore declared itself to lack jurisdiction to decide upon this appeal (in favor
of administrative jurisdiction) both for the principal appeal and accessory (enforcement
appeal). (2) Appel nullité dell’exequatur: With regards to the second appeal, STS requested
the Court to consider the action inadmissible due to the non-fulfilment of the initiation
requirements. Subordinately, STS requested the Court to consider that as Fosamax made
payment willingly it implicitly accepted the award, which was therefore no longer
challengeable. The decision of the Court of Appeal rejected STS’s grounds, founding its
decision, among other matters, on the control of the award allocated to administrative
jurisdiction and the possibility to challenge the decision before the civil jurisdiction. As
considering arguments relating to compliance with the award, the Court of Appeal considered
that this review required the competent judge to declare upon the cancellation of the award:
therefore, judgement was not made on the point, referring the decision to the Conseil d’Etat.
In addition, the Court of Appeal considered itself competent to review the appeal, taking
account of the fact that the decision was issued by a civil authority and may no longer be
challenged before the administrative jurisdiction. Therefore, this procedure will continue on
such lines and the Court of Appeal will fix a date in the coming weeks for examination and
discussion of the case. The practical impact of a negative decision by the Court of Appeal is
quite reduced (except for judgment against legal and case expenses) as the Conseil d’Etat,
through its November 9, 2016 decision confirmed the validity of the award, with the exception
of the request of Fosamax concerning mise end régie. On June 21, 2017, Fosmax notified STS
of an “ICC Request for arbitration”. On August 22, 2017, STS filed its “Answer to the Request
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for Arbitration”, appointing an arbitrator. With appointment of the Chairman on January 19,
2018, the Arbitration Court was convened.
KT – HYL TECHNOLOGIES – on July 22, 2015, an arbitration request was notified by the
Client HYL TECHNOLOGY for alleged serious non-fulfilment by KT in the execution of the EP
contract signed with the Client in May 2011. The claim presented by HYL amount to USD 32
million for damages and USD 45 million for loss of earnings. As per the contractual terms, the
arbitration was taken to the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber of
Commerce and was held in Milan. In the defensive petitions filed on September 18, 2015 and
August 4, 2016, KT contested the accusation of poor design and rejected the assumption,
drawn up by the plaintiff, of KT’s liability for the accident at the plant on November 2, 2014.
KT made a counter-claim requesting the sum of approx. Euro 2.7 million together with the
restoration of costs incurred to date of Euro 900 thousand in relation to the arbitration. The
claim requested by HYL for damages does not appear founded and does not contain specified
detailed attachments such as (i) non-compliance by KT; (ii) indication of the link between the
event which caused the damage and the activities undertaken by KT in execution of the
contract and (iii) the certified damage incurred. The request by the counterparty for the loss
of earnings - which is subject to the outcome on the assessment of the direct damage - is also
unfounded in consideration of the following: (i) the contract underwritten between the parties
expressly provides for the exclusion of indirect and consequential damage (citing, for example
purposes, loss of production or profit, loss of revenue, loss of use, loss of capital); ii) the nonawarding of the order to HYL would principally be due to the (reduced/lower) reliability of the
technology of this latter, in both absolute terms (compared to historical performances of the
plant constructed by HYL), and in relative terms (compared to its competitors). The latest
“Procedural Timetable” sent to the Parties by the Arbitration Court establishes a deadline of
April 6, 2017 for the filing of our third Rejoinder and fixed the dates of May 22-30 for the
hearings to be held in Milan. On the request of the counterparty, after the filing of our
Rejoinder, the Arbitration Court granted an extension to October 2017. The hearings were
held between October 9-14 2017. The Arbitration Court fixed the date of February 2, 2018 for
the simultaneous post-hearing filing, with a deadline for reply to the Parties of February 26,
2018. A first partial “award on liabilities” will be sent by the arbitration court to the
International Court of Arbitration on August 31, 2018.
Indian Oil Corporation Limited (“IOCL”) (India), the dispute with the client IOCL concerns
a lump sum EPC contract signed on November 25, 2006 for the construction of a
“Polypropylene Plant with Product Warehouse facilities for Polypropylene2” (Part-A) (EPCC-2A)
located in the Panipat Naptha Cracker Complex (Haryana). During execution of the project, a
number of events occurred affecting the rights of the Contractor to the deferment of plant
delivery terms, as per the contractual terms. In May 2010, the Contractor formally requested
an extension, submitting to the Client a document in support of this request. The Client only
responded to these extension requests on April 5, 2012, presenting its contractual price
reduction request following the project delays: (i) 9.5% contract price reduction for delayed
achievement of mechanical completion; (ii) Rs. 27,000,000 for delayed achievement of the
Interim Milestone. In October 2012, Tecnimont filed an arbitration request for, among other
matters, payment of the amounts related to the achievement of mechanical completion (ii) an
extension and payment of additional costs, (iii) payment of interest on delayed payments to
date. On November 9, 2012, IOCL filed its response to the arbitration application, rejecting
entirely Tecnimont’s arguments. The arbitration - which in fact was interrupted due to
discussions between the parties for a possible settlement - was reinitiated with the
constitution of the Arbitration Tribunal of August 10, 2015. On September 29, 2015, the
preliminary hearing was held to set out the arbitration procedure calendar and on January 27,
2016 Tecnimont filed its Statement of Claim requesting again payment for: (i) the portion of
the contractual price considered plus interest; (ii) certain extra works; (iii) additional costs
incurred due to delays caused by IOCL and disruptions; (iv) the acceleration costs; (v)
interest on delayed payments to date. On May 23, 2016, IOCL filed a motion as per Section
16 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act of 1996, requesting rejection of Tecnimont’s
arbitration application as relating to matters not covered by the arbitration clause. Following
an exchange of briefs between the parties and two hearings in April and July 2016, on
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September 1, 2016 the Arbitration Tribunal rejected IOCL’s motion, confirming the
applicability of arbitration to Tecnimont’s claims and ordering therefore the continuation of the
arbitration proceedings. As fixed by the Arbitration Tribunal on September 8, 2016, on
November 20, 2016 IOCL filed its Statement of Defense (without counterclaim). On January
23, 2017, a further hearing was held which fixed, among other matters, a deadline for the
filing of Tecnimont’s response (Rejoinder) to the Statement of Defense of IOCL which was filed
on March 21, 2017. The final procedural hearing is fixed for July 8, 2017. At the hearing of
July 8, 2017, the Court fixed the date of November 30, 2017 for the filing of written testimony
and of the technical consultant opinions, and the date of December 16, 2017 for the next
hearing. The December 16, 2017 hearing was deferred to January 23, 2018. At that hearing,
the IOCL requested an extension of the deadline to February 15, 2018 for the filing of the
Witness statement and the Expert reports, which the Court granted to both parties. The next
hearing was scheduled for April 30, 2018. On April 5, 2018, the parties signed a settlement
which shall be binding upon the parties on June 30, 2018 on fulfilment of the established
conditions and on IOCL’s payment of the amount due. As a result of the agreement reached,
the parties have requested arbitration to be discontinued.
NANGAL (India) - project acquired in May 2010 from National Fertilizer Limited (NFL). The
project involved the reconversion of the existing Nangal fertilizer plant, replacing the fuel oil
and natural gas system and modernizing the accessory infrastructure. Engineering, material
procurement and construction have been completed. The project is 99.9% complete. The
mechanical completion of works was delivered on February 15, 2013, while plant start-up took
place on April 9, 2013. The performance tests were successfully completed. In 2015,
negotiations for the settlement of outstanding matters with the client continued. In February
2016, following the unexpected requests of the client and without notice or notice of
contractual non-fulfilment, a procedure for the enforcement of the project Performance Bond
was initiated; a legal case was opened in India under Section 9 of the Arbitration and
Conciliation Act. 1996. The High Court of Delhi on February 15, 2016 immediately blocked
enforcement until March 9, 2016. At the subsequent hearing of March 9, 2016, the Delhi Court
maintained the “status quo” of NFL requests until April 29, 2016. At that hearing, NFL
requested an extension to the deadline for the filing of its petitions. At the hearings of July 29,
2016 and October 6, 2016, the same Court maintained the “status quo”. At the last hearing of
December 6, 2016, the Court decided to maintain the supervision order of February 15, 2016
unaltered until the decision of the sole arbitrator, referring therefore to the arbitrator the
decision upon enforcement of the Performance Bond. With order of December 6, 2016, the
Court therefore declared the proceedings closed as per Section 9 of the Arbitration and
Conciliation Act. 1996. The Maire Tecnimont Group, supported by its consultants, does not
concur with the actions of the Client and considers that strong arguments in its favor exist.
Simultaneously, Tecnimont on February 27, 2016 presented an arbitration for recognition of
the previously advanced requests to the client for the issue of improperly withheld payments
for the works carried out, in addition to recognition of additional compensation due to the
extra costs incurred and chargeable to the client. With order of December 9, 2016 of the
Supreme Court of India (pronouncing upon the Section 11 of the Arbitration and Conciliation
Act of 1996 proceeding), Justice S.S. Nijjar was appointed as the sole arbitrator. On February
15, 2017, the parties agreed with the arbitrator the arbitration calendar. As established,
Tecnimont on May 19, 2017 filed its Statement of Claim, while NFL is required to file its
Statement of Defense and counterclaim on August 11, 2017. In August, NFL filed its
Statement of Defense and Counterclaim, with Tecnimont responding in October 2017 with the
filing of a Rejoinder and a Reply to Couterclaim. The parties on June 4 filed their written
testimonies. Tecnimont also delivered the reports of its technical consultants. Preliminary
hearings are currently scheduled for August and September 2018, with arbitration expected to
conclude in the first quarter of 2019.
NAGRP Kuwait (Kuwait) - acquired in July 2010 from Kuwait National Petroleum Company
(KNPC). The EPC contract regards the provision of three portions of plant: a new process plant
(New AGRP), a steam generation plant (Utilities) and the development of an existing plant
(AGRP Revamping). Without any notice and entirely unexpectedly, on May 16, 2016, the
Client terminated the contract and which was immediately contested by Tecnimont S.p.A.
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before the competent judicial courts. Following the resolution Tecnimont in fact commenced a
civil procedure requesting the competent judge to accept the illegitimacy of the contract
resolution as well as requesting condemnation of the Client for the payment of the contractual
price matured to the date of the resolution, to the restitution of the sums received following
the enforcement of the bank guarantees and payment for all damages incurred. Despite these
proceedings the Parties began negotiations on the possibility to conclude a settlement
agreement which would provide, among the various aspects, that the Client would commit to
the payment of the trade payables of the projects which, for such purpose, would be ceded
from Tecnimont to the client. Currently, negotiations are still in progress with conclusion
expected in the short-term. Based on that discussed and on information available to the
Group, the outcome will not result in the recognition of significant liabilities. The company
however does not intend to withdraw from the legal action unless a Settlement is agreed with
the Client.
ONGC Petro Additions Limited (India) This concerns two UNCITRAL arbitration proceedings
brought by the consortium comprising Tecnimont S.p.A. and Tecnimont Private Limited
against the Indian company ONGC Petro Additions Limited (“OPaL”) with regards to two
turnkey EPC Contracts (total value of approx. USD 440,000,000.00), regarding respectively
the construction by the Consortium of a 340 tons per annum polypropylene plant (PP Project)
and two HD/LLD “swing” polyethylene plant, each of 360 tons per annum capacity (PE
Project). The PP and PE polyolefin plant are located in Dahej, in the State of Gujarat (India).
Both Notices of Arbitration cite the following demands: a) recognition of a “time at large”
situation regarding the two projects due to the actions of OPaL; b) the recognition of
additional costs incurred and compensation for damage for delays owing to OPaL; c)
recognition of and payment for extra works; d) the release of amounts overdue or incorrectly
held by OPaL. Arbitration was suspended as the parties attempted to reach a settlement
privately. Arbitration was thereafter reinitiated, with Tecnimont S.p.A. and Tecnimont Private
Limited filing at the Indian Court a motion for the appointment of the Arbitration Board Chair.
The Arbitration Board Chair was appointed, who issued the first procedural order which: i)
requires unification of the two arbitration procedures into a single procedure; ii) sets OPaL’s
jurisdictional claims for a subsequent hearing; iii) set the procedural timeline. Subsequently,
the Court was declared as competent to consider the issue and the New Delhi Arbitration
Board was assigned the case. At the end of 2017, Tecnimont and Tecnimont Private Limited
filed their Statement of Claim. OPaL filed on April 2, 2018 its Statement of Defense and
Counterclaim. Tecnimont and Tecnimont Private Limited will file their response petition by
September 2018.

TAX DISPUTES
Maire Tecnimont Group Tax disputes concern outstanding tax proceedings relating to ordinary
operations of Group companies. A summary of the main positions at June 30, 2018 according
to currently available information is presented below.

TECNIMONT SPA: Tax assessment concerning IRPEG - IRAP - VAT and withholding
taxes for 2003. With IRPEG - IRAP - VAT and withholding tax assessments concerning 2003,
notified to Maire Engineering (subsequently incorporated into Tecnimont S.p.A.), the Tax
Agency assessed higher IRPEG of Euro 4,656 thousand, higher IRAP of Euro 577 thousand,
higher VAT of Euro 3,129 thousand, higher withholding taxes of Euro 10 thousand, higher
regional levy of Euro 700 thousand and issued a penalty totaling Euro 6,988 thousand.
Tecnimont S.p.A. challenged appropriately in advance the tax assessment before the
competent Turin Provincial Tax Commission which, accepting the company’s reasoning,
dismissed nearly all the claims brought by the above-stated tax deed. This judgement was
reviewed in 2008 by the justices of the Turin Regional Tax Commission, which accepted the
Tax Agency’s appeal. Among the findings annulled by the first level justices, although
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thereafter confirmed by the Regional Tax Commission, we highlight finding No. 2 concerning
an extraordinary gain of Euro 12,022 thousand following the issue of the UNCITRAL arbitration
award, subject to the Agency claim concerning FY 2003. Both parties appealed to the Court of
Cassation which on April 15, 2016 confirmed the Court of Appeal decision (concerning the
main findings) and referred the case to a differing section of the Turin Regional Tax
Commission, also in terms of the (re)quantification of penalties following the introduction of a
more lenient penalty system (Legislative Decree 158/15). This judgment is currently pending
before the Regional Tax Commission (hearing deferred to November 6, 2018), following the
submission of a joint request by the parties. The case was deferred due to the counter-appeal
brought by the company, currently ongoing, against the Agency for the repayment of taxes
paid provisionally, ahead of judgment, concerning the amount exceeding that due following
the judgment of the Court of Cassation and in light of the changes to the penalty system
introduced by Legislative Decree 158/15. At the same counter-appeal, the question was also
brought to the attention of the Tax Agency, already cited in the application presented by the
company on November 24, 2009, of the repayment of income taxes paid by Tecnimont in
2005 for the release of part of the Quetta fund (income taxes of Euro 2,329 thousand plus
interest), and definitively declared as not due following confirmation by the Supreme Court of
Cassation of finding No. 2 regarding financial year 2003. Where the counter-appeal against
the Tax Agency does not permit the company to obtain quick recognition of the amounts due
for repayment, the company reserves the right to challenge before the competent Tax
Commission the (tacit or express) denial of repayment by the Tax Agency.
Ingenieria y Construccion Tecnimont Chile y Compania Limitada: Tax assessment
2011. In May 2013 Ingenieria y Construccion Tecnimont Chile y Compania Limitada
(“Tecnimont Chile”) was notified of an application by the Chilean tax authorities regarding tax
findings and claims. In particular, the calculation of the 2011 tax result was contested,
rejecting the tax losses accumulated (approx. CLP 71.9 billion) and claiming taxes for a total
of approx. CLP 4.9 billion. Tecnimont Chile promptly requested nullification of the claim as
illegitimate and unfounded, providing fresh and extensive documentation not previously
considered by the Chilean Tax Agency. On the basis of this documentation provided, on
August 8, 2013 the Chilean Tax Agency partially nullified the act, acknowledging the validity of
part of the tax loss, while also almost entirely cancelling all payment demands for increased
taxes and interest previously notified to the company. Tecnimont Chile continued to appeal in
support of the correctness of its conduct and, backed by a leading legal firm, proposed an
appeal against the first level unfavorable decision of November 20, 2017 (hearing awaited). In
addition, following a further and subsequent tax audit, the Chilean Tax Agency issued an
additional assessment raising issues and challenges with regards to financial years 2012 and
2013, derecognizing part of the prior year tax losses (for a total of approx. Chilean Pesos 10.3
billion). Tecnimont Chile requested on time cancellation of the assessment as considering it
unlawful and unfounded: demonstrating the correctness of its conduct and supported by a
leading legal firm, on December 20, 2017 the company challenged the assessment through
submitting an appeal(awaiting hearing).
TWS SA: Tax assessment - financial years 2004 to 2009. In December 2014, the Tax
Agency notified the Swiss company TWS SA of separate tax assessments, establishing the tax
residence of the company in Italy for the 2004 to 2009 tax years. The assessed and
demanded taxes totaled Euro 3,198 thousand (in addition to penalties of Euro 3,838
thousand). The company considered these assessments as illegitimate and unfounded and,
supported by a leading legal and tax firm, challenged all of these acts before the competent
Milan Provincial Tax Commission which, with the judgment filed on June 29, 2015, accepted
all appeals, judging expenses against the Tax Agency. Following the appeal presented by the
Tax Agency, with judgment filed on November 22, 2017, the Milan Regional Tax Commission
confirmed the first level Judgment, entirely in favor of the company, judging the repayment of
additional expenses against the agency. On April 24, 2018, TWS was party to an out-of-court
agreement by which the Tax Agency committed not to challenge the Court of Cassation
judgment (making the entirely favourable judgment for the company therefore definitive)
against the waiver of case costs.
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KT Kinetics Technology SpA: Tax Agency audit on FY 2011. On November 3, 2016, in
conclusion of the Finance Police`s tax audit relating to the year 2011, the Tax office (Lazio
Regional Tax Office) issued separate tax assessments for IRES, IRAP and withholding taxes.
The company immediately sent an appeal to the Tax Office requesting and obtaining the
cancellation of some assessments which were illegitimate (without charge to the company)
and in March 2017 agreed a simplified settlement for all items disputed for IRAP purposes only
and withholding taxes (charge of Euro 247 thousand). The principal matters disputed in the
assessment notices for IRES corporate tax only (notification also sent to Maire Tecnimont as
tax consolidating company) concern however the accounting treatment of some financial
contracts and dividends from a foreign owned company. The additional IRES claimed amounts
to Euro 1,064 thousand, in addition to penalties and interest. With regards to these disputes,
Maire Tecnimont SpA presented the “IPEC form” requesting the recalculation of the amounts
due following the use of prior tax consolidation losses. Therefore, the Tax Agency accepted
the request to cancel the taxes, penalties and interests claimed in the assessment. The
company, considering that it has correctly acted and supported by leading tax consultants,
challenged the Tax Assessment before the Rome Provincial Tax Commission. It simultaneously
brought a counter-appeal against the Tax Agency and had the case postponed following the
application jointly presented to the Tax Agency.

15.

Treasury shares

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. on June 12, 2018 launched a treasury share buy back programme, as
per Article 5 of Regulation (EC) No. 596/2014 (the “MAR”), in service of the Second Cycle
(2017) of the “2016-2018 General Share Plan for Maire Tecnimont Group employees”
approved by the Shareholders’ AGM of April 27, 2016.
Between June 12, 2018 and June 30, 2018 inclusive, 500,000 treasury shares (0.15% of the
share capital) were acquired at an average weighted price of Euro 4.174, for a total amount of
Euro 2,087,182.15.
On June 30, 2018, 472,180 shares from the Program had been assigned to foreign Plan
Beneficiaries.
The company on June 30, 2018 held 27,820 treasury shares from the Second Cycle (2017) of
purchases and an additional 16,248 excess treasury shares from the First Cycle (2016).
The company therefore at June 30, 2018 held 44,068 treasury shares.
Between July 4, 2018 and July 10, 2018 inclusive, 663,721 treasury shares were acquired
(corresponding to 0.20% of the total number of ordinary shares), at an average weighted
price of Euro 4.254, for a total amount of Euro 2,823,345.16.
Taking into account also the shares already acquired in the June 12, 2018 - June 30, 2018
inclusive period, all shares concerning the Second Cycle (year 2017) of the Plan had been
acquired and therefore the relative Program was completed. All the Second Cycle (year 2017)
shares had been assigned to the Plan Beneficiaries by publication of this Half-Year Report.
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16.

Going Concern

The Group again reported strong results for the first half of 2018, with consolidated net
income of Euro 59.9 million (Euro 65.4 million in H1 2017; Euro 126.6 million in 2017),
demonstrating the Group’s significant growth over the recent past and good industrial
performance. The Group at June 30, 2018 presents consolidated shareholders’ equity of Euro
291.9 million (Euro 283.8 million at December 31, 2017).
At period-end, the adjusted net financial position presented Net Cash of Euro 81 million,
slightly reducing on December 31, 2017, although excluding the payment of dividends would
result in Net Cash at June 30, 2018 substantially in line with March 2018 and December 2017.
In the first half of 2018, Group commercial operations generated new orders worth Euro
1,536.7 million; the Backlog at June 30, 2018 was Euro 6,904.2 million, slightly reducing on
December 31, 2017 (Euro -325.2 million) and particularly as a result of the significant
production executed in the first half of 2018.
On May 3, 2018, Maire Tecnimont issued 165,000 Non-Convertible Bonds for a total of Euro
165 million; the interest rate on the Bonds is 2.625% annually, with settlement at nominal
value on April 30, 2024 where not previously settled or cancelled. The Bond Loan is part of a
project to diversify funding and optimise the medium/long-term debt in order to align its
structure with the altered financial needs of the Maire Tecnimont Group.
On July 16, 2018, in completion of the funding diversification and restructuring of the Group
medium/long-term debt, the subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. agreed a new medium/long-term
cash loan. In particular, the New Loan Contract, among other matters, stipulates i) the issue
of a new medium/long-term “Term Loan” cash credit line for a maximum Euro 185 million,
with Euro 175 million allocated for the full repayment of the residual part of the original Euro
350 million “Term Loan” undertaken by Tecnimont and Euro 10 million to top up the original
loan and ii) the increase of the “Revolving Facility” credit line issued in favour of Tecnimont
from Euro 50 million to Euro 100 million. The New Loan Contract further reduces the
applicable medium/long-term Group debt margin from 1.95% to 1.70%, extending the
maturity from March 2022 to June 30, 2023 and reviewing the repayment plan.
In relation to the results and the financial position at June 30, 2018
the long-term plan approved, there are no significant variances and
in line with the strategic projections of the Group confirming the
operational planning of the various projects and order backlog and
acquired, confirming the actions undertaken quarter after quarter.

and the forecasts within
the results achieved are
forecasts based on the
of those expected to be

In light of the results and the initiatives which the Group has undertaken and executed, the
Board of Directors declare that no doubts surround the Group’s going concern.
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17.

Subsequent events and outlook

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
NEW EPC CONTRACT IN ABU DHABI, AND OTHER LICENSING AND ENGINEERING SERVICE
CONTRACTS WORTH USD 730 MILLION
On July 13, 2018 - Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. announced the awarding of new orders and
contract supplements to its main subsidiaries for a total value of USD 730 million for licensing,
engineering services and Engineering, Procurement & Construction (EPC). These contracts
were awarded by some of the leading international clients, based in Europe, the Middle East,
South-East Asia and the Americas.
The new orders included the EPC contract awarded to Tecnimont S.p.A. by Abu Dhabi Polymer
Company (Borouge) for a new polypropylene unit (PP5 project) at Ruwais (Abu Dhabi), United
Arab Emirates. Borouge is a joint venture between Abu Dhabi National Oil Company
(ADNOC), one of the largest oil & gas companies in the world, and Borealis, a leading
international Austrian petrochemical and plastics producer.
The scope of work involves a new polypropylene unit (PP5) and related structures, to be
incorporated into the existing Borouge 3 Complex. The Polypropylene Unit shall have a
maximum capacity of 480,000 tons per annum. Project completion is scheduled for the end of
2021.
The Maire Tecnimont Group has been behind the development of the Abu Dhabi petrochemical
value chain since the end of 1990’s, with the first Borouge (Borouge 1) polyolefin complex
completed in 2001. The Group concluded two additional complex expansion projects in 2007
and 2010 (respectively Borouge 2 and Borouge 3). This new EPC contract, which follows the
successful completion of the Front End Engineering Design (FEED) phase by Tecnimont,
confirms the Group’s strong global polyolefin leadership and further consolidates its position
on one of its long-standing Middle Eastern markets.

TWO EPC REFINERY BUSINESS CONTRACTS WORTH USD 527 MILLION AWARDED BY LUKOIL
On July 23, 2018 - Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. announced that its subsidiary KT – Kinetics
Technology has been awarded two EPC (Engineering, Procurement and Construction)
contracts by LUKOIL NizhegorodNefteorgSyntez, a JSC LUKOIL subsidiary. The contracts
concern five refinery process units and are part of the oil residue upgrading project for the
Kstovo Refinery in Central Russia.
The total value of the two contracts is USD 527 million. The USD 156 million EP portion was
awarded and announced to the market on November 10, 2017 and included in the Group
Backlog at December 31, 2017.
The scope of works includes Engineering, Procurement and Construction for a Diesel Fuel
Hydrotreater Unit, a Hydrogen Production Unit, a Pressure Swing Adsorption (PSA) unit, a Gas
Fractionation unit and a Sulphur Recovery unit.
The new units will improve the complexity and technological content of the Kstovo Refinery,
permitting the production of higher quality derivatives and therefore meeting the increasing
demand for cleaner fuels and at the same time generating greater earnings on such high
added value products. With this major development, the Maire Tecnimont Group strengthens
its position in the refinery sector and its track record in the CIS.
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MEDIUM/LONG-TERM BANK DEBT OPTIMISED: APPLICABLE RATE REDUCED FROM 1.95% TO
1.70%
On July 16, 2018, Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. announced that, in completion of its funding
diversification and the restructuring of the Group medium/long-term debt previously
announced to the market on March 15, 2018 on approval of the issue of the Maire Tecnimont
S.p.A. “Senior Unsecured due 30 April 2024” bond loan, placed on the capital markets in April
2018 for a nominal amount of Euro 165 million, at an annual interest rate of 2.625%, the
subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. agreed with Banca IMI S.p.A., as Agent Bank, and UniCredit
S.p.A., Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A., Banco BPM S.p.A. and Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.,
as Lending Banks, a new medium/long-term cash loan for a total maximum Euro 285 million.
The New Loan Contract specifically stipulates:
i) the issue of a new medium/long-term “Term Loan” cash credit line for a maximum Euro 185
million, with Euro 175 million allocated for the full repayment of the residual part of the
original Euro 350 million “Term Loan” undertaken by Tecnimont and Euro 10 million to top up
the original loan;
ii) the increase of the “Revolving Facility” credit line issued to Tecnimont, from Euro 50 million
to Euro 100 million.
The New Loan Contract further reduces the applicable medium/long-term Group debt margin
from 1.95% to 1.70%, extending the maturity from March 2022 to June 30, 2023 and
reviewing the repayment plan.
The New Loan Contract requires Tecnimont to provide declarations and undertake
commitments typical of similar transactions and, in line with the previous loan contract,
requires that the transaction’s obligations are covered by an independent on-demand
guarantee issued by Maire Tecnimont in favour of the Lending Banks and in the interest of
Tecnimont.

OUTLOOK
The Group, thanks to the strong order book following the signing of contracts with
international clients since the beginning of the current year and also subsequent to period
end, indicates for the second part of the year a prevalence of EPC project operations, with
volumes substantially in line with the first half of the year and margins reflecting those
generally applied for such contracts.
Cash flows from projects in portfolio, also considering recent new orders acquired, are
expected more in line with the first half of the year.
As the organisational structure and geographical reach expands, streamlining measures
continue to be rolled out, which have lowered general expenses - and as confirmed in recent
quarters - against production generated in the period to the lowest levels in the industry.
The market is expected to remain challenging, although the recognised technological knowhow of the Group continues to develop and extend to adjacent technologies, in synergy with
existing technologies and a flexible business model offering innovative services and products
that can anticipate market demand. We can therefore forecast the maintenance of a
significant backlog. This forecast is backed up by a strong commercial pipeline and the
expectation of additional new contracts by the end of the current year.
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18.

Consolidated Financial Statements

18.1.

Consolidated Income Statement

(in Euro thousands)
Note

H1 2018

H1 2017

Revenues

22.1

1,819,565

1,646,942

Other operating income

22.2

11,009

6,196

1,830,574

1,653,138

Total Revenues

Raw materials and consumables

22.4

(503,430)

(692,419)

Service costs

22.5

(979,557)

(648,231)

Personnel expense

22.6

(195,707)

(180,629)

Other operating expenses

22.7

Total Costs

EBITDA

(51,591)

(35,616)

(1,730,285)

(1,556,895)

100,289

96,242

Amortization, depreciation and write-downs

22.8

(4,143)

(2,978)

Write-down of current assets

22.9

0

(407)

Provisions for risks and charges

22.9

(162)

(203)

95,984

92,654

EBIT

Financial income

22.10

10,303

31,403

Financial expenses

22.11

(18,844)

(23,369)

Investment income/(expense)

22.12

929

170

88,372

100,858

(28,496)

(35,460)

Net income for the period

59,876

65,398

Group

55,341

61,749

4,535

3,648

0.168

0.202

0.168

0.180

Income before tax

Income taxes, current and deferred

22.13

Minorities

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

22.14

The transactions with related parties, pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 of July 27, 2006, are illustrated in the
separate disclosure “Related Party Transactions”.
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18.2.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(in Euro thousands)

H1 2018

H1 2017

59,876

65,398

(102)

(90)

25

22

(78)

(69)

23.17

(5,378)

(2,631)

23.17

(37,932)

55,604

9,104

(13,345)

Total other comprehensive income/(expense) which may be
subsequently reclassified to income/(loss) for the period:

(34,206)

39,628

Total other comprehensive income/(expense), net of the tax
effect

(34,284)

39,560

25,592

104,957

21,057

101,309

4,535

3,648

Basic comprehensive earnings per share

0.064

0.332

Diluted comprehensive earnings per share

0.064

0.295

Note

Net income for the period

Other comprehensive income/(expense) which may not be
subsequently reclassified to income/(loss) for the period:

Actuarial gains/(losses)

23.17

Relative tax effect

Total other comprehensive income/(expense) which may not
be subsequently reclassified to income/(loss) for the period:

Other comprehensive income/(expense) which may be
subsequently reclassified to income/(loss) for the period:

Translation differences
Net valuation of derivatives instruments:
•
•

valuation derivative instruments
relative tax effect

Comprehensive income for the period

Attributable to:
•

Group

•

Minorities

The transactions with related parties, pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 of July 27, 2006, are illustrated in the
separate disclosure “Related Party Transactions”.
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18.3.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(in Euro thousands)
Note

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Property, plant and equipment

23.1

33,576

33,927

Goodwill

23.2

291,754

291,754

Other intangible assets

23.3

43,129

40,427

Investments in associates

23.4

16,132

16,436

Financial instruments - Derivatives

23.5

2,490

1,222

Other non-current financial assets

23.6

23,215

22,516

Other non-current assets

23.7

63,540

55,584

Deferred tax assets

23.8

Assets
Non-current assets

Total non-current assets

45,931

38,535

519,767

500,401

4,573

3,453

Current assets
Inventories
Advance payments to suppliers

23.9
23.9

311,873

255,514

Construction contracts

23.10

1,370,949

1,264,178

Trade receivables

23.11

420,883

481,342

Current tax assets

23.12

78,054

91,641

Financial instruments - Derivatives

23.13

7,578

19,976

Other current financial assets

23.14

5,703

5,356

Other current assets

23.15

119,079

146,847

Cash and cash equivalents

23.16

582,662

630,868

2,901,355

2,899,175

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale

0

0

Elimination of assets to and from assets/liabilities held-for-sale

0

0

3,421,122

3,399,576

Total current assets

Total Assets

The transactions with related parties, pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 of July 27, 2006, are illustrated in the
separate disclosure “Related Party Transactions”.

66

(in Euro thousands)
Note

June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital

23.17

19,921

19,690

Share premium reserve

23.17

272,921

224,698

Other reserves

23.17

4,793

6,683

Valuation reserve

23.17

(6,792)

22,114

Total shareholders’ equity & reserves

23.17

290,842

273,186

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)

23.17

(81,155)

(129,882)

Net income for the period

23.17

55,341

118,650

265,028

261,953

26,838

21,817

291,866

283,770

Total Group shareholders' equity

Minorities
Total Shareholders’ Equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial debt - non-current portion

23.18

164,888

324,602

Provisions for risk and charges - beyond 12 months

23.19

59,031

62,007

23.8

25,024

31,159

Deferred tax liabilities
Post-employment & other employee benefits

23.20

11,435

11,452

Other non-current liabilities

23.21

91,004

79,465

Financial instruments - Derivatives

23.22

5,030

249

Other non-current financial liabilities

23.23

Total non-current liabilities

202,517

39,719

558,930

548,652

156,916

103,943

Current liabilities
Short-term debt

23.24

Provisions for risks and charges - within 12 months

23.25

3,602

3,384

Tax payables

23.26

68,605

41,413

Financial instruments - Derivatives

23.27

18,917

9,876

Other current financial liabilities

23.28

330

79,911

Client advance payments

23.29

513,845

573,783

Construction contracts

23.30

402,440

408,561

Trade payables

23.31

1,331,110

1,282,306

Other Current Liabilities

23.32

74,561

63,976

2,570,326

2,567,154

Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale

0

0

Elimination of liabilities to and from assets/liabilities held-for-sale

0

0

3,421,122

3,399,576

Total current liabilities

Total Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities

The transactions with related parties, pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 of July 27, 2006, are illustrated in the
separate disclosure “Related Party Transactions”.
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19.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

( in Eur o t ho usand s)
Share
cap it al

December 31, 2016

Share
p r emium
reser ve

19,690 224,698

V aluat i o n
r eser ve

R et ained
ear ning s/ accum.
lo sses

Ot her
reser ves

T r anslat io n
reser ve

79,363

(14,907) (21,233) (192,405)
74,371

Allocation of the result

Inco me/
( lo sses) f o r
year

Gr o up
Shar eho ld ers’
eq uit y

M ino r it y
int er est
cap it al &
r eserves

Gro up &
M i no ri t y int .
co nso l. share.
eq uit y

74,371

169,577

15,079

184,656

(74,371)

(253)

Other movements

-

92

IFRS 2 (Employee share plans)

(18,883)

Distribution dividends

(9,531)
(2,631)

Comprehensive income

(2 63)

(516)

92

(1,384)

Treasury shares

-

( 25 3)

42,190

61,749

92

(1,38 4)

( 1,3 84)

( 28,414)

(2 8,414)

101,30 9

3,6 48

10 4,9 57

June 30, 2017

19,690 224,698

59,188

(17,537)

20,958

(127,818)

61,749

240,928

18,464

259,392

December 31, 2017

19,690 224,698

24,756

(18,073)

22,114

(129,882)

118,650

261,953

21,817

283,770

Allocation of the result

118,650

Distribution dividends

(42,064)

Share capital increase in service of
Equity Linked Bond

231

48,223

Application IFRS 15 & 9

Utilization of Treasury Shares 2018
for PAD Second cycle
Acquisition Treasury Shares 2018
for 2nd Cycle Em. Share Plan
Utilization of Treasury Shares for
Equity Linked Bond
Equity-Linked Bond Conversion
Effect

( 217 )
( 27,781)

-

4 85
-

4 8,4 54
2 68
(2 7,78 1)

(4 ,80 7)

( 4,8 07)

1,971

1,971

1,97 1

(24,883)

( 24 ,883 )

(2 4,8 83)

64,942

64 ,94 2

6 4,9 42

( 33 ,597 )

(3 3,5 97)

(5,378)

Comprehensive income

68

(4 2,0 64)

(78)

(33,597)

19,921 272,921

-

( 42 ,064 )

(27,781)
(4,807)

IFRS 2 (Employee share plans)

-

48 ,45 4
(139)

Other movements

June 30, 2018

(118,650)

28,244

(23,451)

(28,906)

(6,792)

55,341

(81,155)

55,341

21,05 7

4,5 35

265,028

26,838

2 5,5 92

291,866

20. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow (indirect
method)
( E ur o t ho usand )

Cas h and cash e quivalents at the beginning of the year (A)

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

630,868

497,138

59,876

65,398

Ope rations
Ne t Incom e of Group and M inoritie s
Adjus tm ents:
-

Amortisation of intangible assets

2,571

1,523

-

Depreciation of non-current tangible assets

1,572

1,455

-

Provisions

-

(Revaluations)/Write-dow ns on investments

-

Financial (Income)/Charges

-

Income and def erred tax

-

Capital (Gains)/Losses

-

(Increase)/Decrease inventories/supplier advances

-

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables

-

(Increase)/Decrease in construction contract receivables

-

Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities

22,124

-

(Increase)/Decrease in other assets

21,746

34,642

-

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables/advances f rom clients

12,522

215,451

-

Increase/(Decrease) in payables f or construction contracts

(6,121)

(35,168)

-

Increase/(Decrease) in provs. (including post-employment benef its)

(5,611)

(893)

-

Income taxes paid

(5,547)

(1,860)

Cas h flow from operations (B)

162

610

(929)

(170)

8,541

(8,033)

28,496

35,460

2

2

(57,479)
52,251
(166,796)

(32,621)

8,658
(47,678)
(226,460)
(41,399)

1,539

Inve s tm e nts
(Investment)/Disposal of non-current tangible assets

(1,222)

(2,239)

(Investment)/Disposal of intangible assets

(5,273)

(5,673)

(Investment)/Disposal in associated companies
Cas h flow from inve s tm e nts (C)

1,242

379

(5,253)

(7,533)

31,013

22,339

Financing
Increase/(Decrease) in bank overdraf ts
Changes in f inancial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in securities/bonds
Change in other f inancial assets and liabilities
Treasury Shares-Buyback

(146,063)
162,674
8,989
(24,883)

5,933
39,697
(20,079)
-

Cas h flow from financing (D)

(10,333)

16,178

Increase /(Decreas e) in Cash and Cash Equivale nts (B+C+D)

(48,207)

10,184

Cas h and cas h e quivale nts at pe riod e nd (A+B+C+D)

582,662

of w hich: Cash and cash equivalents of Discontinued Operations

CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS REPORTED IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS

-

582,662

507,322

-

507,322

The transactions with related parties, pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 of July 27, 2006, are illustrated in the
separate disclosure “Related Party Transactions”.
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21. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements at June
30, 2018
BASIS OF PREPARATION
INTRODUCTION
Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. is a company incorporated in Italy at the Rome Companies
Registration Office. The addresses of the registered office and principal headquarters of Group
activities are reported on the website www.mairetecnimont.it.
The condensed consolidated 2018 half-year financial statements were prepared in accordance
with IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and approved by
the European Union, as well as the provisions issued under Article 9 of Legislative Decree No.
38/2005. IFRS include all the revised international accounting standards (IAS) and all
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”),
previously known as the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”). In preparing the
condensed consolidated 2018 half-year financial statements as per IAS 34 “Interim financial
reporting”, the same accounting standards were used as for the financial statements at
December 31, 2017, to which reference should be made, with the exception of the new
standards IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 - as subsequently illustrated. These condensed consolidated
2018 half-year financial statements are expressed in Euro, as the majority of Group
operations are carried out in this currency. The foreign subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the policies described in the notes below.

GOING CONCERN
The Group and the company consider the going concern principle appropriate for the
preparation of the condensed consolidated 2018 half-year financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements prepared by the Group include the integrations introduced following
the application of “IAS 1 revised”, as follows:
The Balance Sheet accounts are classified between current and non-current, while the
Consolidated Income Statement and Comprehensive Income Statement are classified by
nature of expenses. The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement is presented in accordance with
the indirect method, adjusting the income for the period with non-cash items. The Statement
of change in Shareholders’ Equity reports comprehensive income (charges) for the period and
the changes in Shareholders’ Equity.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS,
FROM JANUARY 1, 2018
•

70

AMENDMENTS AND

IFRS

INTERPRETATIONS APPLIED

Standard IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers (published on May 28,
2014 and supplemented with further clarifications on April 12, 2016) which replaces
IAS 18 - Revenue and IAS 11 - Construction Contracts, in addition to the
interpretations IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 - Agreements for
the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets from Customers and
SIC 31 - Revenues-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The standard
establishes a new revenue recognition model, which will apply to all contracts with
clients, with the exception of those falling under the application of other IAS/IFRS such
as leasing, insurance contracts and financial instruments. The essential issues for the
recognition of revenues according to the new model are: the identification of the
contract with the client; the identification of the performance obligations of the

contract; the establishment of the price; the allocation of the price to the performance
obligations of the contract; the recognition criteria of the revenues when the entity
satisfies each of the performance obligations.
The application of the revenue recognition model established in 5 phases, as per IFRS
15 and as previously mentioned, did not indicate significant impacts. The Group
recognises revenues as per IAS 11 through the utilisation of the percentage of
completion criterion, valued as per the “Cost-to-Cost” method. This method is not
expected to change with the introduction of IFRS 15, being one of the input based
methods set out by the new standard. It is currently considered to best reflect the
transfer to the client of control of the works under construction.
However, with regards to costs incurred for expected and specifically identified future
acquisition contracts following the application of the more stringent requirements under
IFRS 15, some of the costs previously recognised as assets will not meet the conditions
identified by the new standard, whose effect on opening shareholder’ equity at
01.01.2018 was considered to reduce shareholders’ equity by approx. Euro 22 million,
net of the tax effect.
•

Final version of IFRS 9 - Financial instruments (published on July 24, 2014). The
document incorporates the results of the Classification and measurement, Impairment
and Hedge accounting phases of the IASB project to replace IAS 39:
o the standard introduces new criteria for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and liabilities;
o The impairment requirements are based on an expected credit loss (ECL) model
that replaces the IAS 39 incurred loss model, utilising supporting information,
available without unreasonable charges or effort, which includes historic,
current and projected figures;
o introduces a new hedge accounting model (increase in the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, changes in the accounting method of forward
contracts and options when included in a hedge accounting relationship, change
in the effectiveness test).
Application of IFRS 9 with regards to hedge accounting will not impact the financial
statements in terms of numbers, but rather in terms of the provision of greater
disclosure in the Group consolidated financial statements.
With regards to hedge
accounting, application was prospective from the date of first application. At that date,
the hedges had not changed and the new accounting rules, with specific regard to the
time value of the options and the swap points of the four contracts, did not result in any
changes.
In relation to the impairment on financial assets on the basis of expected losses and the
analysis on outstanding receivables at the previous reporting date, applying a risk
factor on the basis of the specific default probability of the counterparties, the effect
was to reduce opening shareholders’ equity at 01.01.2018 by approx. Euro 6.3 million,
net of the tax effect.
With regards to the valuation of financial liabilities, IFRS 9 provides for upon their
renegotiation, differing from IAS 39, the use of the Internal Rate of Return of the
original liability adjusted only for the new settlement costs. The difference between the
previous amortised cost and the Net Present Value of the renegotiated liability should
be recognised to the Income Statement. The utilisation of the Internal Rate of Return
of the original loan had a positive effect on opening shareholders’ equity at 01.01.2018
of approx. Euro 0.2 million, net of the tax effect.
Finally, with regards to the valuation of financial assets concerning minority
investments, IAS 39 established the option to maintain the historic cost, while IFRS 9
however requires fair value measurement. The impact of the fair value measurement of
minority investments increases opening shareholders’ equity by approx. Euro 0.7
million, net of the tax effect.
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The Maire Tecnimont Group applied the new IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 provisions
retrospectively, recording the cumulative effect of first time application of the new
standards as an adjustment to the opening 2018 shareholders’ equity balance, without
therefore restating - as per permitted by the standards - the comparative prior year
figures.

The following table indicates the changes to the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at
January 1, 2018 from application of the two standards IFRS 15 and IFRS 9.

In Euro thousands

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
GOODWILL
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - DERIVATIVES
OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
INVENTORIES
ADVANCE PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
TRADE RECEIVABLES
CURRENT TAX ASSETS
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - DERIVATIVES
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CURRENT ASSETS
ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE
ELIMINATION OF ASSETS TO AND FROM
ASSETS/LIABILITIES HELD-FOR-SALE
TOTAL ASSETS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL
SHARE PREMIUM RESERVE
OTHER RESERVES
REVALUATION RESERVE
TOTAL CAPITAL AND RESERVES
RETAINED EARNINGS/(ACCUM. LOSSES)
NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
TOTAL GROUP SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL MINORITY INTEREST SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FINANCIAL DEBT - NON-CURRENT PORTION
PROVISIONS FOR RISKS & CHARGES - BEYOND
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December
31, 2017
Published
33,927
291,754
40,427
16,436
1,222
22,516
55,584
38,535
500,401
3,453
255,514
1,264,178
481,342
91,641
19,976
5,356
146,847
630,868
2,899,175
0

IFRS
15
Effect

IFRS 9
Effect

893
8,713
8,713

1,750
2,643

(31,113)
(8,046)

(31,113)

(8,046)

0
3,399,576

(22,400)

(5,404)

December
31, 2017
Published

IFRS
15
Effect

IFRS 9
Effect

19,690
224,698
6,683
22,114
273,186
(129,882)
118,650
261,953
21,817
283,770
324,602
62,007

0
(22,400)

0
(5,381)

(22,400)

(5,381)

(22,400)

(5,381)
(233)

January
1, 2018
Adjusted
33,927
291,754
40,427
16,436
1,222
23,409
55,584
48,998
511,757
3,453
255,514
1,233,065
473,296
91,641
19,976
5,356
146,847
630,868
2,860,016
0
0
3,371,772

January
1, 2018
Adjusted
19,690
224,698
6,683
22,114
273,186
(157,663)
118,650
234,172
21,817
255,989
324,369
62,007

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION LIABILITIES
12 MONTHS
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
POST EMPLOY. & OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - DERIVATIVES
OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SHORT-TERM DEBT
PROVISIONS FOR RISKS & CHARGES - WITHIN
12 MONTHS
TAX PAYABLES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - DERIVATIVES
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
CLIENT ADVANCE PAYMENTS
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
TRADE PAYABLES
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE
ELIMINATION OF LIABILITIES TO AND FROM
ASSETS/LIABILITIES HELD-FOR-SALE
TOTAL LIABILITIES

December
31, 2017
Published
31,159
11,452
79,465
249
39,719
548,652
103,943

IFRS
15
Effect

IFRS 9
Effect
210

0

(23)

January
1, 2018
Adjusted
31,369
11,452
79,465
249
39,719
548,629
103,943

3,384
41,413
9,876
79,911
573,783
408,561
1,282,306
63,976
2,567,154
0

0
0

0
0

3,384
41,413
9,876
79,911
573,783
408,561
1,282,306
63,976
2,567,154
0

0
3,399,576

0
(22,400)

0
(5,404)

0
3,371,772

The following tables indicate the impacts from adoption of IFRS 15 on thecondensed
consolidated half-year financial statements at June 30, 2018:

73

Maire Tecnimont Group

74

OTHER ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, APPLIED FROM

JANUARY 1, 2018

The following amendments and interpretations applied from January 1, 2018 did not have a
significant impact on the Group consolidated financial statements.
•

Amendment to IFRS 2 “Classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions (published on June 20, 2016) which contains clarifications upon the
recognition of the effects of vesting conditions in the presence of cash-settled sharebased payments, on the classification of share-based payments with characteristics
of net settlement and the recognition of the amendments to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment which changes the classification from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

•

Document “Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2014-2016 Cycle”, published on
December 8, 2016 (including IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards - Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters, IAS
28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures – Measuring investees at fair value
through profit or loss: an investment-by-investment choice or a consistent policy
choice, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities – Clarification of the scope of
the Standard) which partially integrates the pre-existing standards.

•

Interpretation IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration”
(published on December 8, 2016). The interpretation provides guidelines for
transactions in foreign currencies where advances or non-monetary payments on
account are recorded in the financial statements, before the recognition of the relative
asset, cost or revenue. This document provides indications on how an entity should
determine the date of a transaction, and consequently, the exchange rate to be utilised
concerning operations in foreign currencies concerning payments made or received in
advance.

IFRS

AND

IFRIC

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

EU, NOT
GROUP AT JUNE 30, 2018

APPROVED BY THE

•

YET MANDATORY AND NOT ADOPTED IN ADVANCE BY THE

IFRS 16 - Leases (published on January 13, 2016) which replaces IAS 17 – Leases,
as well as the interpretations IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases—Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The new standard provides a
new definition of leases and introduces a criterion based on control (right of use) of
an asset to distinguish leasing contracts from service contracts, identifying essential
differences: the identification of the asset, the right of replacement of the asset, the
right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the asset and
the right to use the asset underlying the contract. The standard establishes a single
model to recognise and measure leasing contracts for the leasee (lessees) which
provides also for the recognition of operating leases under assets with a related
financial payable, providing the possibility not to be recognise as leasing contracts
“low-value assets” and leasing contracts less than 12 months. This Standard does
not contain significant amendments for lessors. The standard is effective from
January 1, 2019, although early application is permitted, only for companies which
have already applied IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers. It is not
possible to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects until the Group has
completed a detailed analysis of the relative contracts.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies utilized in the preparation of the condensed consolidated 2018 halfyear financial statements are the same as those adopted for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017 and to which reference should be
made, except for the application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9, as detailed in the “Accounting
standards applied from January 1, 2018” paragraph.

CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
In addition to the Parent Company Maire Tecnimont S.p.A., the consolidation scope includes
the directly and indirectly held subsidiaries. In particular, the companies consolidated are
those in which Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. exercises control, either due to a direct shareholding
or the indirect holding of the majority of the voting rights, or having the power to determine
the financial and operating choices of the company/entity, obtaining the relative benefits,
irrespective of the shareholding. The Joint Operations in which two or more parties undertake
an economic activity which is subject to joint control are consolidated under the proportional
method. All the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated scope at the date in which control
is acquired by the Group. Entities are excluded from the consolidation scope from the date the
Group cedes control.
The changes in the consolidation scope compared to December 31, 2017 were as follows:
•

incorporation and inclusion in the consolidation scope of TCM-KT JV S.r.l. and of
TCM-KT JV Azerbaijan LLC, involved in the new Group initiative for the SOCARHeydar Aliyev Baku Oil Refinery order for an EPC (Engineering, Procurement,
Construction) contract;

•

incorporation and inclusion in the consolidation scope of Tecnimont Philippines Inc.
and of Unincorporated JV Philippines (Joint Operations with the partner JGC
Philippines), in support of the Group project in the Philippines for the client JG
Summit Petrochemical Corporation (JGSPC), involving the construction of a new
high-density polyethylene unit (HDPE) and the extension of a polypropylene unit
(PP) located in Batangas City;

•

acquisition of Maire Green Chemicals S.r.l. by the parent GLV Capital S.p.A, a newly
incorporated company engaged in the green chemicals sector; the transaction price
was Euro 10 thousand, essentially equating to the share capital of Maire Green
Chemicals S.r.l..

For the consolidation in accordance with IFRS, all consolidated subsidiaries prepared a specific
“reporting package”, based on IFRS accounting standards adopted by the Group, reclassifying
and/or adjusting the accounts approved by the boards of the respective companies.
The following criteria and methods were utilized in the consolidation:
a) adoption of the line-by-line consolidation method, with the full recognition of assets,
liabilities, costs and revenue, irrespective of the shareholding;
b) adoption of the line-by-line consolidation method based on the holding in the
investment (Joint Operations);
c) elimination of balance sheet and income statement transactions between Group
companies, including the reversal of any gains or losses not yet realized, deriving from
operations between consolidated companies, recording any consequent deferred tax
effects;
d) elimination of inter-company dividends and relative adjustment of opening equity
reserves;
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e) elimination of the book value of investments, relating to companies included in the
consolidation, and the corresponding share in net equity and allocation of the positive
and/or negative differences deriving from the relative accounts (assets, liabilities and
equity), defined with reference to the date of acquisition of the investment and
subsequent changes;
f) recognition, in separate equity and income statement accounts, of the share capital,
reserves and income for the period of minorities;
g) adoption of the conversion method of financial statements of foreign companies which
prepare their financial statements in currencies other than the Euro, which provides for
the conversion of all monetary assets and liabilities at the period-end rate and the
average period rate for income statement items. The difference deriving from the
conversion is recorded under equity reserves.
The exchange rates applied for the conversion of financial statements in foreign currencies
illustrated below are those published by the UIC:
Exchange rates

January-June
‘18

30.06.2018

JanuaryJune ‘17

31.12.2017

Euro/US Dollar

1.2108

1.1658

1.082525

1.1993

Euro/Brazilian Real

4.1414

4.4876

3.439295

3.9729

Euro/Indian Rupee

79.5123

79.813

71.1244

76.6055

Euro/Nigeria Naira

369.7391

355.9187

335.096666

367.0458

Euro/Chilean Peso

740.17

757.26

714.130666

737.29

71.9802

73.1582

62.734883

69.392

4.5407

4.3718

4.059918

4.4974

Euro/Russian Ruble
Euro/Saudi Arabia Riyal
Euro/Polish Zloty

4.22

4.3732

4.268465

4.177

131.6107

129.04

121.658666

135.01

4.7677

4.708

4.749938

4.8536

Euro/Mexican Pesos

23.0803

22.8817

21.027966

23.6612

Euro/GBP

0.87973

0.88605

0.8600590

0.88723

Euro/Yen
Euro/Malaysian Ringgit

The consolidation scope at June 30, 2018 is shown below:
Companies consolidated by the line-by-line method:
Location/

Currency

Share capital

%
Group

Through:

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.

Italy (Rome)

EUR

19,920,679.32

–

Parent Company

Met Development S.p.A.

Italy

EUR

1,000,000

100%

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Met T&S Ltd

UK

GBP

100,000

100%

Met Development S.p.A.

100%

VGL Management Ltd

UK

GBP

1

100%

Met T&S Ltd

100%

Met Dev 1 S.r.l.

Italy

EUR

500,000

100%

Met Development S.p.A.

100%

MET GAS Processing
Technologies S.p.A.

Italy

EUR

4,000,000

100%

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Maire Green Chemicals S.r.l.

Italy

EUR

10,000

100%

MET GAS Processing
Technologies S.p.A.

100%

Stamicarbon B.V.

Holland

EUR

9,080,000

100%

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Consolidated companies
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Location/

Currency

Share capital

%
Group

Through:

Stamicarbon USA Inc

USA

USD

5,500,000

100%

Stamicarbon B.V.

100%

Vinxia Engineering a.s.

Czech
Republic

CZK

13,500,000

80%

Stamicarbon B.V.

40%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

40%

Consolidated companies

KT S.p.A.

Italy

EUR

6,000,000

100%

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Processi Innovativi S.r.l

Italy

EUR

45,000

56.67%

KT S.p.A.

56.67%

KTI Arabia LLC

Saudi Arabia

Riyal

500,000

70%

KT S.p.A.

70%

KT Cameroun S.A.

Cameroon

XAF

70,000,000

75%

KT S.p.A.

75%

KT Star CO. S.A.E.

Egypt

USD

1,000

40%

KT S.p.A.

40%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

Italy (Milan)

EUR

1,000,000

100%

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

TCM FR S.A.

France

EUR

37,000

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

TPI Tecnimont Planung und
Industrieanlagenbau Gmbh

Germany

EUR

260,000

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Tws S.A.

Switzerland

EUR

507,900

100%

T.P.I.

100%

Tecnimont Poland Sp.Zo.o

Poland

Plz

50,000

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Tecnimont Arabia Ltd.

Saudi Arabia

Riyal

5,500,000

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Tecnimont Nigeria Ltd.

Nigeria

Naire

10,000,000

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

99%

Tecnimont Russia

Russia

RUR

18,000,000

100%
T.P.I.

1%

Tecnimont Private Limited

India

Indian
Rupee

13,968,090

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Tecnimont E&I (M) Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

MYR

1,000,000

100%

Tecnimont Private Limited

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

99.30%

Tecnimont do Brasil Ltda.

Brazil

Real

577,413,192

100%
Maire Engineering France S.A.

0.70%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

95.71%

Tecnimont do Brasil Ltda.

4.28%

T.P.I.

0.01%

Tecnimont do Brasil Ltda.

65%

Tecnimont Chile Ltda.

Chile

Pesos

57,747,137,403

100.00%

Consorcio ME Ivai

Brazil

Real

12,487,309

65%

Tecnimont Mexico SA de CV

Mexico

MXN

50,000.00

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

90.00%

TWS S.A,

10.00%

Maire Engineering France S.A.

France

EUR

680,000

99.98%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

99.98%

Tecnimont USA INC.

Texas (USA)

USD

4,430,437

100.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100.00%

TecnimontHQC S.c.a.r.l.

Italy

EUR

10,000

60.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

60.00%

TecnimontHQC Sdn Bhd.

Malaysia

MYR

750,000

60.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

60.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

70%

Tecnimont-KT JV S.r.l

Italy

EUR

15,000

100%
KT S.p.A.

30%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

70%

KT S.p.A.

30%

Tecnimont-KT JV Azerbaijan
LLC

Azerbaijan

Tecnimont Philippines Inc.

Philippines

Tecnimont Bolivia S.r.l

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)
Met NewEN Mexico SA de CV
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Bolivia

Italy
Mexico

AZN

PHP

BS

EUR
MXN

170,000

10,002,000

1,000,000

6,000,000
4,200,000

100%

100.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

99%

Tecnimont Mexico SA de CV

1%

100%

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

100%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Met
NeweEN S.p.A.)

99%

100%

Consolidated companies

MST S.r.l.
Transfima S.p.A.

Transfima G.E.I.E.

Cefalù 20 S.c.a.r.l.
Corace S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation
MGR Verduno 2005 S.p.A.

Birillo 2007 S.c.a.r.l.

Coav S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation
TCC Denmark Aps

Location/

Italy
Italy

Italy

Italy
Italy
Italy

Italy

Italy
Italy

Currency

EUR
EUR

EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR

EUR

EUR
EUR

Share capital

400,000
1,020,000

250,000

20,000,000
10,000
600,000

1,571,940

25,500
10,728

%
Group

Through:
Tecnimont Messico SA de CV

1%

100%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

100%

51%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

51%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

43%

50.65%

Transfima S.p.A.

15%

99.99%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

99.99%

65%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

65%

95.95%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

95.95%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

98.4%

100%

MST S.r.l.

1.6%

51%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

51.0%

100%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

100.0%

Companies consolidated line-by-lined based on shareholding in Joint Operations:
Consolidated companies

Sep FOS(*)

Location/

France

Share
capital

Currency

EUR

-

Through:
Tecnimont S.p.A.

49%

TCM FR S.A. (ex Sofregaz S.A.)

1%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

50%

50%

Consorzio Turbigo 800 (*)

Italy

EUR

JV Gasco(*)

United Arab
Emirates

USD

-

50%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

50%

JO Saipem-Dodsal-Tecnimont (*)

United Arab
Emirates

AED

-

32%

Neosia S.p.A. (ex Tecnimont
Civil Construction S.p.A.)

32%

Spain

EUR

6,000

43%

KT S.p.A

43%

Philippines

PHP

-

65%

Tecnimont Philippines Inc.

65%

UTE Hidrogeno Cadereyta(*)
Unincorporated JV Philippines (*)
(*)

100,000

% Group

50%

Joint control agreement incorporated to manage a specific project and measured as a joint operation in accordance with the introduction of IFRS 11.
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22.

Notes to the Income Statement

22.1.

Revenues

Revenues in H1 2018 amounted Euro 1,819,565 thousand, an increase of Euro 172,623
thousand compared to H1 2017 and were broken down as follows:
(Euro thousands)

H1
2018

H1
2017

196,443

390,722

Changes in contract work-in-progress

1,623,122

1,256,220

Total

1,819,565

1,646,942

Revenues from sales and services

The improvement is principally due to the Euro 366,901 thousand increase in the account
“change in contract work-in-progress”, which mainly owes to the advancement of the orders
acquired in previous years compared to the previous year.
“Revenues from sales and services” however reported a decrease of Euro 194,279 thousand,
mainly due to the lower revenues from orders completed in the period.
The increase in volumes reflects progress on backlog projects and refers to the main EPC
projects which are in the full construction phase.
The reduced margin concerns the Technology, Engineering & Construction BU and a differing
mix of contracts in progress in the period compared to the same period of the previous year,
however in line with recent quarters.
Group core business revenues derived for 95.2% from the “Technology, Engineering &
Construction” business unit (96.3% in 2017), slightly decreasing on the previous year in terms
of consolidated volumes.
The principal projects of the “Technology, Engineering & Construction” BU concerned the
ADCO, Orpic, Kingisepp and Tempa Rossa projects and the Amur order.
Finally, the “Infrastructure & Civil Engineering” BU accounted for approx. 4.8% of revenues
(3.7% in 2017) which increased approx. Euro 26.3 million following the advancement of
orders in portfolio in the large renewables plant sector.
The change in work-in-progress takes into account not only the recognition of contractual
amounts agreed upon, but also changes in work orders, not yet approved, incentives and any
reserves - claims, for the highly probable amount to be recognized by the buyer and reliably
measured. In particular, the calculation of the revenues not yet approved was made based on
reasonable expectations through the negotiations in progress with the buyers to recognize the
higher costs incurred or disputes in course and therefore by their nature may present a risk.
Currently, these revenues not yet approved account for approx. Euro 4.8% of Technology,
Engineering & Construction BU contract values and approx. 15.6% of Infrastructure BU
contracts.
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22.2.

Other operating revenues

“Other Operating Revenues” in H1 2018 amounted to Euro 11,009 thousand, increasing Euro
4,813 thousand on the previous year and relate to:
(Euro thousands)

Operating currency gains

H1
2018

H1
2017

0

1,190

822

458

2,598

15

Use of other risk provisions

0

2,512

Revenues from material sales

0

0

Prior year income
Use of doubtful debt provision

Contract penalties

471

6

Gains on disposals

82

297

Currency derivative gains

1,881

29

Insurance indemnities

3,581

0

Other income

1,574

1,689

Total

11,009

6,196

Other operating revenues refer to revenues not directly connected to the Group core business.
Other operating revenues mainly refer to:
•

Insurance indemnities of Euro 3,581 thousand, income recognised following an
insurance payout made in the period;

•

utilisation of the doubtful debt provision for Euro 2,598 thousand following the
adjustment and consequent release of the doubtful debt provision due to the receding
risk;

•

“Currency derivative gains” concern cash flow hedges on Group contractual
commitments, principally hedging payments in foreign currencies impacting the income
statement in the period. The increase relates to currency market movements and the
expiry of currency hedging instruments on contracts completed in the period.

•

prior year income of Euro 822 thousand, principally relating to payables no longer due
and the reversal of costs accrued in previous years;

•

the other accounts refer to contractual penalties, mainly relating to penalties applied to
suppliers, disposal gains and other income.
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22.3.

Business segment information

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. heads an integrated industrial group providing engineering services
and works in the following sectors on the domestic and international markets:
- (I) Technology, Engineering & Construction;
- (II) Infrastructure & Civil Engineering.
The BU figures are in line with the internal reporting structure utilized by company Top
Management. The features of these sectors are outlined below:
I.

“Technology, Engineering & Construction” Business Unit - designs and
constructs plant, principally for the “natural gas chain” (involving separation,
treatment, liquefaction, transport, storage, regasification and compression and
pumping stations); designs and constructs chemical and petrochemical industry plant
for the production, in particular, of polyethylene and polypropylene (polyolefin),
ethylene oxide, ethylene glycol, purified terephthalic acid ("PTA"), ammonia, urea and
fertilizers; issues, in addition, within the fertilizer sector, licenses on patented
technology and proprietary know-how to current and potential urea producers. Other
major activities related to the sulphur recovery process, hydrogen production and high
temperature furnaces. It is also engaged in the design and construction of hydrocarbon electric power plant and waste-to-energy and district heating plant.

II.

“Infrastructure & Civil Engineering” Business Unit - engaged in the design and
construction of major infrastructural projects (such as roads and motorways, rail lines,
underground and surface metro lines, tunnels, bridges and viaducts) and industrial and
commercial and tertiary sector facilities and buildings; it provides environmental
services for infrastructure, civil and industrial construction and energy sector projects
and plant in general. The Group provides maintenance and facility management
services, in addition to general services for temporary construction facilities and
Operation & Maintenance services. It also works on large-scale renewables sector plant
(mainly solar and wind).

The Group assesses the performance of the operating segments based on the segment
operating result. Segment revenues are those directly deriving from or attributable to the
Segment and from core operations and include revenues from agreements with third parties.
Segment costs are charges from segment operations incurred from third parties. For Group
operations, amortization, depreciation, provisions for risks, financial income and expense and
income taxes are borne by the corporate entity as excluded from operating activities and are
presented in the total column.
Segment disclosure is reported in the following tables:
H1 2018 SEGMENT REVENUES AND RESULT:
(Euro thousands)

Revenues

Technology, Engineering & Construction
Infrastructure & Civil Engineering
Total

H1 2018

H1 2017

H1 2018

H1 2017

1,743,170

1,592,016

99,743

96,068

87,404

61,122

546

172

1,830,574

1,653,138

100,289

96,242

H1 2018 INCOME STATEMENT BY SEGMENT:
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Segment result (EBITDA)

H1 2018 SEGMENT INCOME STATEMENT:

(Euro thousands)

Technology,
Engineering &
Construction

Infrastructure &
Civil Engineering

Total

1,743,170

87,404

1,830,574

Industrial margin (Business Profit)

134,590

3,482

138,072

Segment result (EBITDA)

99,743

546

100,289

Segment revenues

Amortization, depreciation, write-downs and provisions

(4,305)

EBIT

95,984

Financial income/(expenses)

(7,612)

Income before tax

88,372

Income taxes for the period

(28,496)

Net income for the period

59,876

Group

55,341

Minorities

4,535

H1 2017 SEGMENT INCOME STATEMENT:7

INCOME STATEMENT BY SEGMENT:

(Euro thousands)

Technology,
Engineering &
Construction

Infrastructure &
Civil Engineering

Total

1,592,016

61,122

1,653,138

Industrial margin (Business Profit)

129,290

2,407

131,696

Segment result (EBITDA)

96,068

172

96,242

Segment revenues

Amortization, depreciation, write-downs and provisions

(3,588)

EBIT

92,654

Financial income/(expenses)

8,203

Income before tax

100,858

Income taxes for the period

(35,460)

Net income for the period

65,398

Group

61,749

Minorities

3,648
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REGIONAL SEGMENTS:
The regional breakdown of Revenues in H1 2018 compared to the previous year is illustrated
below:
(in Euro thousands)

H1 2018

Italy

H1 2017

Change

Total

%

Total

%

Total

%

213,898

11.7%

156,659

9.5%

57,239

36.5%

Overseas
•

Europe EU

94,570

5.2%

149,526

9.0%

(54,956)

(36.8%)

•

Europe non-EU

332,636

18.2%

345,004

20.9%

(12,368)

(3.6%)

•

Middle East

771,614

42.2%

549,945

33.3%

221,669

40.3%

•

The Americas

67,093

3.7%

59,475

3.6%

7,618

12.8%

•

Africa

76,581

4.2%

136,492

8.3%

(59,911)

(43.9%)

•

Asia

274,182

15.0%

256,037

15.5%

18,145

7.1%

177,436

10.7%

Total Consolidated Revenues

1,830,574

1,653,138

The main regional revenue sources were the Middle East (42.2%) and Europe – non-EU
(18.2%). As evident from the Revenues by Business Unit table, this figure highlights the
significant contribution of the “Technology, Engineering & Construction” Business Unit in the
Middle East, in which the Group has a long-standing presence and in relation to the Non-EU
Europe area reflects the development of the current activities in Russia.

22.4.

Raw materials and consumables

Raw materials and consumables for H1 2018 amount to Euro 503,430 thousand, a decrease of
Euro 188,989 thousand compared to the previous year.
The breakdown of the account is as follows:
(in Euro thousands)

Raw material purchases
Consumables

H1
2018

H1
2017

(498,176)

(686,051)

(4,452)

(5,472)

Fuel

(615)

(405)

Change in inventories

(187)

(491)

(503,430)

(692,419)

Total

In particular, “Raw material purchases” in the first half of 2018 decreased Euro 187,875
thousand, due to the reduced material procurement needs for orders acquired in prior years
and for which the issue and execution phase of the main order equipment has been completed
and construction is fully underway. For new orders, the main equipment orders are currently
being issued.
“Consumables” were impacted by lower general and office material requirements, in the
previous year the account increased following the start-up of new projects acquired and the
purchase of specific consumable materials for the opening of new sites.
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22.5.

Service costs

Service costs in H1 2018 amount to Euro 979,557 thousand, an increase of Euro 331,326
thousand compared to the same period of the previous year.
The breakdown of the account is as follows:
(in Euro thousands)

H1
2018

H1
2017

Sub-contractors

(798,400)

(468,814)

Turnkey design

(73,290)

(55,583)

Cost recharges

(1,144)

(1,884)

Utilities

(4,846)

(3,859)

Transport Costs

(25,728)

(35,369)

Maintenance

(4,418)

(3,395)

Consultants and related services

(12,371)

(12,155)

6,009

5,047

Increase in internal work capitalised
Bank expenses and sureties

(16,149)

(18,023)

Selling & advertising costs

65

(3,830)

Accessory personnel costs

(23,515)

(19,976)

(330)

(196)

Insurance

(5,425)

(4,624)

Other

(20,015)

(25,570)

Total

(979,557)

(648,231)

Post & telephone and similar

The general increase in the service costs reflects progress on backlog projects and principally
the beginning of full operations on the main EPC projects, which in the previous year were still
in the material shipping and initial assembly stage and are now in the full construction phase.
“Sub-contractors” reported the largest increase, principally concerning construction subcontracting costs.
“Turnkey design” reports however an increase related to the initial research and design phase
of the main newly acquired orders.
“Accessory Personnel costs” increased, principally due to a higher average number of
personnel compared to 2017.
“Transport costs” however decreased on the previous year, also due to a different operational
mix, with a considerable increase in H1 2017 in the acquisition and delivery to sites of raw
materials and equipment, while for these orders construction is now fully underway.
All the other accounts “Consultants and related services”, “Bank expenses and sureties” and
other lesser items are substantially in line with the same period of the previous year.
“Other” costs principally relate to non-capitalized IT costs, application package maintenance
expenses, various services incurred by other consolidated companies, various site and general
costs and emoluments to corporate boards.
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22.6.

Personnel expense

Personnel expense in H1 2018 amounted to Euro 195,707 thousand, an increase of Euro
15,078 thousand compared to the same period of the previous year.
The breakdown of the account is as follows:
(in Euro thousands)

H1
2018

H1
2017

Wages and salaries

(154,367)

(142,211)

Social security charges

(30,749)

(29,177)

Post-employment benefits

(6,771)

(6,511)

Other costs

(3,820)

(2,730)

(195,707)

(180,629)

Total

The headcount at June 30, 2018 of the Maire Tecnimont Group was 5,808, compared to 5,443
at December 31, 2017, with a net increase of 365 following 682 new hires and 317 departures
in the period. The average workforce in the first half of 2018 was 5,640, compared to 5,128
in the same period of the previous year.
In terms of Group regional presence, the average movement on H1 2017 of 511 mainly
concerns Italy & Rest of Europe (203) where, in addition to hires at the Italian subsidiaries,
personnel were taken on at the UK subsidiary MET T&S. This company - which further
consolidated its Group “Global employment company” role, supplying international personnel
for the execution of projects and ensuring support in view of the respective construction peaks
- is also the Indian personnel hire and engagement vehicle operating at the sites in the
various countries in which the Group operates. In terms of average personnel increases, the
Russia and Caspian Region follows (154) - mainly due to the number of personnel engaged on
the Amursky Gas Processing Plant project (Amur Region - Russian Federation) and the entry
of the Kingisepp project into its key phase – and the Middle East Region - with an average
increase of 141, mainly due to the hiring for the Orpic project of significant numbers of local
and supervision personnel.
Assessment of average personnel movements for the main professional categories indicates,
also for the period under review, an increase in the technical personnel category average, with
the hiring of additional staff and personnel with technical-specialist expertise (423) to ensure
the availability of the Human Resources required to delivery upon the Group’s strategic and
operating development goals.
Degree holders were confirmed as constituting 66% of the workforce at June 30, 2018 (3,844
personnel), with the average age confirmed at 41. The female percentage increased to
18.5%.
The workforce at 30/06/2018 of the Maire Tecnimont Group, with movements on 31/12/2017
(and the average workforce for the year), is outlined in the following tables:
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Changes in workforce by category (31/12/2017-31/06/2018):

Workforce
31/12/2017

New
hires

Departures

Executives

587

22

(14)

Managers

1,879

167

White-collar

2,857

412

120

81

5,443

682

Category

Blue-collar
Total
Average headcount

Reclassification
Workforce
employee
30/06/2018
category (*)

Cge.
Workforce
30/06/2018
vs.
31/12/2017

1

596

(90)

16

1,972

93

(195)

(13)

3,061

204

(18)

(4)

179

59

(317)

0

5,808

365

5,252

9

5,640

(*) includes promotions, changes in category following inter-company transfers / Job Title reclassifications
The category “Executives” and “Managers” does not reflect the Italian contractual term, but refers to national and international
Management and Middle Management identification parameters utilized for Italian and overseas managerial staff.

Changes in workforce by region (31/12/2017-30/06/2018):
Reclassification
employee
category (*)

Cge.
Workforce
Workforce
30/06/2018
30/06/2018
vs.
31/12/2017

Workforce
31/12/2017

New hires

Departures

Italy and Rest of Europe

2,646

272

(127)

9

2,800

154

India and Rest of Asia

1,980

93

(59)

(11)

2,003

23

Russia and Caspian Regions

261

133

(37)

0

357

96

The Americas

18

9

(2)

0

25

7

Middle East
North Africa and Sub-Saharan
Regions
Total

470

158

(87)

2

543

73

68

17

(5)

0

80

12

5,443

682

(317)

0

5,808

365

Region

It should be noted that employee numbers may vary based on the stage of the project and on
scheduling, which may provide for recourse to direct employees with consequent utilization of
Group materials and staff, or alternatively recourse to third party services. In particular, the
Group policy is to hire the workforce necessary for the execution of the individual projects in
line with the time period necessary for completion.
In application of IFRS 2 Share-based payments, the 2016-2018 Share Ownership Plan, the
2016-2018 Performance Share Plan and the 2017-2019 Restricted Stock plan are recorded in
the Group financial statements as “Equity Settled” plans as the Group has granted equity
participation instruments as additional remuneration against services received (employment
service). The Group did not however assume any liability to be settled with cash and cash
equivalents or with other assets for employees. Given the impossibility to reliably estimate the
fair value of the services received from the employees, the benefit cost to the employees is
represented by the fair value of the shares granted, calculated at the grant date, to be
recognized in the income statement under personnel expense and in a specific reserve under
equity.
The effects in the financial statements of the Plans, estimated through adequately weighing
the defined maturity conditions (including the probability of employees remaining in the Group
for the duration of the Performance Plan), will be recognized over the maturity period of the
benefit, or rather over the duration of the Plans, under “Personnel expense”.
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“Personnel expense” also includes the fair value component recognized in the period relating
to the Phantom Stock incentive plan for the Chief Executive Officer of the company and some
Senior Managers of the Group; these costs also include the employee flexible benefit plan
(“Maire4You”) and the profit participation bonus.

22.7.

Other operating costs

Other operating costs in H1 2018 amount to Euro 51,591 thousand, an increase of Euro
15,974 thousand compared to the same period of the previous year.
The breakdown of the account is as follows:
(in Euro thousands)

H1
2018

Contractual penalties

H1
2017

(1)

(0)

Rental

(21,566)

(15,848)

Hire

(12,812)

(10,114)

0

(697)

(112)

(71)

Currency derivative losses
Losses on receivables
Operating currency losses

(7,141)

0

Other costs

(9,959)

(8,887)

Total

(51,591)

(35,615)

“Rental” concerns the Group office buildings and also various sites, with a substantial increase
following the hire of staff for the commencement of more recently acquired orders requiring
additional space.
“Hire”, which increased compared to the previous year, mainly relates to Group plant hire
charges, motor vehicle leasing and application software licenses.
“Operating currency losses” reflect the net loss between currency gains and losses; the gain
or loss follows currency market movements and those on foreign currencies regarding ongoing
projects; in the same period of the previous year, the amount was positive and reclassified to
“Other Operating Revenues”.
“Other costs” principally comprise indirect taxes and various local taxes, mainly concerning a
number of overseas companies, membership fees, prior year charges, other general costs and
license and patent usage fees; the decrease relates to the purchase of licenses and patents for
a number of new orders acquired in the previous year.

22.8.

Amortization, depreciation & write-downs

Amortization, depreciation and write-down of fixed assets in H1 2018 amounted to Euro 4,143
thousand, an increase of Euro 1,165 thousand on the same period of the previous year.
The breakdown of the account is as follows:
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(in Euro thousands)

H1
2018

H1
2017

Amortization

(2,571)

(1,523)

Depreciation

(1,572)

(1,455)

(0)

(0)

(4,143)

(2,978)

Other fixed asset write-downs

Total

Amortization and depreciation increased on H1 2017 following the initiation of amortization
and depreciation on new Group operating assets - mainly software and other applications.
Amortization of intangible assets refers to:
•

amortization of patent rights, amounting to Euro 705 thousand, principally relating to
urea licenses patented by Stamicarbon and the other licenses developed by the Maire
Tecnimont Innovation Center (MTIC);

•

amortization of concessions and licenses, amounting to Euro 629 thousand and
principally relating to Group software license applications;

•

amortization of other intangible assets of Euro 1,237 thousand. This account principally
refers to accessory and consultant costs incurred for the installation of the principal
software applications of the Group.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment refers to:
•

depreciation of own buildings for Euro 242 thousand, principally in relation to the
Indian subsidiary Tecnimont Private Limited and residually on other owned assets;

•

depreciation of plant and equipment for Euro 19 thousand and industrial equipment for
Euro 110 thousand (on-site plant);

•

for Euro 1,201 thousand depreciation of other assets, office furniture, leasehold
improvements, EDP, motor vehicles and industrial transport vehicles.

22.9.

Doubtful debt provision and risk provisions

The doubtful debt provision and the risks provisions for the first half of 2018 amount to Euro
162 thousand, decreasing by Euro 448 thousand on the same period of the previous year.
The breakdown of the account is as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Doubtful debt provision

H1
2018

H1
2017

0

(407)

Risk provision

(162)

(203)

Total

(162)

(610)
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Provisions for risks and charges amount to Euro 162 thousand and include the provisions for
charges relating to legal cases and outstanding disputes.
For IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, the impairment requirements are based on an expected
credit loss (ECL) model that replaces the IAS 39 incurred loss model, utilising supporting
information, available without unreasonable charges or effort, which includes historic, current
and projected figures. Application of IFRS 9 in relation to the impairment on financial assets
on the basis of expected losses and the analysis on outstanding receivables at the previous
reporting date, applying a risk factor on the basis of the specific default probability of the
counterparties, increased the opening doubtful debt provision at 01.01.2018 by approx. Euro
8 million. Thereafter, no further amounts were provisioned in the period.

22.10.

Financial income

(in Euro thousands)

Income from associates
Income from group companies

H1
2018

H1
2017

4

3

130

0

Other income

4,447

2,905

Income on derivatives

5,722

28,495

Total

10,303

31,403

Financial income of Euro 10,303 thousand decreased Euro 21,100 thousand on the same
period of the previous year, with the prior year figure mainly benefitting from the nonrecurring net valuation of derivative instruments.
“Income from associates” concerns the interest from the associate JV Kazakhstan TecnimontKTR LLP, incorporated to develop initiatives in the country with a new strategic partner.
“Income from group companies” relates to interest from the company Siluria Technologies Inc
which in the second half of 2017 issued a Convertible Bond; the Group, through the subsidiary
Met Gas Processing Technologies S.p.A., subscribed USD 5 million. The Bond from the
subscription date matures interest at an annual rate of 6%.
“Other income” mainly relate to interest matured on temporary liquidity invested, bank
current accounts, financial instruments classified as loans and on receivables measured at
amortized cost. Interest income increased on the same period of the previous year due to
higher levels of liquidity held, as well as good yields obtained on deposits in some regions
where the Group is currently operating, for example Russia.
Income on derivatives for Euro 5,722 thousand refer specifically to:
•
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for Euro 5,210 thousand to the “time-value” portion of currency hedging derivatives.
As not considered a hedging component, the change to the fair value is recognized to
the income statement. This component increased on the previous year due to swap
point movements (differences between Eurozone and US interest rates), in addition to
new contracts signed by the Group to cover cash flows for major orders exposed to the
Russian Ruble;

•

for Euro 512 thousand income arising on the TRES contracts, related to the distribution
of dividends by Maire Tecnimont S.p.A., which the intermediary receded to the issuer.

22.11.

Financial expenses

(Euro thousands)

Charges from group companies

H1
2018

H1
2017

(1)

(1)

Other charges

(9,071)

(8,817)

Interest/Other Bond & Equity Linked Charges

(2,303)

(3,570)

Charges on derivatives

(7,469)

(10,982)

Total

(18,844)

(23,369)

Financial expenses amounted to Euro 18,844 thousand and decreased Euro 4,525 thousand
compared to the same period of the previous year.
“Other charges”, which principally include loan interest, current account interest charges,
factoring charges and banking and accessory charges and charges on financial liabilities
measured at amortized cost utilizing the effective interest rate method and interest paid to the
tax authorities and charges for discounting for a total of Euro 9,071 thousand, slightly
increasing by Euro 254 thousand.
The net movement relates to the reduction in charges following the application of a lower
average bank debt rate for the first half of 2018 compared to the same period of the previous
year, as the reduction in the rate applicable to the subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. from 2.5% to
1.95% was only negotiated at the end of April 2017.
On May 3, 2018, Tecnimont S.p.A. repaid Euro 165 million of the original Euro 350 million
loan following the issue of a non-convertible bond of a similar amount by Maire Tecnimont
S.p.A. to partially settle the bank debt; following this event, which constituted a voluntary
acceleration of the repayment plan, we report however a negative effect on financial expenses
in consideration of the settlement costs of the previous restructuring which were expensed for
a total amount of approx. Euro 2,065 thousand.
The “Interest Bond & Equity Linked” charges, amounting to Euro 2,303 thousand, specifically
refer to:
•

for Euro 856 thousand to the cash and non-cash components of the interest on the
equity-linked bond of a nominal Euro 80 million issued in February 2014 and settled in
the first half of 2018; for further details, reference should be made to the key events
paragraph of the Directors’ Report; the account includes also Euro 319 thousand
concerning the residual portion of accessory charges on a shortened repayment plan
following exercise of the advance repayment option in cash, at a nominal value,
originally scheduled for February 2019.

•

for Euro 697 thousand interest on the non-convertible bonds subscribed in 2017
through private placement, by the Pan-European Fund and the Export Development
Fund (created by SACE), both managed by Amundi Group companies.
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•

for Euro 750 thousand the cash and non-cash components of interest on nonconvertible bonds of Euro 165 million issued on May 3, 2018 by Maire Tecnimont
S.p.A..

Charges on derivatives of Euro 7,469 thousand decreased Euro 3,513 thousand on the
previous year and relate to:
•

for Euro 5,463 thousand the “time-value” portion of currency hedging derivatives. As
not considered a hedging component, the change to the fair value is recognized to the
income statement. This component decreased on the previous year due to swap point
movements (differences between Eurozone and US interest rates), in addition to the
settlement of contracts undertaken by the Group to cover the cash flows of orders in
progress;

•

for Euro 895 thousand the negative mark-to-market change in the hedging instruments
to hedge the exposure to changes in the price of raw materials (principally copper);
these instruments, although hedging raw material risk, for accounting purposes are
classified as held-for-trading instruments and consequently measured at fair value with
changes recognized to profit and loss;

•

for Euro 1,111 thousand the negative fair value change of the residual portion of a
cash-settled Total Return Equity Swap derivative instrument (TRES) to hedge against
movements in the Maire Tecnimont share price; in the first half of the year, Maire
Tecnimont exercised the “Early Termination” option to settle a portion of the
instruments; the settled portion hedged the risk relating to approx. Euro 3.6 million
shares; the differential received amounted to approx. Euro 5.4 million. The residual
portions of the instruments at June 30, 2018 hedged the risk relating to approx. 3
million shares. For accounting purposes, the TRES is measured as a fair value
derivative through P&L.

22.12.

Investment income/(expenses)

(in Euro thousands)

Income from investments in associates

H1
2018

H1
2017

1,500

0

0

288

(569)

(116)

Revaluations/(Write-downs) other companies

(2)

(2)

Total

929

170

Income from investments in other companies

Revaluations/(Write-downs) associates

Net investment income amounts to Euro 929 thousand, an increase of Euro 759 thousand
compared to the same period of the previous year.
Investment income from associates includes dividends received from the investment in
Biolevano S.r.l..
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Write-downs of associates concern their valuation at equity; in particular, charges of Euro 569
thousand were incurred on the investment in the company Biolevano S.r.l. following the
distribution of dividends not offset by results.
The write-down of the other companies refers to the investment in the Cavtomi consortium.

22.13.

Income taxes

(Euro thousands)

Current income taxes
Taxes relating to previous periods

H1
2018

H1
2017

(25,185)

(28,707)

(99)

624

Deferred tax income

3,745

884

Deferred tax charges

(6,957)

(8,261)

Total

(28,496)

(35,460)

Estimated income taxes amount to Euro 28,496 thousand, a decrease of Euro 6,964 thousand,
mainly due to lower pre-tax income compared to the same period of the previous year.
The effective tax rate for H1 2018 was approx. 32.2%, improving on the average adjusted tax
rate reported for the preceding quarters and based on the various countries in which
operations are carried out.
Current income taxes mainly includes “IRES” Italian corporation tax and foreign overseas
corporation tax as well as an estimate of the “IRAP” Italian regional income tax and other
taxes.
Net deferred tax income and charges includes the effect of the utilization of the last deferred
tax assets on fiscal losses realized in previous years and temporary differences arising in
previous years and deductible in H1 2018.

22.14.

Earnings per share

The share capital of Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. is represented by ordinary shares, whose
earnings per share is calculated dividing the Group net income in H1 2018 by the weighted
average number of Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. shares in circulation in the period considered.
Therefore, at the reporting date of June 30, 2018, following the acquisition of 500,000
treasury shares and the subsequent partial assignment of 472,180 treasury shares to
overseas 2017 Employee Share Plan beneficiaries, in addition to 328,596,364 residual
treasury shares concerning the previous year Employee Share Plan, were in circulation.
This figure was used as the denominator for the calculation of the earnings per share at June
30, 2018. The basic earnings per share was Euro 0.168.
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H1
2018

H1
2017

328,640,432

305,527,500

(44,068)

(327,331)

Number of shares to calculate earnings per share

328,596,364

305,200,169

Group net income

55,341,117

61,749,435

0

38,160,656

Group basic earnings per share

0.168

0.202

Group diluted earnings per share

0.168

0.180

(in Euro)

Number of shares in circulation
(Treasury shares)

Number of shares reserved capital increase Equity Linked Bond
Earnings per share (Euro)

In addition, following the settlement in the first half of 2018 of the equity-linked bond loan of
Euro 80 million, no dilutive elements impacted the calculation of the earnings per share.
Diluted earnings equate to basic earnings in the absence of dilutive elements.
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23. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position
23.1.

Property, plant and equipment

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Land

4,060

(44)

4,016

Buildings

20,769

(286)

20,483

310

(47)

263

Plant and machinery
Assets in progress and advances

0

383

383

985

(3)

982

Other assets

7,803

(354)

7,449

Total

33,927

(351)

33,576

Industrial and commercial equipment

The changes in the half-year mainly refer to depreciation in the period, net of acquisitions.
The principal changes related to:
•

Land, with a net decrease of Euro 44 thousand, due to the conversion of amounts in
foreign currencies;

•

Buildings, with a net decrease of Euro 286 thousand, principally due to depreciation in the
period of Euro 242 thousand. The other decreases mainly refer to the translation effect of
amounts in foreign currencies;

•

Plant and machinery, with a net decrease of Euro 47 thousand, principally due to the
depreciation in the period;

•

Industrial and commercial equipment remained unchanged, with a decrease of Euro 110
thousand due to the depreciation in the period and an increase of Euro 108 thousand
relate to specific site material procurement;

•

Other assets, with a net decrease of Euro 354 thousand, mainly due to depreciation in the
period and increases due to leasehold improvements, office furniture and EDP.

•

Assets in progress, increasing Euro 383 thousand, principally due to ongoing activities to
grow the Group project portfolio and the fitting out of the overseas offices in line with the
current Group development plan.
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23.2.

Goodwill

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Goodwill

291,754

0

291,754

Total

291,754

0

291,754

Goodwill amounts to Euro 291,754 thousand and includes the consolidation differences arising
in previous years. In application of the IAS 36 impairment method, the Maire Tecnimont
Group identified the Cash Generating Units (CGU) which represent the smallest identifiable
group of activities capable of generating cash flows largely independently within the
consolidated financial statements. The maximum level of the aggregation of the CGU’s is
represented by the sectors of activities as per IFRS 8.
The goodwill was allocated to the cash generating units from which the related benefits from
the business combination are expected to arise. The CGU’s were identified with similar criteria
compared to the previous year. The table below summarizes the value of goodwill allocated to
the CGU’s:
Goodwill

(Euro millions)

Infrastructure & Civil Engineering

51.0

Technology, Engineering & Construction

238.6

Licensing

2.2

Total

291.8

The recoverability of the goodwill and of the other tangible and intangible assets with definite
useful life are verified at least once a year also in the absence of indicators of loss in value.
The recoverable value of the cash-generating units, whose individual goodwill were allocated,
was determined through the determination of the value in use, considered as the present
value of the expected cash flows, utilizing an interest rate which reflects the specific risks of
the individual cash-generating units at the valuation date.
During the period the market and operational indicators identified by the Group did not
indicate the necessity to undertake “impairment tests” on the goodwill recognized.

23.3.

Other intangible assets

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Patent rights

20,288

134

20,422

Concessions, licenses, trademarks & similar rights

3,513

249

3,762

Other

1,636

5,683

7,319

Assets in progress and advances

14,990

(3,364)

11,626

Total

40,427

2,702

43,129
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The value of the other intangible assets at June 30, 2018 amounted to Euro 43,129 thousand,
with an increase of Euro 2,702 thousand compared to December 31, 2017; this increase
mainly derives from acquisitions and technological investments, net of amortization for the
year. The principal changes in the year related to:
•

Patent rights, with a net increase of Euro 134 thousand, mainly refer to the new
technologies and intellectual property rights (patents and licenses) developed and filed by
Stamicarbon B.V and by Maire Tecnimont Innovation Center (MTIC); the change in the
period refers to amortization, net of new registrations and developments of intellectual
property;

•

Concessions, licenses and trademarks, with a net increase of Euro 249 thousand mainly
refers to the costs incurred for the purchase of software licenses for operational activities,
also due to the growth of the Group, engineering applications and the management of
business processes, as well as the installation of management and document digitalization
systems, net of the amortization in the period;

•

Other Intangible assets, with a net increase of Euro 5,683 thousand, principally due to the
entry into use of software and applications during the previous period;

•

Intangible assets in progress and advances report a net decrease of Euro 3,364 thousand
due to the re-classification of other fixed assets; the residual amount mainly includes new
software and relative installations still in progress. We highlight the migration of the ERP
SAP to the new SAP S4/HANA version and the updating of the principal engineering
applications and of the documentation system. The account includes also development
costs in relation to a technology developed together with the Milan Polytechnic for the
removal of CO2 and other acid gas components from deposits, separating them from the
natural gas, in addition to development costs in relation to the collaboration with Siluria
Technologies to convert natural gas into higher added value products through efficient
processes which may be integrated into existing industrial infrastructure.

23.4.

Investments in associates and Joint Ventures

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Investments in associates:
•

Studio Geotecnico Italiano

1,125

0

1,125

•

MCM servizi Roma S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

4

0

4

•

Desimont Contracting Nigeria (*)

0

0

0

•

JV TSJ Limited (*)

0

0

0

•

Villaggio Olimpico Moi S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

3

0

3

•

FEIC Consortium in liquidation

5

0

5

•

Tecnimont Construction Co WLL-Qatar

20

0

20

•

HIDROGENO CADEREYTA – S.A.P.I. de C.V. (*)

0

0

0

•

Bio - P S.r.l.

•

Biolevano S.r.l.

•

Kazakhstan JV Tecnimont-KTR LLP

10

0

10

•

JV Volgafert LLC

5

277

282

16,436

(304)

16,132

Total

34

(12)

22

15,230

(569)

14,661

(*) The investment was completely written down and a provision for accumulated losses is recorded under provisions for risks and charges.
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During the first half of 2018 the following changes took place in the investments held in
associated companies:
- the investment in the company Bio-P S.r.l. reduced Euro 12 thousand following its valuation
at equity;
- the investment in Biolevano S.r.l. decreased Euro 569 thousand, also following its valuation
at equity;
In the previous year, the Maire Tecnimont Group, through the subsidiary Met Dev 1 S.r.l,
incorporated together with PJSC KuibyshevAzot, (a Russian chemical sector leader), the joint
venture Volgafert LLC. Volgafert LLC’s corporate scope concerns the development,
construction, funding, maintenance and management of a new urea plant in Togliatti, in the
Samara region of the Russian Federation. The increase in the period is due to the share capital
increase to ensure operational continuity.

The breakdown of associates and joint ventures is as follows:
Company

ITA

EUR

Share
capital
1,550,000

44.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

44%

ITA

EUR

12,000

33.33%

MST S.r.l

33.33%

Nigeria
Malta

NGN
USD

0
123,630

45%
55.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.
Tecnimont S.p.A.

45%
55.00%

ITA

EUR

10,000

33.33%

Neosia S.p.A.

33.33%

Location/ Currency

Studio Geotecnico Italiano
MCM servizi Roma S.c.a.r.l. in
liquidation
Desimont Contracting Nigeria
JV TSJ Limited
Villaggio Olimpico Moi S.c.a.r.l.
in liquidation
FEIC Consortium in liquidation
Tecnimont Construction Co
WLL-Qatar
HIDROGENO CADEREYTA –
S.A.P.I. de C.V.
Biolevano S.r.l.

% Group

Through:

%

ITA

EUR

15,494

33.85%

Neosia S.p.A.

33.85%

Qatar

QAR

42,000

49%

Neosia S.p.A.

49%

Mexico

MXN

10,000

40.70%

ITA

EUR

18,274,000

30.00%

BIO - P S.r.l.

ITA

EUR

50,000

30.00%

Kazakhstan JV Tecnimont-KTR
LLP

KZT

KZT

210,000,000

50.00%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

50.00%

RUSSIA

RUB

61,000,000

32.00%

Met Development
S.p.A

32.00%

JV Volgafer LLC

23.5.

S.p.A.

Neosia S.p.A.
Processi Innovativi
S.r.l.

40.70%
30.00%
30.00%

Financial instruments - Non-current Derivatives

(Euro thousands)

Financial instruments - Currency hedging derivatives
Financial instruments - Raw material hedging derivatives

Total

KT

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

1,222

914

2,136

0

354

354

1,222

1,268

2,490

The account Non-current derivative financial instruments at June 30, 2018 amounts to Euro
2,490 thousand, an increase of Euro 1,268 thousand compared to December 31, 2017.
The account relates to the measurement at fair value of the derivative contracts in place;
mainly, they refer to the measurement of the derivative instruments to hedge against
currency risks on the cash flows related to project revenues and costs; the positive mark-tomarket will be set off against future operating cash flows of a similar amount.
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The also includes the measurement of some positions on derivative instruments to hedge
against changes in the prices of raw materials (principally copper).

23.6.

Other non-current financial assets

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

120

0

120

Other companies

17,508

894

18,402

Total investments

17,628

894

18,522

18

0

18

4,507

(86)

4,421

363

(109)

254

Total Financial Receivables

4,888

(195)

4,693

Total

22,516

699

23,215

Equity investments:
Non-consolidated subsidiaries

Financial receivables from associates
Financial receivables from group companies
Other receivables

INVESTMENTS IN NON-CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries:
•

Svincolo Taccone S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

8

0

8

•

Program International C.E. S.r.l. in liquidation (*)

0

0

0

•

Exportadora de Ingegniería y Servicios TCM SpA

68

0

68

•

Tecnimont Illinois Llc.

8

0

8

•

Tecnimont Iberia S.l.u.

25

0

25

•

Metrofiera S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

Total

10

0

10

120

0

120

(*) The investment was cancelled from the register in 2018

In the first half of 2018, the only decrease was due to the conclusion of liquidation with
subsequent cancellation from the register of the company Program International.
Tecnimont Exportadora de Ingegniería y Servicios TCM SpA in Chile and Tecnimont Illinois LLC
in the United States are still not operational and were therefore not included in the
consolidation.
Conclusion of the liquidation process is awaited for the investments in Metrofiera S.c.a.r.l. and
Svincolo Taccone.
The breakdown of the non-consolidated subsidiaries is as follows:

99

Maire Tecnimont Group

Company

Svincolo Taccone S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

Location/ Currency

%
Group

Through:

%

ITA

EUR

80%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

80%

Exportadora de Ingegniería y Servicios TCM SpA

Chile

CLP

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

Tecnimont Illinois Llc.

USA

USD

100%

Tecnimont USA Inc.

100%

Spain

EUR

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

100%

ITA

EUR

100%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

99.99%

Tecnimont Iberia S.l.u.
Metrofiera S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

The investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries mainly refer to consortiums incorporated for
specific projects whose corporate duration is related to the duration of the project which is
currently
either terminated or not yet commenced. Investments in non-consolidated
subsidiaries are measured at fair value with changes written to the statement of
comprehensive income, although as the investment concerns securities no longer related to
operational activity, the fair value does not vary from the cost and the relative portion of
equity.

INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES
(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

IFRS 9
Effect

Other changes
in the period

30-06-2018

26

0

0

26

1,653

267

0

1,920

•

Finenergia S.p.A. in liquidation

•

Società Interporto Campano S.p.A.

•

Penta Domus S.p.A in liquidation (*)

0

0

0

0

•

Cavtomi consortium

150

0

0

150

•

Cavet consortium

434

0

0

434

•

Lotto 5A S.c.a.r.l.

2

0

0

2

•

Metro B1 S.c.a.r.l.

352

0

0

352

•

RI.MA.TI. S.c.a.r.l.

40

0

0

40

•

Sirio consortium

0.3

0

0

0.3

•

Lybian Joint Company

9

0

0

9

•

Kafco L.T.D.

0

1,404

0

1,404

•

Cisfi S.p.a.

1,008

(778)

0

230

•

Fondazione ITS

10

0

0

10

•

Contratto di programma Aquila consortium (*)

0

0

0

0

•

Consorzio parco scientifico e tecnologico Abruzzo (*)

0

0

0

0

•

Tecnosanità S.c.a.r.l.

17

0

0

17

•

Tecnoenergia Nord S.c.a.r.l. consortium

35

0

0

35

•

Tecnoenergia Sud S.c.a.r.l. consortium

7

0

0

7

•

Siluria Technologies Inc.

9,176

0

0

9,176

•

Pursell Agri-Tech LLC

4,589

0

0

4,589

17,509

893

0

18,402

Total

100

In the first half of 2018, the decreases and increases were mainly due to the transition to
IFRS 9; in fact, with regards to the valuation of financial assets concerning minority
investments, IAS 39 established the option to maintain the historic cost, while IFRS 9 however
requires fair value measurement. The impact of the fair value measurement of minority
investments resulted in a net increase in the opening value of the above investments of
approx. 893 thousand.
The investments in other companies mainly refers to consortiums incorporated for specific
projects whose duration is related to the project span. These investments are measured at fair
value with changes to the statement of comprehensive income, although as not listed on an
active market, the fair value is therefore estimated, although does not vary from the cost and
the relative portion of equity.

The key financial highlights relating to other companies is reported below:

Company

Location/

Currency

%
Group

Through:

%

Contratto di programma Aquila consortium

ITA

EUR

5.50%

KT S.p.A.

5.50%

Fondazione ITS

ITA

EUR

10%

KT S.p.A.

10%

Parco scientifico e tecnologico Abruzzo
consortium

ITA

EUR

11.10%

KT S.p.A.

11.10%

Tecnoenergia Nord S.c.a.r.l. consortium

ITA

EUR

12.50%

MST S.r.l

12.50%

Tecnoenergia Sud S.c.a.r.l. consortium

ITA

EUR

12.50%

MST S.r.l

12.50%

Tecnosanità S.c.a.r.l.

ITA

EUR

17%

MST S.r.l

17%

Cavtomi consortium

ITA

EUR

3%

Neosia S.p.A.

3%

Società Interporto Campano S.p.A.

ITA

EUR

3.08%

Neosia S.p.A.

3.08%

RI.MA.TI. S.c.a.r.l.

ITA

EUR

6.15%

Neosia S.p.A.

6.15%

Cavet consortium

ITA

EUR

8%

Neosia S.p.A.

8%

Lotto 5°A S.c.a.r.l.

ITA

EUR

15%

Neosia S.p.A.

15%

Metro B1 S.c.a.r.l.

ITA

EUR

19.30%

Neosia S.p.A.

19.30%

Penta Domus S.p.A

ITA

EUR

13.52%

Neosia S.p.A.

13.52%

Metrofiera S.c.a.r.l.

ITA

EUR

9.99%

Neosia S.p.A.

9.99%

Cisfi S.p.a

ITA

EUR

0.69%

Neosia S.p.A.

0.69%

Libya

Libyan
Dinar

0.33%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

0.33%

Bangladesh

BDT

1.57%

Stamicarbon B.V.

1.57%

ITA

EUR

1.25%

Tecnimont S.p.A.

1.25%

Lybian Joint Company
Kafco L.T.D.
Finenergia S.p.A. in liquidation
Siluria Technologies Inc.

USA

USD

3.148%

MET GAS S.p.A.

3.148%

Pursell Agri-Tech LLC

USA

USD

19.00%

Stamicarbon B.V.

19.00%

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES FROM ASSOCIATES
Receivables from associates amount to Euro 18 thousand and relate to the financial receivable
from the associate Bio-P S.r.l. for the operating activities of the newly incorporated company;
the loan is non-interest bearing.
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NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES FROM GROUP COMPANIES
Receivables from group companies amount to Euro 132 thousand and relate to the financial
receivable of Neosia S.p.A. from the group company Penta Domus S.p.A for the funding of the
“Ex Area Vitali” project of this latter. The loan is non interest-bearing. The decrease of Euro
206 thousand relates to the partial repayment made in the first half of 2018.
In the previous year, Siluria Technologies Inc issued a Convertible Bond; the Group, through
the subsidiary Met Gas Processing Technologies S.p.A., subscribed USD 5 million, equal at
June 30, 2018 to Euro 4,289 thousand. The Bond from the subscription date matures interest
at an annual rate of 6%. The financial instrument is measured at amortised cost.

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES FROM OTHER COMPANIES
Other financial receivables amounting to Euro 254 thousand relate to financial prepayments
and accrued income.

23.7.

Other non-current assets

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Trade receivables beyond 12 months

35,247

3,504

38,751

Other trade receivables beyond 12 months

12,727

(51)

12,676

Tax Receivables beyond 12 months

5,495

31

5,526

Prepayments beyond 12 months

2,115

4,472

6,587

Total

55,584

7,956

63,540

Other non-current assets amount to Euro 63,540 thousand, increasing Euro 7,956 thousand
compared to December 31, 2017.
Trade receivables due beyond 12 months mainly relate to receivables of Tecnimont S.p.A., KT
– Kinetics Technology S.p.A. and the other Group operating companies for withholding
guarantees by the buyer for the correct completion of works in progress. The increase of Euro
3,504 thousand is the net effect of lower releases of withholding guarantees in H1 2018 than
those matured.
Other trade receivables beyond 12 months amount to Euro 12,676 thousand and decreased
Euro 50 thousand; this amount mainly refers to receivables from J&P Avax and other
receivables beyond 12 months, including guarantee deposits.
For further information on the situation with the supplier J&P Avax, reference should be made
to the “Disputes” section of the Directors’ Report.
Tax receivables beyond 12 months of Euro 5,526 thousand concern those of the overseas
companies, principally the Indian subsidiary Tecnimont Private Limited, with repayment
expected beyond 12 months.
Prepayments beyond twelve months amount to Euro 6,587 thousand and mainly comprise
advance payments on bank guarantee commissions relating to new large projects acquired.
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23.8.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(Euro thousands)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Total

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

38,535

7,396

45,931

(31,159)

6,135

(25,024)

7,376

13,531

20,907

Deferred tax assets and liabilities present a positive net balance of Euro 20,907 thousand,
increasing Euro 13,531 thousand compared to December 31, 2017, as a combined effect of
the increase in deferred tax assets and the decrease in deferred tax liabilities.
The net increase in deferred tax assets is principally due to the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from application of the new standards IFRS 15 & IFRS 9.
The other residual changes in deferred tax assets are due to the combined effect of the
release of residual deferred tax assets on fiscal losses in previous years of some Group
companies utilized in the period to reduce the estimated Group tax charge and the release of
deferred tax assets on excess interest expenses non-deductible in previous years and on risks
provisions following utilization in the period, only partially offset by the deferred tax assets
arising on temporary charges deductible in future years.
Deferred tax liabilities decreased Euro 6,135 thousand, due to utilisations on temporary
differences assessable in the period and a reduction in temporary differences, principally due
to decreases in the mark to market of derivative instruments hedging the exposure of order
revenues and costs to currency risks.
Deferred tax assets were measured through critically assessing the future recoverability of
these assets on the basis of the capacity of the company and of the Maire Tecnimont Group,
also through use of the “tax consolidation” option, to generate assessable income in future
years. The National Tax Consolidation was renewed for the years 2016-2018.
The Group reports theoretical tax benefits for tax losses which may be carried forward of
approx. Euro 56.8 million not recognized to the balance sheet.

23.9.

Inventories and Advances to Suppliers

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Work-in-progress and semi-finished goods

2,162

1,244

3,406

Finished products and goods

1,291

(124)

1,167

Advance payments to suppliers

255,514

56,359

311,873

Total

258,967

57,479

316,446

The account “Work-in-progress and semi-finished goods”, amounting to Euro 3,406 thousand,
relates to the “Campus Firenze” initiative, a project financing concession of the Florence
University which in 2017 was restarted following agreement between the parties. The increase
relates to the advancement of activities in the first half of 2018, net of the contribution
received from the client. “Finished products and goods”, amounting to Euro 1,167 thousand,
relate to consumable materials and finished products utilized by the Cefalù 20 Consortium for
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its site activities and of the warehouse of the subsidiary MET T&S which supplies chemical
products, spare parts and polymers.
Advance payments to suppliers, amounting to Euro 311,873 thousand, refer to the advances
paid to foreign and Italian suppliers and sub-contractors against materials in progress and
transit for the construction of plant and work in progress.
The increase in the payments on account to suppliers is a direct consequence of the
advancement of the projects acquired in the previous year and for which significant numbers
of principal equipment orders were made, with the consequent recognition of financial
advances on supplies.

23.10.

Construction contracts

(Euro thousands)

Works-in-progress
(Advances received on work-in-progress)
Total

31-12-2017

IFRS 15 Effect

Changes in
the period

30-06-2018

13,095,826

(31,113)

1,487,977

14,552,690

(11,831,648)

0

(1,350,093)

(13,181,741)

1,264,178

(31,113)

137,884

1,370,949

Contract work-in-progress classified under assets (construction contract assets) reflects the
net positive amount, by individual order, between the advancement of works and the relative
invoicing on account and the contractual risks provision.
The net increase of Euro 106,771 thousand substantially concerns continued production
volume growth in the first half of 2018, which exceeded that in the previous year and
invoicing in the period, in addition to the general working capital movements on the main
orders, influenced by their particular contractual terms. The change includes also the
negative impacts from application of IFRS 15 of Euro 31,113 thousand; in fact, with regards to
costs incurred for expected and specifically identified future acquisition contracts following the
application of the more stringent requirements under IFRS 15, some of the costs previously
recognised as assets did not meet the conditions identified by the new standard.
The gross change on works carried out and advances received on work-in-progress is also
impacted by the values of the projects closed during the period and transferred to revenues
from sales.
The value of construction contracts includes additional requests on orders in an advanced
state of negotiation, for the portion expected to be accepted by the client.

23.11.

Trade receivables

(Euro thousands)

Trade receivables - within 12 months
Subsidiaries - within 12 months
Associates - within 12 months
Group companies - within 12 months
Total
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31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

453,320

(59,630)

393,690

49

(49)

0

20,999

95

21,094

6,975

(876)

6,099

481,342

(60,459)

420,883

Trade receivables at December 30, 2018 amount to Euro 420,883 thousand, a decrease of
Euro 60,459 thousand compared to December 31, 2017. The decrease in trade receivables is
due to the contractual terms of the main orders; increased invoicing is expected in subsequent
months.
Trade receivables from subsidiaries concerning Program International Consulting Engineers Srl
were settled in the period following the company’s liquidation.
Receivables from associates amount to Euro 21,094 thousand; these mainly refer for Euro
14,725 thousand to receivables for services provided by the Group to TSJ Limited, for the
“Borouge 3” project; for Euro 612 thousand from Biolevano S.r.l. for the trade receivables
related to maintenance and other services at the Biomass plant; for Euro 1,744 thousand to
recharges and services undertaken on behalf of Desimont Contracting Ltd, for Euro 1,725
thousand receivables from the newly incorporated JV Volgafert LLC for preliminary activities
on the new project and for Euro 2,279 thousand from the associate Hidrogeno CadereytaSapi.
Trade receivables from group companies primarily relate to engineering services provided
and/or recharged and concern Metro B1 for Euro 1,761 thousand, the Cavtomi Consortium for
Euro 2,574 thousand, Interporto Campano for Euro 1,751 thousand and the Cavet Consortium
for Euro 13 thousand.
Trade receivables are recorded net of the doubtful debt provision of Euro 11,210 thousand at
June 30, 2018 (Euro 5,824 thousand at December 31, 2017).
(Euro thousands)

31122017

IFRS 9
Transition
Effect

Change in
Other
Provisions Utilizations consolidation
movements
scope

Doubtful debt provision customers

5,824

8,046

0

(2,598)

0

(62)

11,210

Total

5,824

8,046

0

(2,598)

0

(62)

11,210

30-062018

Application of IFRS 9 in relation to the impairment on financial assets on the basis of expected
losses and the analysis on outstanding receivables at the previous reporting date, applying a
risk factor on the basis of the specific default probability of the counterparties, increased the
opening doubtful debt provision at 01.01.2018 by approx. Euro 8 million.
For IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, the impairment requirements are based on an expected
credit loss (ECL) model that replaces the IAS 39 incurred loss model, utilising supporting
information, available without unreasonable charges or effort, which includes historic, current
and projected figures.
Overdue trade receivables principally refer to the Infrastructure and Civil Engineering Business
Unit and concern Italian public sector entities; in relation to the Technology, Engineering &
Construction BU, they refer to a few positions and are constantly monitored. Neither client
categories provide concern from a solvency viewpoint (Italian and foreign state bodies), or for
the recoverability of the amounts.
All trade receivables in the accounts substantially approximate fair value which was calculated
as indicated in the accounting policies section.
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23.12.

Current tax assets

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Tax receivables

91,641

(13,587)

78,054

Total

91,641

(13,587)

78,054

Tax receivables amount to Euro 78,054 thousand, decreasing Euro 13,587 thousand compared
to December 31, 2017. The account principally includes VAT receivables for Euro 42,193
thousand and other tax receivables for Euro 35,861 thousand; the reduction on December 31,
2017 is principally due to reduced VAT receivables following the receipt of some positions.
The VAT receivables relate to the balance of the tax consolidation executed by the Parent
Company Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. of Euro 4,635 thousand, Italian companies’ receivables not
yet within the Group consolidation or prior to their inclusion and therefore not transferred to
the parent company for Euro 11,775 thousand, foreign companies amounting to Euro 5,003
thousand and for Euro 20,780 the foreign subsidiary Tecnimont Chile. The VAT receivables of
the South American entities are considered recoverable not only through the acquisition of
new projects by the South American Group, but also in view of their recognition on any sale of
the company.
Other tax receivables for Euro 35,861 thousand principally refer to:
•
•

tax receivables of foreign companies for Euro 7,646 thousand, mainly relate to the tax
receivables of the subsidiaries Tecnimont Russia, Stamicarbon BV and MET NEWen
Messico;
residual tax receivables of Euro 28,215 thousand mainly related to: excess corporation
tax payment on account compared to current income taxes of the other companies of
the Group, IRAP payments on account, tax receivable for bank interest withholding tax
and other tax receivables for various reimbursements, as well as tax credits for
income taxes paid abroad.

Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. and the subsidiaries Tecnimont S.p.A., MST S.r.l., Met Gas Processing
Technologies, Neosia S.p.A., KT S.p.A. and Met Development S,p,A. opted to apply the Tax
Consolidation regime which permits the calculation of the IRES corporation tax on a tax basis
representing the aggregate of the taxable income and losses of the individual companies.
The companies Tecnimont S.p.A., Neosia S.p.A., Met Gas Processing Technologies, Consorzio
Cefalù 20, Consorzio Corace in liquidation, Met Development S.p.A and M.S.T. S.r.l. have also
applied the Group VAT consolidation regime.
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23.13.

Financial instruments - Derivatives

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Financial instruments - Currency hedging derivatives

13,214

(5,809)

7,405

Financial instruments - Raw material hedging derivatives

1,358

(1,185)

173

Financial instruments - Total Return Equity SWAP (TRES)
derivatives

5,404

(5,404)

0

Total

19,976

(12,398)

7,578

Derivative financial instruments at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 7,578 thousand, decreasing
Euro 12,398 thousand compared to December 31, 2017 and concern the fair value
measurement of the derivative contracts in force.
The account for Euro 7,405 thousand relates to the measurement of the derivative
instruments to hedge against currency risks on the cash flows related to project revenues and
costs. The mark-to-market is positive as the movement in the exchange rate since the
subscription date of the derivative instruments to the reporting date saw a weakening
principally of the Dollar against the Euro; the positive mark-to-market will be offset by the
future operating cash flows for a similar amount.
The account derivative financial instruments for Euro 173 thousand refers to the measurement
of the derivative instruments to hedge against changes in the prices of raw materials
(copper) whose value is significant on the overall margin of the projects. The change derives
from currency and commodity market movements and the settlement of a number of positions
in the period.
The reduction in the derivatives account Total Return Equity Swap (TRES) concerning the fair
value of the cash settled Total Return Equity Swap (TRES) derivative instruments hedging
movements in the Maire Tecnimont share price is due to the fact that in the period Maire
Tecnimont exercised the “Early Termination” option in settlement of a portion of the
instruments; the settled portion hedged the risk for approx. 3.6 million shares; the differential
received was approx. Euro 5.4 million. The residual portion of the instruments at June 30,
2018 hedges the risk for a total of approx. 3 million shares and reports a negative fair value.

23.14.

Other current financial assets

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Associates

273

6

279

Group companies

188

0

188

Others

4,895

341

5,237

Total

5,356

347

5,703

Financial receivables within 12 months:
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Other current financial assets at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 5,703 thousand, an increase
of Euro 347 thousand compared to December 31, 2017.
Financial receivables from associates concern Villaggio Olimpico Moi for Euro 69 thousand and
for Euro 209 thousand the JV Kazakhstan Tecnimont-KTR LLP incorporated in order to develop
initiatives in the country with a new strategic partner.
Financial receivables from group companies concern the CAVET Consortium.
Other receivables amount to Euro 5,237 thousand, increasing Euro 341 thousand; this account
includes financial receivables from factoring companies and banks for the residual portion of
advances received, receivables from some minor consortiums for special purpose projects of
the Neosia Group, various deposits and financial prepayments and accrued income.
For all financial assets, the book value approximates the fair value which is calculated as
described in the accounting policies section.

23.15.

Other current assets

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Others receivables within 12 months

132,823

(34,749)

98,074

Commercial prepayments

14,024

6,981

21,005

Total

146,847

(27,768)

119,079

Other current assets at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 119,079 thousand, a decrease of Euro
27,768 thousand compared to December 31, 2017. The account mainly comprises the AlbaBrà Hospital “construction and management” project represented in accordance with the IFRIC
12 model, commercial discounts, employee receivables, social security and tax receivables,
VAT and taxes of foreign companies and other various receivables, in addition to receivables
from other shareholders of the consolidated consortiums.
The breakdown of other receivables due within 12 months is shown in the table below:
(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Alba-Bra’ Hospital Concession

27,773

19,784

47,557

Receivables from consortiums and JV’s

62,698

(60,589)

2,109

Other debtors

22,538

1,457

23,995

Taxes, VAT and levies (foreign companies)

13,264

2,356

15,620

Guarantee deposits

2,523

2,399

4,922

Other prepayments (rental, commissions, assistance)

14,023

6,981

21,005

Employee receivables

1,671

(403)

1,266

Social security institutions

1,619

248

1,867

738

0

738

146,847

(27,768)

119,079

Receivables for unpaid contributions from other shareholders

Total
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The Alba-Brà Hospital concession is a “construction and management” contract signed with
ASL CN2. The initiative is headed by the project company MGR Verduno S.p.A.. The structural
works were completed and the plant works and internal fitting out continues. The works have
reached slightly over 75% completion. In 2017, addendum No. 3 was agreed, setting the
amount of the public grant and reviewing the Economic and Financial Plan, establishing in
addition a new deadline for completion of works and the beginning of the concession period.
Thereafter, intensive works started up in the first half of 2018.
The decrease in receivables from other shareholders of the fully consolidated consortium
companies principally concerns the receivables from the consolidated consortiums for the third
party portion related to the operating performance of TecnimontHQC S.c.a.r.l. involved in the
Rapid Malaysia initiatives, which at June 30, 2018 presented a debt balance and therefore was
reclassified to “other current liabilities”.
All current assets in the accounts substantially approximate fair value.

23.16.

Cash and cash equivalents

(Euro thousands)

Bank deposits
Cash in hand and similar

Total

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

630,667

(48,335)

582,332

201

129

330

630,868

(48,206)

582,662

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 582,662 thousand, a decrease of
Euro 48,206 thousand compared to December 31, 2017.
Cash of Euro 32,621 thousand was absorbed by operating activities, as reflecting the expected
working capital changes relating to the normal execution of projects which, during the full
execution phase, absorb cash, while partially offset by new recently acquired contracts.
Investing activities absorbed cash for Euro 5,253 thousand, mainly due to the costs incurred
for the installation of software and other applications, license development and new
technology, in addition to capex as a result of the overall growth of the Group.
Financing activities also absorbed cash of Euro 10,333 thousand, principally due to the
payment of the dividend approved by the Shareholders’ AGM of Euro 42,064 thousand and the
residual purchase of treasury shares for approx. Euro 25 million, in addition to interest paid in
the period.
These effects were partially offset by the utilisation of factoring operations for the working
capital management of certain projects and current account overdrafts, and financial income
related to the settlement of the residual portions of the cash-settled Total Return Equity Swap
(TRES) derivative instruments. In addition, during the period Euro 10 million was repaid as
per the repayment plan for the original Euro 350 million loan undertaken by the subsidiary
Tecnimont S.p.A.; an additional Euro 165 million was thereafter repaid following the issue on
May 3 of a non-convertible bond for a similar amount by Maire Tecnimont S.p.A..
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23.17.

Shareholders’ Equity

Group Shareholders' equity at June 30, 2018 amounts to Euro 265,028 thousand, a net
increase of Euro 3,075 thousand compared to December 31, 2017 (Euro 261,953).
Total consolidated Shareholders’ Equity, considering minority interests, at June 30, 2018
amounts to Euro 291,866 thousand, an increase of Euro 8,097 thousand compared to
December 31, 2017. This increase is also due to the change in minority interest equity
including the result for the period.
The increase in Group Shareholders’ Equity is principally due to net income for the period,
together with the increases related to the share capital increase and the reduction in the
treasury shares reserve in service of the equity-linked bond loan conversion requests, which
were satisfied through the assignment to entitled parties of 14,952,300 treasury shares of the
company from the buy-back program to service the conversion of the Loan which commenced
on September 25, 2017, and 23,112,932 newly-issued shares from a paid-in share capital
increase to service the Loan, approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the
Company of April 30, 2014.
The main decreases in Group Shareholders’ Equity related to the payment of the dividend
approved by the Shareholders’ AGM of Euro 42,064 thousand, of the Cash Flow Hedge reserve
of derivative hedging instruments, essentially against decreases in the mark to market of
order revenue and cost fluctuations, net of the relative tax effect, the translation reserve for
financial statements in foreign currencies and for approx. Euro 27.8 million the application of
the new accounting standards IFRS 15 & IFRS 9.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Share capital at June 30, 2018 was Euro 19,920,679 and was comprised of 328,640,432
shares without par value, with regular rights.
On March 15, 2018 – Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. communicated the new composition of the
subscribed and paid-in share capital, in addition to the total number of voting rights (as per
Article 85-bis, paragraphs 1, 2 and 4-bis, Consob Regulation 11971/1999), following the issue
of 23,112,932 new ordinary shares on the basis of the paid-in share capital increase approved
by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the company of April 30, 2014 in service of the
conversion of the “€80,000,000 5.75 per cent equity-linked bonds due 2019”.
By the deadline, conversion requests from Bondholders for a nominal value of Euro
79,800,000 had been received, corresponding to a total of 798 Bonds, at the conversion price
of Euro 2.0964. The conversion requests were satisfied through delivery to entitled parties of
a total 38,065,232 ordinary Maire Tecnimont shares, with full rights, of which 14,952,300
treasury shares of the company from the buy-back program to service the conversion of the
Loan which commenced on September 25, 2017, and 23,112,932 newly-issued shares from a
paid-in share capital increase to service the Loan, approved by the Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting of the company of April 30, 2014.
The new shares were issued, without nominal value, at the conversion price of Euro 2.0964, of
which Euro 0.1 as Share Capital and Euro 2.0864 as Share Premium.

SHARE PREMIUM RESERVE
The Share Premium Reserve at June 30, 2018 amounted to Euro 272,921 thousand, broken
down as follows:
The reserve comprises for Euro 25,000 thousand the share premium prior to November 26,
2007 and for Euro 58,045 thousand the share premium on the capital increase of 2007 net of
the listing costs of Euro 3,971 thousand, net of the tax effect.
The change in 2013 was Euro 141,653 thousand, comprising share premium paid following the
reserved share capital increase and from other shareholders amounting to Euro 146,417

110

thousand, offset for Euro 4,167 thousand for share capital increase charges net of the tax
effect.
The increase in 2018 was Euro 48,223 thousand, following the share capital increase in
service of conversion of the “€80,000,000 5.75 per cent equity-linked bonds due 2019”
equity-linked bond loan.
This reserve may be utilized for share capital increases without consideration and/or for the
coverage of losses. In accordance with Article 2431 of the Civil Code, this reserve may be
distributed to the shareholders following a Shareholders’ Meeting motion.

OTHER RESERVES
The other reserves at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 4,793 thousand and comprise of the:
•

Legal Reserve of the Parent Company Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. which at June 30, 2018
amounts to Euro 5,328 thousand;

•

Asset revaluation reserve of Euro 9,772 thousand recorded following the accounting of
the purchase of the residual 50% of Tecnimont Private Limited, and the revaluation of
other buildings;

•

Translation reserve at June 30, 2018 of a negative Euro 23,451 thousand and
comprising the temporary translation differences of the financial statements in foreign
currencies; the change in the period was a decrease of Euro 5,378 thousand, impacted
by currency movements;

•

Statutory reserves, which at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 27,532 thousand;

•

Other reserves, which at June 30, 2018 were negative for Euro 20,108, with the
change in the period of Euro 26,754 thousand related to the conversion of the equitylinked bond loan;

•

IFRS 2 Reserve for Euro 5,954 thousand, which includes the valuation of the equity
participation plans offered to employees as additional benefits. The above-mentioned
plans are recognized in accordance with the provisions for share-based payments. In
accordance with IFRS 2, these plans represent a remuneration component of the
beneficiaries; therefore, for the equity participation plans, the cost is represented by
the fair value of these instruments at the granting date, and recognized in the income
statement under “Personnel expense” over the period between the granting date and
that of maturity, and in the “IFRS 2 reserve” under equity. The Reserve reported a net
decrease of Euro 4,807 thousand; the movements in the period refer to accruals in the
first half of 2018, net of utilisations following completion of the second cycle - 2017 of
the general share plan and a reduction following the updates to the estimates upon
plan performance.

•

Treasury shares in portfolio of Euro -184 thousand, increasing in H1 2018 Euro 42,030
thousand, following the share capital increase in service of conversion of the
“€80,000,000 5.75 per cent equity-linked bonds due 2019” equity-linked bond loan; in
fact, the conversion requests were satisfied through delivery to entitled parties of a
total 38,065,232 ordinary Maire Tecnimont shares, with full rights, of which
14,952,300 treasury shares of the company from the buy-back program to service the
conversion of the Loan which commenced on September 25, 2017, and 23,112,932
newly-issued shares from a paid-in share capital increase to service the Loan,
approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the company of April 30,
2014.
Maire Tecnimont S.p.A. on June 12, 2018 launched a treasury share buy back
programme, as per Article 5 of Regulation (EC) No. 596/2014 (the “MAR”), in service
of the Second Cycle (2017) of the “2016-2018 General Share Plan for Maire Tecnimont
Group employees” approved by the Shareholders’ AGM of April 27, 2016. Between June
12, 2018 and June 30, 2018 inclusive, 500,000 treasury shares (0.15% of the share
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capital) were acquired at an average weighted price of Euro 4.174, for a total amount
of Euro 2,087,182.15. On June 30, 2018, 472,180 shares from the Program had been
assigned to foreign Plan Beneficiaries.
The company on June 30, 2018 held 27,820 treasury shares from the Second Cycle
(2017) of purchases and an additional 16,248 excess treasury shares from the First
Cycle (2016). The company therefore at June 30, 2018 held 44,068 treasury shares.

VALUATION RESERVE
The valuation reserve, which at June 30, 2018 was negative for Euro 6,792 thousand,
comprises the Cash Flow Hedge reserve, the Cost of Hedging Reserve (containing the effects
of the costs of hedging in relation to the time value of the options) and the actuarial gains and
losses reserve. The changes in the valuation reserve are shown below:
(Euro thousands)

Cash Flow Hedge
Reserve & Cost of
Hedging Reserve

Actuarial
gains/(losses)

Total

23,197

(1,083)

22,114

Actuarial gain/(losses)

0

(102)

(102)

Relative tax effect

0

24

24

(37,932)

0

(37,932)

Net book value at December 31, 2017

Net valuation of derivatives instruments:
Valuation derivative instruments
Relative tax effect
Net book value at June 30, 2018

9,104

0

9,104

(5,631)

(1,161)

(6,792)

The decrease in the Cash Flow Hedge reserve of the derivative instruments, as previously
illustrated, mainly relates to the mark-to-market losses of the derivative instruments to hedge
the currency risk on project revenues and costs, net of the relative tax effect.

23.18.

Financial payables - non-current portion

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Bank payables beyond 12 months

324,602

(159,714)

164,888

Total

324,602

(159,714)

164,888

Financial payables, net of the current portion, amount to Euro 164,888 thousand, reducing
Euro 159,714 thousand on December 31, 2017, principally following the partial settlement of
the original Euro 350 million loan of the subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A..
In March 2018, a portion of Euro 10 million was in fact repaid as per the repayment plan; an
additional Euro 165 million was subsequently repaid following the issue on May 3 of a nonconvertible bond loan of a similar amount by Maire Tecnimont S.p.A..
The original Euro 350 million loan (residual nominal amount of Euro 175 million at June 30,
2018) includes covenants in line with normal business practice for such operations;
specifically, the loan’s financial covenants concern the ratio between the net financial position
and net equity, as well as between the net financial position and EBITDA, with initial
measurement on the FY 2018 figures.
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The residual debt - non-current portion - of Euro 17,738 thousand refers to the long-term
portion of the new Project financing loan from a syndicate of banks comprising IMI, BPER and
Intesa Sanpaolo.
In the first half of 2018, the project company MGR Verduno S.p.A., engaged in the “Alba-Bra
Hospital concession’” “construction and management” contract agreed ASL CN2, obtained
project financing from a banking syndicate. This is a no-recourse financial payable for the
financing of Concession sector initiatives not guaranteed by the parent company, but rather
by cash flows from such initiatives to be received by the Vehicle company involved in the
initiative during the infrastructure construction and management period.
At June 30, 2018, no overdue debt positions are highlighted.
Maire Tecnimont is currently not aware of any default situations regarding the abovementioned covenants.

23.19.

Provisions for charges - beyond 12 months

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Provisions for charges - beyond 12 months

62,007

(2,976)

59,031

Total

62,007

(2,976)

59,031

The provision for charges amounts to Euro 59,031 thousand, a decrease of Euro 2,976
thousand compared to December 31, 2017.
The account mainly includes provisions for charges relating to remuneration and incentive
policies, other charges related to legal cases and disputes in course, in addition to personnel
disputes and contractual risks on projects closed.
This account also includes the measurement at equity of companies with a negative net equity
for which the Group has the intention - although not immediate given the absence of
regulatory obligations - to contribute to the coverage of the negative net equity of the
investee.
The reduction in the provisions relates to utilisations in the period, particularly for
remuneration policies; in fact, following the approval of the 2017 Annual Financial Report by
the Shareholders’ AGM, the results of the incentive plans such as the MBO, the performance
bonus and the MAIRE4YOU Flexible Benefits personnel fund were calculated.

23.20.

Post-employment & other employee benefits

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Post-employment & other employee benefits

11,452

(17)

11,435

Total

11,452

(17)

11,435
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The Group has a liability to all employees of the Italian companies regarding the statutory TFR
(Post-employment benefit) provision, while the employees of some foreign companies of the
Tecnimont Group are recognized defined contribution plans.
In accordance with IAS 19 (Employee benefits), the Group estimated the liability for defined
benefit plans at June 30, 2018; the changes in the period are shown below:
(Euro thousands)

POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFIT PROVISION

OTHER PLANS

Total

11,185

268

11,452

(15)

(2)

(17)

11,170

265

11,435

Balance at December 31, 2017
Changes in the period

Balance at June 30, 2018

The main decreases in the Post-employment benefit provision and the other plans relate to
the departure of employees.
The Cost relating to current employment services is recognized in the Income Statement
under “Personnel expense”. Financial expenses on obligations assumed are recognized in the
Income Statement under financial expenses - other charges. Actuarial gains and losses and
recognized in a specific valuation reserve under Equity.

23.21.

Other non-current liabilities

(Euro thousands)

Trade payables beyond 12 months
Tax payables beyond 12 months
Accrued liabilities
Total

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

79,369

11,569

90,938

66

0

66

29

(29)

0

79,465

11,539

91,004

Non-current other liabilities at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 91,004 thousand and mainly
refer to the withholdings made by the Group to suppliers/sub-contractors in accordance with
contractual guarantees for the correct completion of the work.
The increase concerns the advancement of orders and the contractual terms with suppliers,
against which withholding taxes were greater than December 31, 2017, also due to increased
production volumes in 2018.

23.22.

Financial instruments - Derivatives - Non-current

(in Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

249

3,114

3,363

Financial instruments - Interest rate hedging derivatives

0

958

958

Financial instruments - Raw material hedging derivatives

0

709

709

249

4,781

5,030

Financial instruments - Currency hedging derivatives

Total
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Derivative financial instruments at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 5,030 thousand, with an
increase of Euro 4,781 thousand compared to December 31, 2017 and concern the fair value
measurement of the derivative contracts in force.
The account for Euro 3,363 thousand relates to the measurement of the derivative
instruments to hedge against currency risks on the cash flows related to project revenues and
costs. The mark-to-market is negative as exchange rates between the subscription date of the
derivative instruments and the reporting date saw a revaluation principally of the Dollar
against the Euro; the negative mark-to-market will be offset by future operating cash flows of
a similar amount.
This component increased on the previous year due to swap point movements (differences
between Eurozone and US interest rates) as well as from the differing composition of the
notional hedges expiring beyond 12 months.
The account concerns for Euro 958 thousand the valuation of Interest Rate Swaps (IRS)
hedging the exposure to variable interest rate risk on the MGR Verduno S.p.A loan signed in
the first half of 2018.
The account derivative financial instruments for Euro 709 thousand refers to the measurement
of the derivative instruments to hedge against changes in the prices of raw materials
(copper) whose value is significant on the overall margin of the projects. The change derives
from the market movements of exchange rates and commodities in the period.

23.23.

Other non-current financial liabilities

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Payables to other lenders - Bonds

39,719

162,798

202,517

Total

39,719

162,798

202,517

“Other non-current financial liabilities” include:
•

For Euro 39,743 thousand, the non-convertible bonds, net of accessory charges,
subscribed in 2017 through private placement by the Pan-European Fund and the
Export Development Fund (created by SACE), both managed by Amundi Group
companies.

The bonds, divided into two equal tranches, are priced all-in at 340 basis points, plus the
Euribor at 6 months, with a six-year maturity and bullet repayment on maturity and are
supported by guarantees issued by Tecnimont S.p.A. and, for one of the two tranches, also by
a guarantee in favor of bondholders by SACE S.p.A.. (CDP Group). Both bond tranches were
for exclusive subscription by qualifying investors; the securities - with unitary values of Euro
100,000 each - are not be listed or admitted to trading on any market (regulated or nonregulated) or multi-lateral trading systems, nor assigned a rating. The bonds are supported
by covenants in line with market practice; specifically, the bond covenants regard the
maintenance of a ratio between the net financial position and net equity, as well as between
the net financial position and EBITDA, next measured on the June 30, 2018 figures.
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•

For Euro 162,774 thousand, the non-convertible Bond Loan for a total Euro 165
million, net of accessory charges, issued in 2018.

In this regard, we report the following:
On May 3, 2018, Maire Tecnimont issued 165,000 Non-Convertible Bonds at a price equal to
100% of the nominal value, and with a unitary minimum value of Euro 1,000 (thousand), for a
total of Euro 165 million. The Bond interest rate is 2.625% annually, with interest paid on a
deferred basis on April 30 and October 31 of each year, from October 31, 2018. The Bonds
shall be settled at the nominal value on April 30, 2024 where not previously settled or
cancelled.
The Bond Loan is part of a project to diversify funding and optimise the medium/long-term
debt in order to align its structure with the altered financial needs of the Maire Tecnimont
Group.
The Bond issue terms and conditions stipulate incurrence-type covenants regarding the debt
level; specifically, the bond financial covenants require the maintenance of a stated net
financial position/EBITDA ratio, measured annually and initially on the December 31, 2018
figures.
The Maire Tecnimont Group is currently not aware of any default situations regarding the
above-mentioned covenants.

23.24.

Short-term financial payables

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Bank payables

90,320

59,548

149,868

Other lenders

9,566

(4,302)

5,264

Accrued liabilities

4,057

(2,273)

1,784

103,943

52,973

156,916

Total

Short-term financial payables amount to Euro 156,916 thousand, increasing Euro 52,973
thousand on December 31, 2017, principally due to increases in current account overdrafts
relating to the use of credit lines to manage current commercial requirements and other
short-term loans, in addition to the reclassification to short-term of the Credito Valtellinese
and Banca Popolare di Milano loans.
At June 30, 2018, short-term bank payables mainly refer to:
- for Euro 25,362 thousand the short-term capital portion of the original Euro 350 million loan
(residual nominal amount of Euro 175 million at June 30, 2018) granted to the subsidiary
Tecnimont S.p.A.;
- for Euro 50,000 thousand the revolving line granted to the subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. by
Banca IMI;
- for Euro 6,698 thousand the capital portion of the loan granted to the subsidiary Tecnimont
S.p.A. issued by Credito Valtellinese;
- for Euro 20,000 thousand hot money granted to the subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. da SogenBayerische;
- for Euro 4,904 thousand the import loan of the subsidiary Tecnimont S.p.A. from Cariparma;
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- for Euro 4,187 thousand the loan granted to Neosia S.p.A. by Banca Popolare di Milano in
support of a specific project, whose final instalment is due in June 2019.
- for Euro 2,609 thousand the short-term capital portion of the no-recourse Project financing
granted in 2018 to the project company MGR Verduno S.p.A. involved in the “Alba-Bra
Hospital concession” initiative, a “construction and management” contract agreed with ASL
CN2;
- for Euro 36,108 thousand current account overdrafts for the utilization of credit lines granted
and commercial advances relating to projects in progress.
Other current lenders amount to Euro 5,264 thousand, reducing Euro 4,302 thousand and
mainly relate to the factoring operations within the management of the working capital of
some projects.
Interest due on loans and bonds and bank overdrafts matured and not yet paid amount to
Euro 1,784 thousand.
The composition of the net financial position is reported in the paragraph “Group balance
sheet and financial position” in the Directors’ Report, to which reference should be made for
further information on the changes compared to the previous period.

The following table reports the Group’s net financial debt at June 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017, in line with Consob communication No. DEM/6064293/2006 of July 28, 2006:

NET FINANCIAL DEBT MAIRE TECNIMONT GROUP

In Euro thousands

A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.
I.
J.
K.
L.
M.
N.
O.

Cash
Bank and postal deposits
Securities

30/06/2018

31/12/2017

(330)

(200)

(582,332)

(630,667)

-

-

Liquidity (A+B+C)

(582,662)

(630,868)

Current financial receivables

(13,281)

(25,332)

Current bank payables

128,945

68,718

Current portion of non-current debt

27,971

35,225

Other current financial payables

19,247

89,787

Current financial debt (F+G+H)

176,163

193,730

Net current financial debt (I-E-D)

(419,780)

(462,469)

Non-current bank payables

164,888

324,602

Bonds issued

202,517

39,719

Other non-current payables

5,030

249

Non-current financial debt (K+L+M)

372,435

364,569

Net financial debt (J+N)

(47,345)

(97,900)

The following table presents the reconciliation between the net financial debt and the net
financial position of the Group at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
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RECONCILIATION NFD & NFP
In Euro thousands

O.

Net financial debt

30/06/2018

31/12/2017

(47,345)

(97,900)

Net financial debt of discontinued operations

-

-

(9,493)

(8,920)

Financial instruments - Non-current derivatives

(2,490)

(1,222)

"Project Financing - Non Recourse"

(21,647)

-

(80,975)

(108,042)

Other non-current financial assets

Adjusted Net Financial Position

The adjusted net financial position at June 30, 2018 was a Net Cash position of Euro 81
million, slightly reducing on December 31, 2017, although altering in composition. Excluding
dividend payments from the June 30, 2018 position, Net Cash substantially in line with March
2018 and December 2017 would be available.
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 582,662 thousand, a decrease of
Euro 48,206 thousand compared to December 31, 2017; cash of Euro 32,621 thousand was
absorbed by operating activities, as reflecting the expected working capital changes relating to
the normal execution of projects which, during the full execution phase, absorb cash, while
partially offset by contracts acquired in H1 2018.
Against the decrease in cash and cash equivalents as already reported, the gross debt reduced
following the settlement of the equity-linked convertible bond, net of an increase in short-term
debt due to factoring operations for the working capital management of a number of projects
and increases in current account overdrafts with the utilisation of short-term cash flow
management credit lines.
The decrease in the mark to market of derivative instruments also impacted the financial
position for Euro 24,952 thousand, principally concerning derivative instruments hedging
order revenue and cost fluctuations, including raw materials, mainly as a result of the
weakening of the Dollar against the Euro compared to December 31, 2017.
The estimate of the “fair value” of these financial instruments at June 30, 2018 substantially
approximated their book value.
At June 30, 2018, no overdue debt positions are highlighted.

23.25.

Provisions for charges - within 12 months

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Provisions for charges - within 12 months

3,384

218

3,602

Total

3,384

218

3,602

The provision for charges within 12 months amounts to Euro 3,602 thousand and concerns the
estimated costs for remuneration and incentive policies.
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23.26.

Tax payables

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Tax payables

41,413

27,192

68,605

Total

41,413

27,192

68,605

Tax payables amount to Euro 68,605 thousand, increasing Euro 27,192 thousand on
December 31, 2017, essentially due to increased estimated taxes in the period for the Italian
companies.
The account principally includes payables for IRES corporate taxes under the Group tax
consolidation and IRES and IRAP of the companies not participating in the tax consolidation
for Euro 37,102 thousand, increasing Euro 17,526 thousand on December 31, 2017.
In the coming period, the balance of the previous year and the advances for the 2018 tax year
shall be paid.
Other tax payables concern foreign corporate taxes, principally relating to Tecnimont Private
Limited, TPI and Tecnimont HQC SDN; VAT payables relate principally to the subsidiaries
Tecnimont Russia, JV TCM-KT Azerbaijan LLC and Unincorporated JV Philippines and residually
to deferred VAT to be paid on settlement by the public sector client.
The residual amount includes IRPEF personnel withholding tax payables and withholding taxes
on account for third party compensation and other tax payables.
At June 30, 2018, no overdue debt positions are highlighted. Tax payables are shown in the
table below:
(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Current income tax payables - Ires/Irap

19,577

17,525

37,102

Current income taxes payable – Overseas

1,816

4,734

6,550

VAT payables

11,824

4,638

16,462

Substitute taxes payable

5,630

2,654

8,284

Other payables

2,566

(2,359)

207

Total

41,413

27,192

68,605

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

23.27.

Financial instruments - Derivatives

(in Euro thousands)

Financial instruments - Currency hedging derivatives

9,876

6,467

16,343

Financial instruments - Interest rate hedging derivatives

0

341

341

Financial instruments - Raw material hedging derivatives

0

1,093

1,093

Financial instruments - Total Return Equity SWAP (TRES) derivatives

0

1,140

1,140

9,876

9,041

18,917

Total
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Derivative financial instruments at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 18,917 thousand, with an
increase of Euro 9,041 thousand compared to December 31, 2017 and concern the fair value
measurement of the derivative contracts in force.
The account for Euro 16,343 thousand relates to the measurement of the derivative
instruments to hedge against currency risks on the cash flows related to project revenues and
costs. The mark-to-market is negative as exchange rates between the subscription date of the
derivative instruments and the reporting date saw a revaluation principally of the Dollar
against the Euro; the negative mark-to-market will be offset by future operating cash flows of
a similar amount.
The account concerns for Euro 341 thousand the valuation of Interest Rate Swaps (IRS)
hedging the exposure to variable interest rate risk on the MGR Verduno S.p.A loan signed in
the first half of 2018.
The account derivative financial instruments for Euro 1,093 thousand refers to the
measurement of the derivative instruments to hedge against changes in the prices of raw
materials (copper) whose value is significant on the overall margin of the projects. The change
derives from the market movements of exchange rates and commodities in the period.

The account for Euro 1,140 thousand concerns the negative fair value of a cash-settled Total
Return Equity Swap (TRES) derivative hedging movements in the Maire Tecnimont share
price; the residual portions of the instrument at June 30, 2018 hedged the risk for approx. 3
million shares and recorded a negative fair value.
For accounting purposes the TRES is measured in accordance with IFRS 9 as a fair value
derivative through P&L.

23.28.

Other current financial liabilities

(in Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

330

0

330

Other current financial liabilities - Equity Linked Bond

79,581

(79,581)

0

Total

79,911

(79,581)

330

Other current financial liabilities

Other current financial liabilities of Euro 330 thousand do not relate to bank debt but rather
loans received from consortium companies. Current financial liabilities specifically relates to
the consortium company Cavtomi.
The decrease in “Other current financial liabilities” is due to the settlement of the “€80 million
5.75 per cent. Unsecured Equity- Linked Bonds due 2019”. In this regard, we report the
following:
On January 25, 2018 - the Board of Directors of Maire Tecnimont approved the exercise of the
advance repayment option in cash, at nominal value, of the equity-linked bond; on March 6,
2018 - Maire Tecnimont announced that - against the nominal value of the Loan at January
25, 2018 of Euro 79,900,000, for 799 bonds (the “Bonds”) still in circulation and listed on the
Dritter Markt (Third Market) Multilateral Trading Facility organised and managed by the Vienna
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Stock Exchange - it had received, by the deadline of February 28, 2018, conversion requests
from bondholders for a nominal value of Euro 79,800,000, corresponding to a total of 798
Bonds, at the conversion price of Euro 2,0964. The conversion requests were satisfied
through delivery to entitled parties of a total 38,065,232 ordinary Maire Tecnimont shares,
with full rights, of which 14,952,300 treasury shares of the company from the buy-back
program to service the conversion of the Loan which commenced on September 25, 2017, and
23,112,932 newly-issued shares from a paid-in share capital increase to service the Loan,
approved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the company of April 30, 2014. The
1 Bond of a nominal value of Euro 100,000.00, for which a conversion request was not
presented by the final deadline of February 28, 2018, was repaid in cash at the above nominal
value, in addition to interest matured, according to that set out in the Bond Regulation, with
value date of March 7, 2018.

23.29.

Client advance payments

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Client advance payments

573,783

(59,938)

513,845

Total

573,783

(59,938)

513,845

Advances concern contractual advances from clients on the signing of construction contracts.
Client advance payments at June 30, 2018 were Euro 513,845 thousand, decreasing Euro
59,938 thousand on December 31, 2017, principally following a reabsorption through invoicing
on account of advances paid in excess of the receipt of additional advances in relation to the
new orders acquired from the Socar refinery in Azerbaijan, the Omsk Refinery and JG Summit
Petrochemical Corporation in the Philippines.

23.30.

Construction contracts liabilities

(Euro thousands)

(Works-in-progress)
Advances received on work-in-progress
Total

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

(11,842,294)

(1,360,127)

(13,202,421)

12,250,855

1,354,006

13,604,861

408,561

(6,121)

402,440

Contract work-in-progress classified as liabilities (construction contract liabilities) reflects the
net negative amount, by individual order, between the advancement of works and the relative
invoicing on account and the contractual risks provision.
The decrease in the net value of construction contract liabilities, amounting to Euro 6,121
thousand, relates to the advancement of the projects and their contractual terms, against
which the value of works carried out in the period was higher than the invoicing on account
following a substantial increase in production volumes in the year.
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The gross change on works carried out and advances received on work-in-progress is also
impacted by the values of the projects closed during the period and transferred to revenues
from sales.
The value of construction contracts includes additional requests on orders in an advanced
state of negotiation, for the portion expected to be accepted by the client.

23.31.

Trade payables

(Euro thousands)

Suppliers - within 12 months
Subsidiaries - within 12 months
Associates - within 12 months

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

1,272,576

46,149

1,318,725

0

677

677

393

59

452

Parent companies - within 12 months

92

(58)

34

Group companies - within 12 months

9,245

1,977

11,222

1,282,306

48,804

1,331,110

Total

Trade payables at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 1,331,110 thousand, an increase of Euro
48,804 thousand compared to December 31, 2017. The account includes also accruals at
period-end for invoices to be received.
This increase relates to the development of projects which have entered into a phase of
intense production and the increase in production volumes. In fact, despite reduced material
purchases, service costs increased significantly, as for the main orders acquired procurement
has been completed and the materials delivered, while intense construction is ongoing.
Payables to non-consolidated subsidiaries of Euro 677 thousand concern cost recharges to
Metrofiera Scarl in liquidation for the final positions arising on closure of the order.
During H1 2018 payment requests were received in relation to the normal operating activities
and at June 30, 2018 there were no trade payable positions overdue on normal operations.
Trade payables to associates amount to Euro 452 thousand and principally concern Studio
Geotecnico Italiano for Euro 316 thousand, MCM Servizi Roma for Euro 95 thousand, TSJ
Limited for Euro 14 thousand, BIO-P for Euro 23 thousand and Villaggio Olimpico Moi for Euro
4 thousand.
Payables to parent companies amount to Euro 34 thousand and concern GLV S.p.A for the
leasing of office spaces and the use of brands.
Payables to group companies of Euro 11,222 thousand principally concern payables to
consortiums and infrastructure initiatives relating to Lotto 5A S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation for Euro
5,537 thousand, Metro B1 Consortium for Euro 2,874 thousand, the Cavtmi consortium for
Euro 242 thousand, Tecnosanita’ S.c.a.r.l and the Tecnoenergia Nord consortium and Sud
S.c.a.r.l.
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23.32.

Other current liabilities

(Euro thousands)

31-12-2017

Changes in the
period

30-06-2018

Matured by personnel, not yet settled

26,149

2,566

28,715

Payables due to social security institutions

11,295

2,704

13,999

Expropriation payables

4,731

(275)

4,456

Tax payables (overseas states)

10,791

(6,536)

4,254

Accrued expenses and deferred income

1,912

5,239

7,151

0

9,132

9,132

Other payables (other creditors)

9,100

(2,246)

6,854

Total

63,976

10,585

74,561

Payables to consortiums and JV’s

Other current liabilities at June 30, 2018 amount to Euro 74,561 thousand, increasing Euro
10,585 thousand on December 31, 2017.
The movement essentially concerns the increase in amounts matured and not yet paid to
personnel and in social security payables due to the further expansion of the workforce during
H1 2018, in addition to payables to other shareholders of the fully consolidated consortiums.
The increase in payables to other shareholders of the fully consolidated consortium companies
principally concerns the payables to the consolidated consortiums for the third party portion
related to the operating performance of TecnimontHQC S.c.a.r.l. involved in the Rapid
Malaysia initiatives.
The remaining other current liabilities principally concern expropriation payables, accrued
expenses and deferred income and other various payables.
“Expropriation payables” concern the payable for expropriations accumulated to date related
to the “Fiumetorto-Cefalù” project managed by the company Cefalù 20 S.c.a r.l.; this payable
is subject to reimbursement from the client.
“Other payables” principally concern the VAT payables of overseas branches.
At June 30, 2018, no overdue debt positions are highlighted.
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24.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Maire Tecnimont Group’s financial guarantees at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017
were as follows:
MAIRE TECNIMONT GROUP FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

30/06/2018

31/12/2017

(in Euro thousands)

GUARANTEES ISSUED IN THE INTEREST OF THE GROUP
Sureties issued by third parties in favor of third parties, of which:

Issued in favor of clients for orders under execution
Performance bonds (banks and insurance)

1,433,329

1,193,271

Advance Bonds (banks and insurance)

716,687

549,540

Others

154,336

123,988

2,304,352

1,866,799

TOTAL GAURANTEES

“Guarantees issued in the interest of the Group” of Euro 2,304,352 thousand concern
guarantees issued by Banks or Insurance companies in the interest of Group operating
companies in relation to commitments undertaken upon core operations. The increase is due
to the expanded order book following fresh intake. In particular:
•

“Performance Bonds”: contract “successful execution” guarantee. With this guarantee, the
bank undertakes the obligation to repay the client, up to a set amount, in the case of noncompliant execution of the contract by the contractor. In the case of large orders, SACE
insurance cover may be requested for these risks in favor of the Bank.

•

“Advance Bonds”: repayment guarantee, requested for payment of contractual advances.
With this guarantee the bank undertakes the obligation to repay the client a set amount,
as reimbursement for amounts advanced, in the case of contractual non-compliance by the
party requesting the guarantee (the contractor). In the case of large orders, SACE
insurance cover may be requested for these risks in favor of the Bank.

Commitments

The Parent Company assumed commitments to clients and/or other beneficiaries to fulfil
obligations, contractually undertaken by the company and/or subsidiaries awarded tenders as
part of their core operations and therefore in the execution of orders, in the case of nonfulfilment of such and for the reimbursement for any damage from such non-fulfilment.
These commitments, which involve the undertaking of an obligation to complete, guarantee
contracts whose total value amounts to Euro 13,172 million (Euro 12,702 million at December
31, 2017), including works already executed and the residual backlog at June 30, 2018.
The Parent Company also undertook other residual commitments (letters of Patronage) in
favor of banks in the interest of some subsidiaries, principally Tecnimont S.p.A..
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25.

Related party transactions

All related party transactions have been conducted at market conditions. The company’s
receivables/payables (including financial) and cost/revenue transactions with related parties
for the period are presented in the tables below.
30/06/2018
(in Euro thousands)

Trade
Receivables

Trade Payables
Costs

Revenues

G.L.V. Capital S.p.A

0

(34)

(282)

0

Maire Investments Group
Total

4

(103)

(188)

3

4

(137)

(470)

3

In particular, payable contracts refer to the lease of office buildings from Group companies,
the use of the “Maire” trademark and other minor recharges from the parent G.L.V. Capital
S.p.A. and from transactions with the Maire Investments Group, a company owned by the
majority shareholder of Maire Tecnimont S.p.A., for the lease of office buildings and the lease
of premises within the research center concerning the collaboration with La Sapienza
University. The residual payable and receivable contracts relate respectively to administrative
services, facility management and the purchase of flight time used by the Group.

Transactions with other non-consolidated and/or associated Group companies are purely
commercial and relate to specific activities linked to contracts; in addition, certain
consortiums, having substantially concluded operations, are in liquidation:
30/06/2018
(in Euro thousands)

Trade
Receivables

Trade
Payables

Financial
Receivables

Financial
Payables

Costs

Revenues

MCM servizi Roma S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

0

(95)

0

0

0

0

Studio Geotecnico Italiano
Villaggio Olimpico MOI S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation

0

(342)

0

0

(456)

0

0

(4)

69

0

0

0

1,724

0

0

(371)

0

0

Desimont Contracting
Biolevano S.r.l

612

0

0

0

0

1,573

Processi Innovativi S.r.l

106

(409)

0

0

(136)

48

BIO P S.r.l

7

(23)

18

0

(74)

7

TCM KTR LLP
Exportadora de Ingenieria y Servicios Tcm
Spa
Volgafert Llc

9

0

209

0

0

4

0

0

0

(67)

0

0

2,591

0

0

0

0

866

Total

5,049

(873)

296

(438)

(666)

2,497
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26.

Classification of the financial instruments

IFRS 7 requires that the classification of financial instruments valued at fair value is
determined based on the quality of the input sources used in the valuation of the fair value.
The IFRS 7 classification implies the following hierarchy:
•

Level 1: fair value calculation according to active market prices. Group instruments do
not fall within this category;

•

Level 2: fair value measurement according to market prices or similar assets or
through measurement techniques for which all significant factors are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data. Group instruments fall within this
category.

•

Level 3: fair value measurement according to valuation models whose input is not
based on observable market data (“unobservable inputs”). Some instruments whose
value is based on models with inputs not directly based on observable market data are
currently in place, particularly in relation to the valuation of minority holdings.

For all derivative instruments used by the Group, the fair value is calculated according to
measurement techniques based on observable market parameters (“Level 2”); during the
period, no transfers were made between Level 1 and Level 2 and vice versa.

As required, we report the type of financial instruments present in the financial statements,
with indication of the accounting policies applied. The book value of financial assets and
liabilities substantially coincide with their fair value.
30/06/2018

Total

18,521

23,215

-

-

63,540

-

-

-

420,883

-

528

9,541

-

10,069

5,703

-

-

-

5,703

Other current assets

119,079

-

-

-

119,079

Cash and cash equivalents

582,662

-

-

-

582,662

1,196,561

528

9,541

18,521

1,225,151

Other non-current financial assets
Other non-current assets
Trade receivables
Financial instruments - Current and
non-current derivatives
Other current financial assets

Total Financial Assets
(*)

“Level 2” of the Fair-Value

(**)

“Level 3” of Fair-Value
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Loans and
Receivables Amortised
Cost

Derivative
Instruments Fair value (*)

4,694

-

63,540

-

420,883

Derivative
Instruments Hedge
Accounting Fair Value (*)

Capital
instruments Fair Value
OCI (**)

(in Euro thousands)

30/06/2018
Financial
Liabilities Amortised
Cost

Derivative
Instruments - Fair
value (*)

(in Euro thousands)

Derivative
Instruments
- Hedge
Accounting Fair Value
(*)

Total

Financial debt - non-current portion

164,888

164,888

Other non-current financial liabilities

202,517

202,517

Short-term debt

156,916

156,916

330

330

Other current financial liabilities
Financial instruments - Current and noncurrent derivatives
Trade payables

2,943

(*)

23,948

1,331,110

1,331,110

74,561

74,561

Other Current Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

21,005

1,930,321

2,943

21,005

1,954,269

“Level 2” of the Fair-Value

27. Positions or transactions arising from atypical and/or
unusual operations
In accordance with Consob Communication of July 28, 2006 No. DEM/6064293, the Group did
not undertake any atypical and/or unusual operations in the first half of 2018, as defined in
the communication.

28.

Significant non-recurring events and operations

In H1 2018, the Group did not execute any significant non-recurring operations in accordance
with Consob Communication No. DEM/6064293 of July 28, 2006, other than those outlined in
the “Key Events” section of the Directors’ Report.

29.

Subsequent events

For significant events following period-end, reference should be made to the accompanying
Half-Year Report.
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30. Statement as per Article 154-bis, paragraph 5 of
Legislative Decree No. 58/98 and subsequent
amendments and supplements
1. The undersigned Pierroberto Folgiero, as “Chief Executive Officer” and Dario Michelangeli
as “Executive for Financial Reporting” of MAIRE TECNIMONT S.p.A. declare, and also in
consideration of Article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree No. 58 of
February 24, 1998:
•

the conformity in relation to the characteristics of the company and

•

the effective application of the administrative and accounting procedures for the
compilation of the condensed 2018 half-year consolidated financial statements in the
first half-year of 2018.

2. In addition, we declare that the condensed consolidated half-year financial statements at
June 30, 2018:
•

have been drawn up in accordance with the accounting
International Accounting Standards Board and adopted by
accordance with the procedure laid down by Article
1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council of July

•

correspond to the underlying accounting documents and records;

•

provide a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flow of the issuer and of the other companies in the consolidation scope.

standards drawn up by the
the European Commission in
6 of Regulation (EC) No.
19, 2002;

3. The Interim Directors’ Report includes a reliable analysis of the significant events in the
first six months of the year and their impact on the condensed consolidated half-year
financial statements, with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties for the
remaining six months. This Directors’ Report also contains a reliable analysis of the
significant transactions with related parties.

Milan, July 26, 2018
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The Chief Executive Officer

The Executive Officer
for Financial Reporting

Pierroberto Folgiero

Dario Michelangeli

Auditors’ Report
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31. Report of the Independent Auditors on the
Consolidated Condensed Half-Year Financial Statements
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